Stock Code B35 : 1929

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
O XBEHREEEEARLE

¢ 2017 Ga

Annual Repo

CHOW TAl FOOK



57

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 1929) was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011.

The iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook” of the Group has been widely recognised
for its trustworthiness and authenticity, and renowned for product design,
quality and value. The acquisition of Hearts On Fire, an internationally
acclaimed U.S. premium diamond brand, in August 2014 has further
underpinned the Group’s stature as a diamond expert in the industry.

The Group boasts an extensive retail network comprising over 2,300 POS of
Chow Tai Fook and Hearts On Fire spanning more than 500 cities in Greater
China, Singapore, Malaysia, Korea, Japan and the United States, as well as a
fast growing e-tail network through operating its Chow Tai Fook e-shop and
other e-tail accounts on major online shopping platforms.

The Group’s sophisticated vertically integrated business model provides it
with an effective and tight control over the entire operation chain from raw
material procurement, design, production, to marketing and sales through its
extensive distribution channels.
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An Iconic and

Trusted Brand
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T RANSPARENT a4

Enhance accountability via
institutionalised structures and
measures to drive better utilisation
of resources and fulfillment of
stakeholders’ interests

BB HIE L M ZRAB A He fnsa
BE  UERRERERNE
BEOENFZ

TRACEABLE 912

Implement transparent disclosures
and constructive dialogues to foster
genuine mutual understanding
with stakeholders

BERERA QR EMERME
B BREERSHEN
WHET##

THOUGHTFUL 718

Embrace leaders with independent
mindset, versatile expertise and
business acumen who steer our long-
term pursuit for sustainable business
growth and attainment of common
values with stakeholders
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MEREBEKAEM - FERFARMER
ARFENEBERNERSOENL
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TRUTHFUL 72

Uphold long-established
culture of integrity to safeguard
the fundamental interests of
stakeholders and build trusting
relationship with them

BERABIMNBEL
REEF & NELRFHE R
BUETEEBER




We introduce CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond brand, along wit

the efforts in ensuring our diamonds are natural and ethically sour
carries a resume, tracing its entire life journey. Such intrinsic valu
the vertically integrated b

, to reinforce
ARK diamond
trols under

try.
The same set of principles is in place to guid ernance i
Group in better achieving our strategic objective

es, supporting the
-
growt ment.

EARRET MARK &G iR AR 85 [4Ts | B8
XE-ANEE ARRAEEER

BANEEERURA—ERARIEESE

BRAARAMEER @ RIRAISE - BREAKRET MARK #E A & It A 7T 8 it
EBEANBREEET  TRERLETLROAESE -

ESEERoPYe: =40 R EERRENERMER -




Our Corporate Strategies
EE R

1

Market
Development

miZ R

2

Customer
Experience

Optimising our retail EE%: g%/ﬁ
network in response to the
changing market conditions
in Greater China, while
expanding our business
footprint to overseas markets
underpinned by our vertically

integrated business model

EHSRENS(LHEEAPE
ZEERR  REZRMAER
BB ARSI MHENE
v dist

Enriching our product
portfolio, rolling out
multi-brand strategy and
fostering 020 interactions to
uplift customers’ shopping
experience
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ISR RIEER ERTH
HE - UREAEEBUER

“Smart+” Initiatives
[Smart + ] 5T &

Promoting the use of smart devices

in operations to support O20 interactions
and leveraging big data analytics to attain
sustainable growth
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Annual Results in Five Minutes

EFEEEME

CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
Bl X #& T MARK

Spearheaded product innovation and
launched CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
diamond brand in August 2016

REETEMRRBIF R 20165F 8 A
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Hearts On Fire

Established a global retail St
presence covering Asia-Pacific, H EARTS O N F[R T
Caribbean, Europe and

North America

TEMXEMEIR - B

TAE - MEH - BONR e - v |
16 =M : \ .
_:' z .;' 5 ¢ ' :N 2 -
T e M S - ~

. EX T ] \ a9 920009000000 SOOROOOPOOOOOORPS -
Customer Experience ~~  ~_ e
ek L !
Diversified store themes and T
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customer needs and elevate their
shopping experience
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Presence in Mainland China

R Bl Ay it
POS
7 TEH

Presence in Hong Kong and Macau

RE B R RPT

POS
TEH

POS
TEH

187

SIS and CIS
JE& R JE R JE A B AR

509

Retailer locations

7 86
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Revenue & ¥ %8

HK$5'],246 ?\fgcz(r%elﬂtbﬁft

million B B8 JT

Mainland China 7 & (A ith
POS Bk SSSG B /ESHE R R

2,246 v5.2%

Hong Kong and Macau &8 K& 8P
POS ZEH SSSG [E/E$HE R &

102 ~12.4%

Earnings per share &% Z F

3 0.6 HK cents 781l

Dividend per share for the year 8 IR 2 F IR B

51 .Om HK cents 1l

FY2016 2016 BA U E
29.4 HK cents 11l

Full year dividend payout ratio

2EREE
52.3%%

Net assets per share R EE F5E
H K$ 3 3 BT

As at 31 March 2016
MR2016F3H31H

HKS 3.6 st

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

CEETEHRICKERERE

HK$ 5,702 \qur;%e Rt

milion BEEE T

(1) Included the interim and special dividends of HK21.0 cents per share declared in FY2017, and the proposed final
and special dividends of HK30.0 cents per share which are subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting
BER2017HBFEEERZFHARBERREH 2108 REGRREADABRERRBFKE LitE
ZEEARARASHIR B H 30084l

(2)  Excluded special dividend

TRERRIRS



10 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B AEBHEEEER LT

Revenue lllustration and Verticall
Integrated Business Model
EXRPBEMINEERESFBEN
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FY2017 Revenue
2017 T HF & AR
Mainland China Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
HEI R it

B8 RPIREMTS
60.5% 39.5%
| |

Wholesale

Retail Wholesale
#ezx 28 #ezg
21.6% 95.4% 4.6%

Service
SSS

income
Non-SSS E-commerce Franchisees from
FEEHE FREHE

SSS Non-SSS Franchisees Retailers Jfgj:l:ry
BYHEH R g REHE HEESE  MER AHE  papp
nes -
845% 109% 46% 989% wmsuA 91.2% 88% 505% 11.5%
1.1%

38.0%
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Upstream Lz

Raw Material Procurement Rough Diamond Cutting and Polishing
BB s BEEEDHRITE
All rough diamonds sourced are in 5 Sor 200,000+ Ay

compliance with Kimberley Process and
> e in FY2017
De Beers Best Practice Principles

RN ESEARER G @R 72017 BB E N T8 18 200,000 <&/
2 & De Beers R fE#I <7 I

Midstream =k

Manufacturing and Logistics and

Quality Assurance Distribution

FUE N mBRE 0o K B i
Product Development > 6 O % + of our gem-set jewellery (in > Automated facilities in Logistics
E ﬁqﬁﬁﬁé retail sales volume) were produced in our 4 and Distribution Centre in

production sites in Greater China. In addition, Shunde enable more frequent
580+ employees in all products are required to undergo stringent inventory replenishment and
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Creative quality control procedures enhance inventory turnover
R BB E SR E MR E T (R BET) VL 728 490 7 T R 5 e 9
BRBHRELAZEHOERBR DREMURAPENIREEETE BtRiEERSEERH
580 B8 T Ee i EERBERBERENRE RAEFERAE

EERF

Downstream T i

Products Sold Retail Network E-commerce
EmiE > TEMEK , S BIES

1 5+ million B & 2,300+ POSZEER 40+ e-commerce
pieces of product covering more than 500 cities in Mainland platforms

e China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets BABEFEHFEE

EBHEHREAM - FiE BFAREMTIES
500 Z B
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHREE

Although there is still a long way to a
full-fledged recovery for our operations,
we will remain focused in striving for
sustainable growth by meticulously
executing our initiatives. Adhering to
our core value of “Sincerity « Eternity”,
we shall maintain an excellent standard
in our products and services so as to
fortify our iconic and trusted brand
value.
BEERMEBEEEN 2 RKA 2
& BRFSF AT IRIEE -
SN IEE) Al B R o RPEBEREK
, - K1E | W OMEE  REEM
MRRASEHY = K~ 0 3 — P [E A
SRt B RE EEzmEEE -




Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for FY2017. Despite
challenging business dynamics, we continued to strive for excellence in our
products and services while sharpening our competitive edges as an industry
pioneer during FY2017. Encouragingly, our operations showed signs of
stabilisation during 2HFY2017. We remain vigilant to ensure that the Group will
emerge stronger and be better positioned for future growth.

Performance review

The Group registered a decrease in revenue of 9.4% year-on-year to HK$51,246
million in FY2017. Despite a negative full year sales performance, the tide began
to turn in our operations in 2HFY2017. Revenue grew by 4.4% year-on-year in
2HFY2017, a remarkable improvement compared to a 23.5% year-on-year
decline in THFY2017. Benefitting partially from this improving trend, profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company rose by 3.9% to HK$3,055 million
during FY2017, while earnings per share were HK30.6 cents.

The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend of HK10 cents
and HK20 cents per share, respectively.

Pursuing sustainable growth

We carried out a number of initiatives and embarked on new ones during
FY2017 to ensure sustainable growth of the Group. All such initiatives shall
provide us with a strong foundation to ride the wave of Mainland China’s “new
normal” economy — one in which growth is mainly driven by consumption and
science-oriented innovation takes on great significance to improve the quality
of growth and standard of living, as set out in the 13" Five-Year Plan (2016-
2020) on National Economic and Social Development (“13™ FYP”). We are
constructive that under this national direction, the structure of consumption
will be elevated as consumers become wealthier, more tech-savvy and

sophisticated in buying habits.

To capitalise on these evolving consumption changes, we have been taking the
lead to transform and enhance various aspects of our business, especially
through the application of technology and innovation.

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§
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14 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B XEHREEB SR AT

Chairman’s Statement FEHEE

We have launched “Smart+” initiatives in which Internet technology, smart
devices and big data are used to understand customer preferences. Our
inventory and logistics management have been streamlined to achieve greater
supply chain efficiency through the use of automated technology. Revamp of
store image and in-store layout, as well as store segmentation, are in progress to
provide brand new shopping experience. With e-commerce accounting for 9.3%
of our retail sales volume in Mainland China in FY2017, we have been focusing
in deepening 020 interactions, such as channelling online traffic to physical
stores and extracting synergies through innovative channels.

We have also been adapting to the fast changing preference of Chinese
consumers. Differentiated and diversified products have been added to our
portfolio to target different customer segments. CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK
diamond brand, a disruptive innovation and revolutionary product offering, was
launched during FY2017. This was a major milestone for the Group as a
breakthrough on the current industry practice by displaying to customers the
complete life journey of a diamond from its source, made possible by state-of-
the-art technology on the backbone of our vertically integrated business model.

Outlook

Mainland China is on track to become a consumption led economy and a
moderately prosperous society, which bodes well for the retail industry,
especially the luxury sector, in the long term. Despite an economic slowdown,
Mainland China’s GDP growth in absolute terms still remains to be the highest in
the world. Coupled with the continuing trends of income increase, expansion of
the middle-income class and urbanisation, abundant growth potentials still
persist. Under the 13t FYP, the Chinese government will implement measures to
foster a conducive consumer environment, which will help to re-shore overseas
consumption back to Mainland China and revitalise domestic luxury

|

consumption. The “new normal” economy, characterised by slowing but quality
growth, is expected to propel the nation to a stable, healthy and sustainable
long-term development. We are fully confident of and optimistic about the

long-term prospects of Mainland China.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the retail industry is undergoing structural changes
inevitably as travel patterns and spending preferences of Chinese tourists have
changed. Nevertheless, the two cities’ well-established infrastructure, high
degree of internationalisation, mature legal systems, tax-free shopping
environment as well as high-quality customer service, give them a solid
competitive edge in the long run. Hong Kong has been ranked as the world’s
freest economy by the Heritage Foundation for the 23" consecutive year,
reaffirming the city’s strong underlying fundamentals and status as the world'’s
most competitive financial and business hub.

AT [Smart+ | 578 FIAE AR - HEER
BRABETHREENET - RMEHTEZERDR
i AR LRIMESHERNE - G HMH
FEEBEHESRRIERRT  WETEREZRL X
DEBEREHFHOBYER - BE 20070 HEE
EFBHBERMPEABEEN.3%  BHEZE DA
BREGTEY SR LERSIABEE  WEBFE
M RIFTSRIE A E BRI N  -

Lo R —ERTEEEEREZCNEY T
BHNEEREN  ERMNNWERASTIAERTE
RZRUACMER - 2017HHFE  RMELRAKE
TMARKSE A S - WD EERIMNER - URIBRH
1% DEEEESEBEAFEXE  RRTITXIE
Bl ERREMAREE R REOTENERKE -
AREBENEREREM -

‘2

TEABNEEEEMHETE  HETESERE
R REABNZEXNRE HHRESMITH B
EHEABEERE  EEANEEREERNWEHE
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PEEIR MR B R E - PRSI RE DK
REX - RBEEXRT=Z0RE PEBFEEEEE
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RHERNESREE [HEE|EANBRERERN
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FHEE REXFESTETEABERE - AW 8
BWitEATENEE  SERKRICHRE - RAW
EH - BINERBBYMBENETFRYE  REAW
WRUEZENHEFED FBEEBFEIAERE
SETARBEARKER  EREERYNELR
FUREZRFEAFRFINERMBREET ORI



Although there is still a long way to a full-fledged recovery for our operations,
we will remain focused in striving for sustainable growth by meticulously
executing our aforementioned initiatives. We have started to provide a holistic
jewellery retail solution on a global scale by leveraging our vertically integrated
business model. Last but not least, adhering to our core value of “Sincerity -
Eternity”, we shall maintain an excellent standard in our products and services
so as to fortify our iconic and trusted brand value.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my fellow Board
members for their strategic guidance and the management and staff for their
dedicated efforts and invaluable contributions over the years. | also thank our
shareholders, business partners and customers for their long-term support
and trust.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 8 June 2017
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16 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B XEHRBEEBE SR AT

Managing Director’s
Strategic Report ssecmsmEis

FY2017 continued to be a challenging year to the Group as the operating 017 MBFEENERRENTHE  HAKEMmS#
environment remained uncertain. In particular, Greater China has now entered BRTRIBEN—F - LHR RKPENKERBS
into a macro-economic adjustment phase after years of robust growth. Riding FRMERE  BESARBRLERED - RAIKSE
on this surging tide of change, we have focused on fostering new growth drivers MBREZY HRFASRMEBEBNTEIEH
through seizing various opportunities that fit in our business strategies and REAREEER ERESEMAIN  EHBEEBNIE
harnessing technological innovations in our key operations. Alongside an RN -BEB2017HHREFETHEFEEANERS
improving momentum since 2HFY2017, we believe all these strategic J BRMECEENEREREREENLREERAELRT
developments would lead to a sustainable future for the Group. HEWEER -



Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

Riding with this surging tide of change, we have been focusing on fostering new growth drivers
through seizing various opportunities that fit in our business strategies and harnessing

technological innovations in our key operations.

BHMAEEFRNEZE Y BRASEMEBRBNTEBHE  RERCEXR LEFRMNA

Mo BNBBEBHMERYS -

Market development

Luxury retail market in Hong Kong and Macau has long been benefitting from the
influx of tourists especially those from Mainland China. However, we have
experienced a continuous reverse trend in recent years mainly due to tourists’
changing shopping preferences and the decline in foot traffic to the region. To
navigate the situation, we optimised our retail network by closing 9 POS in FY2017
in touristic areas, and we further expect to close a few more POS in FY2018 in
order to enhance our overall store productivity. At the same time, we recognise
the importance of tapping into the local demand and spending power, as more
than half of our revenue in Hong Kong and Macau was generated from local
customers. To this end, we remain open to store openings in residential

neighbourhood as long as these investments are accretive to our business.

Mainland China is undergoing an adjustment phase after trajectory economic
growth in previous years. Under the changing retail landscape in the region, we
moderated our store expansion plan and opened a net of 67 POS in FY2017,
which was far below our average annual net openings in prior years. As the
current market condition is likely to persist driven by the evolving
shopping preferences of the Chinese customers, we will remain selective in
POS expansion.

Apart from Greater China, we also expanded our footprint to overseas markets.
In FY2017, we added 3 POS in Korea, Malaysia and the United States with a view
to capitalise the business potentials from the Chinese customers in these
countries. Under our vertically integrated business model, we are in progress of
reaching out to the U.S. wholesale business for polished diamonds and
jewelleries with branded retailers. We also envision to transform our retail know-
how to consultancy services to other retailers, a strategy recognised as an
integral part of our sustainable growth in the future.

ISR

—HUR EEREAMNECHREETSZERAH
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18 EMBERETE > R20170 BEFEFHR7EZTES
EORBEHFEFVTIFHRERE - STEARNME
FRVEFESNZE HERBITRSEEE ¥
HRMGEEREEHERTER -

BRARHESN - AT RBIT SRR EBIRE - 2017
MRFE  RAIRER - SRADRXERRIEZE
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Managing Director’s Strategic Report EE#KERIEIRE

Customer experience

The 13* FYP in Mainland China has identified innovation as one of the five new
tenets of the country’s economic and social development. Going towards this
direction, we spearhead innovation to deliver extraordinary products, services

and experience to our customers.

Leveraging the strength of our business model and employing state-of-the-art
technology, we successfully launched CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond brand
in August last year. This initiative is embedded with our new “4Ts” concept —
transparent, traceable, thoughtful and truthful, which revolutionises the current
industry practice by enabling customers to witness the life cycle of a diamond
from its source. To further elevate our brand equity and design offerings, we
refreshed our gem-set jewellery portfolio by launching more fashion diamond
jewelleries and Hearts On Fire products including the “Hearts On Fire by Stephen
Webster — White Kites” and “Triplicity” Collections in FY2017. Riding on the
popularity of blockbusters and characters such as Disney’s “Star Wars” and
“Tsum Tsum”, we also rolled out licensed collections to meet customers’

demand.

At the same time, customers’ appetite is also gearing towards lifestyle and
experiential luxuries, as evidenced by their personalised and diversified needs.
For that purpose, we accommodated the increasingly affluent and sophisticated
customers through store differentiation. We also refreshed the in-store display
segmenting our merchandises by different themes tailoring to customers’
needs. Moreover, as an integral part of our strategy to deliver unique and
personalised customer experience, we offered diversified products and
collections through a multi-brand strategy. Notable examples include our new
brand “Monologue” which opened its first store last year focusing on fashion
jewelleries for younger generations, and “SOINLOVE” which debuted in May this
year tapping the potential from the wedding market in Mainland China.

E-commerce and 020 interactions will continue to reshape the retail industry in
the years ahead. To seize the opportunities arising from these trends, we levered
on our extensive retail network paired with our new inventory unification
system to collaborate with online platform partners and launched the online
order distribution programme in FY2017. This programme enabled our
customers to enjoy jewellery deliveries directly from our nearby POS in shorter
delivery time. 020 synergies were fully extracted by establishing closer
relationship between our physical stores and online customers.

BRERABHER+=ZHREAT  AIHRBEREE
MHERENABAFESZ— - ZMHEFH  FhH
AIF > RETRMAFANER  RERESR -

BERMEBREXNEZNRERE - RMHREFSA
I B AET MARKSE A @ A8 o It 2R B8R
FHTaTs B2 — ol AS - AAERAfE BIEXR
BINFEOITEEN  AEEECRBEEWNEANE
WkE c AE—SRARBEEREEHRIRE R
I 2017 B B 57 FE 488 $ B 149 88 70 DR EE B AT Hearts
On FireZE i * B¥E[ Hearts On Fire by Stephen Webster
— White Kites ] % [Triplicity ] &% - #$FK BB EHE
HINERESBRA—F - i BT REZEEREY
RIBONFBAYDRE WBALTRIERAE IR
[Tsum Tsum] > HEHERRIILUREEZNER

tboh > BEEMEY OWEBEEERZ Tt FHf
MEETRRABERRMNENR - Bl KMETE
HEEL UWREREWEERUKMNEE - ZMTSEH
TIERRY  BTEFEE DU EEEEE o
AEROEZREUBEEAMCERNER  RAES
CHERRRESTENERRRY  BRAPEER
FHI%T A2 Monologue | ZRIEE TR ERBEH -
FHRFEEATE  MSB—mIESOINLOVE] RIS &5
PRREREHE  TRHEAMEHRANBETS

EfRABRELETERNEEEBRRNETEX -
AIEEETABEESLETEEMTRAEHE - KM
ROV7HBFESREANTERRRRTR-—FER
BER BREVYABHAE EHRLTEIRG
2o ZEETEMINTEREREOETEE - B8
ZFERE - RMNEREFAMENER EEFETE
ZER%  2EEEKLETHENE -



“Smart+” initiatives

We recognise the importance of harnessing technology and big data analytics
to achieve business growth over the long run. Our “Smart+" initiatives kicked off
in 2014 and had since supported us in fostering 020 interactions, further
enhancing our operational efficiency and staying responsive to the ever-

changing retail landscape.

During the financial year, we continued to invest in our supply chain
infrastructure. Our Logistics and Distribution Centre located in Shunde
commenced its operations with automated facilities and capability of analysing
stock movement to enhance efficiency of our inventory planning, distribution
and replenishment. In addition, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan plays an
important role in optimising our production processes by leveraging
automation and artificial intelligence. The operation of its E-commerce Centre
was kicked off in September last year and it currently supports the distribution
and logistics of more than one-third of our e-commerce sales volume. We expect

this ratio to further increase in the coming years.

Investing in big data analytics also forms a critical corporate strategy to draw
valuable insights on customers’ behaviour. One of our smart devices, the RFID-
embedded “Smart Tray”, serves as our sales assistant to deliver seamless
customer experience. More importantly, information collected during the course
of serving would be transformed into responsive and apt business actions via
big data deliverables such as trend prediction, inventory planning and
assortment. Most of our POS in Hong Kong have already deployed the “Smart
Tray” in FY2017, and we are progressively extending its use to our retail network
in Macau and Mainland China.

To further utilise big data analytics to facilitate our business decision making,
we established Data Intelligence Space in both Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The Space is managed by our professional team tasked with data
analytics management covering a wide spectrum of strategic planning projects
and initiatives.
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[ Smart+] 5T 2]

EMRPBEABBZNAHBELIINEE  WBRER

B R PUEMEBIER o HM [Smart+ ] 51818 20145
Fth —EXERMNELETES - #H#BRARM
VEENR  REOESENTERHRIE

RPMBREFEE  BRMEEREHBEEE - RMAURNIE
BRYRREETOLEHHAREE  AhEBERER
DMEERCNINEEREARMANEFERS - BX
REEMNRE - W RENEARERECEXE
FMABBERATISR  @B(LEEIFTHEBARAE
Z-HETHEFEABFLOREFIAEAMREE R
XERMEB=I/2—SEFHBHENYREE - &
IR AR ARREFIFERT -

REXRBBIMEURRMEENARER - LT HRE
FTANBEEEN - RMBERHEZ— ERNEER
SRR BI RFD) R TR [ B Re R F 8 | sEREHEY
Ethee  RUEANEERER FEEENWRE O
FRERBEABRNENSEBRHBEDTER (W
BEER  FEAIRERH UBCLARKEENER
TE 2017 BEE  BEABIZEHCKANE
BEERE | RMNEBELSHEREARMRTEABNEE

RABANARBEIMERMPELRE  RARE
BRPEAMRIBEERER YHEXERE
B EEHZHREMMERIEE R ZBBETD
HEE -
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Managing Director’s Strategic Report EE#KERIEIRE

Corporate social responsibility

Chow Tai Fook sustainability framework is characterised by our corporate core
value of “Sincerity « Eternity”, which guides us to operate with integrity and act
as a responsible corporate citizen. During the financial year, we rebranded “Do
Good” programme as part of our ongoing commitment to execute corporate
social responsibility initiatives. Chow Tai Fook cares for the community because
we believe it is our corporate responsibility to meet the needs of society. We
therefore strive to accomplish the mission by committing resources to
sustainable development in the community. Our desire to care for and create a
better world is well represented and inspired by our corporate culture of giving
and caring.

Looking forward

Over our 88-year operating history, we have witnessed and experienced various
economic ups and downs. Nevertheless, we continue to maintain a strong
financial position with support from our strong vertically integrated business
model and extensive retail network. History proved that we have been
consistently capable of riding the wave of economic growth and weathering
various downturns in the previous decades. In this respect, we believe Chow Tai
Fook is well-placed to achieve sustainable business growth and development as
our quick response to market changes, relentless efforts in driving innovation in
customer experience and optimisation of our business operations have been
bearing fruit. We believe Chow Tai Fook will maintain its status as one of the
renowned jewellery industry players in the years to come.

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 8 June 2017

TEMEEE

BAREHEZRABREZRMIER - KEI N
BOMEME - ESIRMUBRERRAREENLED
R o HMRABBEFEEL [Do Good | 5HEI - FREK
MNSERTEEMEEERAEZ—BD - BXERH
DHE BRAEMECERLEZTENRMNNEXE
o Bt BRMEAERHEENTFERRRBER -
BOBITREEME - HMET - BENEELELS
KRR ER ML =t BRI -

fRE

EFMELEER D  RMRIFMERET ZNNWEE
BIEERK - Rl ERANEERSEBEXMEKR
MEERE BT  RM-ERFERNTBMRR -
EMNETEEFABERTF  BMERR DB RER
MR REKTEEENAE - Hlt - EREMD
REEMWSES EHUAHTARMETER &
EEBLECIERR - HMBERARECEREHRE
PR EASANEBERRERE - KK RRE
BAREERISHAAHREFHAL o

EEpamE
HEREEE
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Financial and
Operational Highlights

MR EERME

For the year ended 31 March #Z3A31HILFE

Revenue & % %8 (HKS million BE#E7T) Earnings per share 82 B F) (HK cent 3&4l1)
EI e HKS5] 246 306 HK30.6
B 56,592 million BEB T 294 cents 34
6277 V9 4o 20158 e A

A%
77,407 727
2030 ey R EE_ s
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company Full year and special dividends per share
77 B B B FE AL EE F (HKS million B & T) BREFERFHAE (HCcent 3840)
s HK$3,055 EIM.———— 5100 HK51.0
2081 million B&87x EIEIIEEGG — s00° cents Bl
B 5456 A 3 9(y 2015 | 28.0

. 0
a7 360
B 5505 220
As at
POS EE & Net assets per share BBz & & /F 38 (HKS B 7T)
3132017 PR 2,381 BEE A s HKS$3.3
EEE 23 ros &% HEENCINEEEEE — s BT
3132015 ML/ A 2 7 % 3132015 R

. 0
3132014 i ) 3132014
EEECEN 1836 BEEE 3¢
(1) Being a total of full year dividend of HK16.0 cents and special dividend of HK35.0 cents (1) 2FRE16.0BMURIFHIR L 350 BILHATT

) Being a total of full year dividend of HK16.0 cents and special dividend of HK64.0 cents 2) 2 FERE16.0BIRERIR L 64.0 B AF
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Financial and Operational Highlights 81# K&

PO

EERE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS$ million
For the year ended 31 March HE3A3HLEEE HEHET HEBT BEBT HEBT BHEET
Revenue HER 57,434 77,407 64,277 56,592
Gross profit EF 16,283 21,152 19,072 15,641
Core operating profit® FTERERAO 7,106 9,500 6,691 5,050
Profit for the year FERF 5,678 7,449 5,536 2,979
Profit attributable to shareholders of D AR RN ER 5,505 7,272 5,456 2,941
the Company
Earnings per share (HK cent) BREF GBI 55.1 72.7 54.6 294
Dividend per share (HK cent) BRKE (B
Full year dividend (HK cent) 2ERS (B 220 36.0 28.0 16.0
Special dividend (HK cent) HRIBR S (BAL) - - - 64.0
Gross profit margin EFES 28.4% 27.3% 29.7% 27.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin® KRB BIHERE 28.1% 27.7% 29.2% 28.9%
Core operating profit margin™ FELEFEANERO 12.4% 12.3% 10.4% 8.9%
Net profit margin FRAE 9.9% 9.6% 8.6% 5.3%
Full year dividend payout ratio® 2EREEO 40.0% 49.5% 51.3% 54.4%

(1)

2)

Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of adjusted gross
profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses, which the
Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational performance and the

underlying trend of its core businesses

Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold
loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational
performance and the underlying trends of its businesses

(3) Excluded special dividend

Q] EBAEERFI R £ B RTR I RERM R ELRE - 5L
AEENHEFRAGRENET  HEER D ERA AR —RRITR
ggégﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂt%ﬁﬁﬁﬂbiﬁﬁT%E.‘s‘é%ﬁﬁ&%b#&ﬁ@

@) REABRNEREL I REMRMBRE LR H - MR TESEEY

REBEHER
HEERAREBNERIBS

®3) TRIEHRIRE

(W) WR 8 AR BREELBIEABEER T #

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HKS$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HE3ANALEE HEHBT BEBT HEBT HEAT HE#ET
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHA 2 7,663 9,465 7,288 5,787
in working capital RERSRE
Net cash from/(used in) operating TEEBME(FA) 10,030 (5,420) 7,568 13,897
activities B FHE
Net cash from/(used i) investing RETEHE/(FTA) (1,113) (1,727) (3,093) (1,045)
activities HeF8
Net cash from/(used in) financing BMETEME/(FA) (10,623) 8,221 (5,472) (8,008)
activities B T8
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RBeERBELEEY (1,705) 1,074 (996) 4,845
and cash equivalents /R ) F4E
Capital expenditure BEXREX (1,174) (1,368) (2,768) (1,046)
Pro forma free cash flows® BEZERELR 8,151 (412) 2,764 10,690

(4)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities less purchase of jewellery collectibles, capital expenditures and net

movements for gold loans

C) g%ggﬁﬁ?@/(ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁ;’%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ%‘ﬁ CERAXRESE
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2017
HK$ million
BEE#ET

2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March MW3A31R HEERT HEET HEER HEERT
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,442 4,263 7,038 6,670
Current assets REBEE 39,777 57,554 54,083 49,005
Current liabilities REBEE 8413 22,507 19,880 18,764
Net current assets REVEEFE 31,364 35,047 34,203 30,241
Net assets BEEEE 33,861 38,452 40,541 35,750
Total assets AERE 43,219 61,817 61,121 55,675
Inventories rE 27,315 42,544 39,798 31,377
Bank deposits and cash equivalents®  $R{TERRIRESZEY© 8,331 9,972 8,478 13,001
Bank borrowings RITER 1,000 6,300 6,751 7,920
Gold loans BEEfEE 4,836 10,787 8,338 6,513
Net debt/(cash)® &R (RE)FHEO (2,495) 7,115 6,611 1,432
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEZFHEGET) 34 3.8 4.1 3.6
Net gearing ratio” FEREELEN N/AT3EF © 18.5% 16.3% 4.0%
Inventory turnover period (day)® FEAEH(XB)® 242 276 320 279
Return on equity® i ZNEE: 16.8% 19.4% 13.7% 8.3%
(5) Bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits included (5) BAIERTEGRRERS  CHEBRTERRESERITER
(6) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents ©) BITERRESESZARNKRRTERARBESZSEY)
) Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by total equity 7) RITEFRRESEECER(NBRRTEARRESSEY) BRUER
®8) The Group had a net cash position as at 31 March 2013, and therefore the net gearing ratio was not applicable 8) ﬁi;ﬁqon F3IANBERTFESRR WEEAEB/HEI R
(] Being inventory balance, excluding packing materials, at the end of the year divided by cost of goods sold for the 9) }ii REEEB(TEEEEYE)BRUEFREERAR BRI

(10)
Note:

year, multiplied by 365/366
Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year

The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

(10)

365/366
F PR R A R AR AR AR

Mz . BALHHARIAMEEMER
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Financial and Operational Highlights 81# K&

SEME

For the year ended 31 March BZE3ANALEE 2013 2014 2015 2016
Mainland China o 3 Py it
SSSG EEHEERE (3.0)% 17.2% (15.6)% (9.6)%
SSS volume growth EEHEER (5.2)% 33.1% (15.8)% (8.4)%
Hong Kong and Macau EHERREMN
SSSG EEHERE (3.8)% 20.2% (32.8)% (21.7)%
SSS volume growth BEEHEEER 2.5% 40.3% (27.7)% (23.9)%
Retail sales volume (unit) $HE (HE)
Mainland China AR Py 9,888,000 14,556,000 13,637,000 13,280,000
Hong Kong, Macau and EE  EMAREMTIS 3,861,000 6,109,000 4,907,000 3,971,000

other markets

2017

As at 31 March W3A31R 2013 2014 2015 2016
POS network? FEEBELZO

Mainland China R A 1,731 1,965 2,124 2,179
Hong Kong i 80 86 93 89
Macau JEFY 15 16 19 20
Taiwan =y 8 8 16 23
Korea EE - - 1 4
Malaysia BRAE 1 1 1 1
Singapore S0 1 1 1 1
United States EE - - 2 2
Total HBEr 1,836 2,077 2,257 2,319

(10) SIS and CIS excluded (10) TEIEE IR RIERHE

2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEE I mE DT

Business Review
== 7% o A

In response to changing customer preferences and market uncertainties, we remained focused
in seizing business opportunities and enhancing store productivity through optimising our
network portfolio. Striving to enrich customer experience, we strengthened our product
offerings and implemented store differentiation and multi-brand strategy.

HMEESIERAKAS  LEBRERSERER  UWERHBEESFNEZRTHENT
BRI E - RMMBTERES  BUEHERCNZmMERE  BHIEERTBEYRR -

O

Group -3
Revenue S
Revenue by reportable segment RAZRSBEATHEEHE

For the year ended 31 March BLE3A31HLLFE
(HKS$ million BB T)

80,000 77,407 YoY change
El24-2l4
70,000 64,277
60,000 57,434 o 56,592
P 51,246———— V9.4%
50,000 e
52.8% e
40,000
V7.9%
30,000
M Mainland China"
20,000 45.50% PP
47.2% 41.1%
0,
10,000 e [l Hong Kong, Macau and other markets
0 &8 RFREAMbIEY
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
THFY 2HFY
Revenue (HKS$ million) THFY2016 2HFY2016 1HFY2017 2HFY2017 YoY change YoY change
HBEE HBEE
) _ 20168 20168k 2017FE 2017 HE s T4
EEHE(EBEEL) FEL¥FE FET¥F EELYEE EETEE [E74-3(4 [ bt 2 1k
Mainland China® HEl At 16,660 17,011
) F=E | H ==y (1)
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets™ &% - 8P & HAih 15 11,464 11,457
Overall page) 28,124 28,468
(1) In FY2016, the Group's reportable segments included (i) Mainland China — Jewellery business, (ii) Mainland China m 2016 AEFE - REREA T 23D EWEIE () PEIN G — IREHER

— Watch business, (i) Hong Kong, Macau and other markets and (iv) Hearts On Fire. In FY2017, in the course of
organisational restructuring and business integration, we combined the former Mainland China — Jewellery and
Mainland China — Watch segments into one reportable segment, called Mainland China. Furthermore, the former
Hearts On Fire segment, which included Hearts On Fire retail business in the U.S. and Taiwan and wholesale
business with retailers globally, was integrated into the Hong Kong, Macau and other markets segment. Following
these changes, the Group’s new reportable segments included (i) Mainland China and (ii) Hong Kong, Macau and
other markets

(i) PEIR I — SEERZERS 5 (i) BB  MPIREMTIS 5 R (v)Hearts On
Fire e R2017 A FE » MEBEAMNEBRESBRES  HMBATH
Bl — REEBEPHAR — BREBIBEHRE—T 2R
o Bz RHERM o B AiHearts On Fire 2 3 (BIEXE K A%
Hearts On Fire BEE LI R B D HRET M 2B ER) BISAR
B RFREMTISA M - LlBEE  ARBEHT2HKS HIE()
REIR ;R i) EE  RPIREMTS



Revenue contribution from Mainland China increased steadily over
the past few years, and contributed to over 60% of the Group's
revenue in FY2017.

Full year revenue declined by 9.4% to HK$51,246 million with an
improving trend noted in 2HFY2017. As operations stabilised, revenue
grew by 4.4% year-on-year in 2HFY2017, a remarkable improvement
versus a year-on-year decline of 23.5% in THFY2017.

Both reportable segments showed encouraging signs of turnaround in
2HFY2017. Hong Kong, Macau and other markets returned to a revenue
growth of 0.8% during 2HFY2017 whereas Mainland China recorded an
even stronger rebound of 6.8% year-on-year.

Revenue by product®?

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

FEAMBESFNEEBEEREBES LA R
2017 AU EAE B 5 E B 60% ©

EPEEEETRIANESIH6EEB T R
0177 BFETHFAZEIA 2 - EHLE
EKBE 007VHMRFETEFNEEERSE
R 44% HE2017MBFE L¥FIRFTR
235% FBEWE -

MET2HESBR20T7THBREETEEHES
ABENEATR - BE  BFIRHEMTER
2017 BFE T ¥ FMEXEELFAH08%  mH
Bt IR FERE B F 6.8% °

BRERBSHEEE

For the year ended 31 March & &3 831 A LLEE
(HKS$ million BB T)

27

80,000 YoY change
B4 X(4
70,000
60,000
50,821 ¥9.5%
50,000
V14.6%
40,000
B Gem-set jewellery Bk 2 $E i &5 &
30,000
V¥6.8% M Gold products E&E R
20,000
[ Platinum/Karat gold products #& K& E M
10,000
¥16.0%
0 A46% W Watches 8§
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
) Revenue from jewellery trading and service income from franchisees excluded (2) TEIER AT E 5 0 & 58 RNER MR WA
9% of revenue THFY2016 2HFY2016 1HFY2017 2HFY2017
2016 B IR EE 2016 AR EE 2017 A B 2017 (ABLE
R = THE g Tig
Gem-set jewellery HREEREEH 26.6% 27.1%
Gold products EEEM 55.7% 55.9%
Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER 12.7% 12.1%
Watches B 5.0% 4.9%
. A higher revenue contribution from gold products was seen in FY2017, V7HHFE BESEMWEXRBEIH A

AETHFERNESERRERSHESER
HE -
V7HBEETEFESERNELEERA
60.1% @ REFE EF420EE L B20177HHREE
E¥F FH650EEZ -

especially during 2HFY2017 as gold price weakened.

. Revenue contribution from gold products reached 60.1% in 2HFY2017, up .
420 basis points year-on-year and 650 basis points when compared to
THFY2017.
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SSSG

SSSG by major market

& SHE R
BEETHUSNEAEHELR

11.9%

-7.0%

-23.8% -23.1%
-27.3%

-30.3%

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
FY2016 FY2017
201681 E 20178 HEE
. During FY2017, SSSG recovery in both markets was driven by an increase

in ASP. SSS volume was down by 15.8% and 18.8% in Mainland China and
in Hong Kong and Macau, respectively.

. Mainland China has consistently outperformed Hong Kong and Macau in
terms of SSSG trend over the past 8 quarters, signifying a stronger

recovery momentum.

. SSS of Mainland China rebounded to a 8.2% growth in 2HFY2017, versus a
19.2% decline in THFY2017.

. SSSG of Hong Kong and Macau returned to positive in 4QFY2017. This is
the first time Hong Kong and Macau recorded a positive quarterly SSSG
after 12 consecutive quarters of decline since 4QFY2014.

FY2017 SSSG
2017 B FEREHERR

v5.20 e

V12.4% Sinmn

FY2017 SSS volume growth
017 BEEREHEER

v15.8% wmms

v18.8% =zanmm

-O- Mainland China R E R ith
-O- Hong Kong and Macau & & BP9

017HBFE  METSHNREREHEEREZ
FHEELASS  FERNMNEIEHEETRE
15.8% > M& B KR 2 R/EHZ A2 18.8% ©

RBESEZE  MEANBHNEEHEER—H
REBREMAE  2RBBRAWEAED -

. PR EEEER2017MREE T EERH
#1882 K FHIE - M2017 M EE L¥XFAT
[%£19.2% °
EBRRRMANRIEHEER 2017 BFEENSE
EREEER  BE204HBFESNEERL
BEDNDESEETRE  BXBEEER -



POS network™
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TEHBBO
During FY2017
2017 B E 31.3.2017
Addition Reduction Net Total
8 n b R st

31.3.2015 31.3.2016
As at Total Total
iy st st
Mainland China R A 2,124 2,179
Hong Kong &8 93 89
Macau S| 19 20
Taiwan i 16 23
Korea 1] 1 4
Malaysia BERAEE 1 1
Singapore Hhng 1 1
United States ESE 2 2
Total st 2,257 2,319

31.3.2017
Chow Tai Fook

Jewellery CTF Watch Hearts On Fire Monologue Total

BREHE BXEER Hst
Mainland China HEL Ay it 2,118 117 8 3
Hong Kong &8 80 3 - -
Macau P 18 1 - -
Taiwan =1 11 - 1 -
Korea L5 5 - - -
Malaysia BEREAEEE 2 - - -
Singapore ESiilibsd 1 - - -
United States ESE 1 - 2 -
Total B 2,236 121 21 3

m SIS and CIS excluded m TRIEE ISR IEREAE

In FY2017, we opened a net of 67 POS in Mainland China, with gross
openings of 235 POS and closures of 168 POS. With an easing trend of
consolidation in department stores, our POS reduction has also
moderated compared to last year.

In Hong Kong and Macau, we continued to optimise our retail network to
enhance efficiency and productivity. A net of 7 POS were closed during
the year.

We also opened 3 POS in Korea, Malaysia and the U.S. to capture the
opportunities arising from the demand of Chinese customers there.

2017 BEE » HPIRPE R FRR67 B
€2 BHEART 23 BTEY 0 FRTERT
168 ESEH BEEEEQARARSBREAAME
% TERHENRBREFEARK-

REBREAM  EMAFEECLIERS UR
ARERER  FRFEMA7ESTES -

EMTRER - BRAZREXERRIIEZTE
B DR EEARETRTEROEE -
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Mainland China
Revenue

Revenue by operation model

R B A 1t
e DI ER

For the year ended 31 March BLE3A31HLLFE
(HKS million B &587T)

50,000
Revenue RSV
42,148 YoY change YoY change
40,000 37,842 E =] ZEE
[Eil3%:214 El%-1(4
33,670
30,308 31,019 — ¥v7.9% V1.6%
30,000
76.2%|
75.8%)
20,000 ens v82%  V2.8%
10,000
23.8%) 24.2%) — ¥6.8% A1.4%
0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
. Our retail revenue represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce

and other direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to
franchisees and provision of services to franchisees under the inventory
ownership unification programme.

. Upon complete adoption of the inventory ownership unification
programme by all franchised POS, the trends of wholesale revenue and
RSV are expected to converge considerably. As at 31 March 2017, 517
franchised POS (approximately 65% of our total franchised POS) were in
the programme, holding inventories valued at approximately HK$1,870
million, representing 6.4% of total inventories of the Group.

B Retail 2&

[ Wholesale #t 2%

EMNZELXERRBELZEY E1H
BRAMEERBHEER  MMtBEEHEA
EamBREEEmkRES —FEHERRES
SIE AR REREHWA

FREMNEZEYR 2 ERAS —FEREEREST
B% ESIMBEEFRTEEANEZB A
#E - R2017F3 8318 517{@MBEE (K
ERMMBESELBEMN65%) CSEZ 2
BENEEEEN1,870BE BT HERAKE
BRFEZ64% °
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RSV, SSSG and POS network FEE - REHEERAZTEIFEE

RSV growth by province
BRENEINTEEER

5 highest performance
' sERERR

Above average performance
' BREPER
O Below average performance

BERAFHRE
o 5 lowest performance
SESERR

Number of POS
ZEHEE

!"

50-100 >100

Total number of POS
FEEEY

2,246
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RSV by product REMBSHTEE
5.2%
26.4%
[0)
% FY2016 FY2017 RSV YoY change
4.8% 20168 BFE 20178 REE TEERLEE
12.8% 26.7%
| | Gem-set jewellery Bk EE SR & £ v2.1%
[ | [ | Gold products EEE MR v1.1%
M [ | Platinum/Karat gold products #1€ /K& ER  v2.2%
[ | Watches $#&k A6.1%
SSSG of major products TEEMMEEHEER

21.6%

17.2%

5.1%

-3.7% -12.3%

-23.5%

-28.7% 26.7%
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q -
-O- Gem-set jewellery BRES S H#: & &
FY2016 FY2017
20168 BUERE 20175 EE -O- Gold products ZEEE

FY2017 FY2016
2017 BABLE I 2016 T FE

SSSG  SSS volume growth ASP ASP

[ 5 SHE R FEHEER TEHEE FEE

Gem-set jewellery REEREE HK$5,900
Gold products EEEM HK$3,000
Platinum/Karat gold products HEKEER HK$1,700
Watches R HK$12,000

Overall p=g:)




. SSSG of gem-set jewellery in Mainland China stabilised from 3QFY2017
onwards, reflecting a recovery in fundamentals. Full year ASP at same
store level rose steadily to reach HK$6,200.

. SSSG of gold products rebounded since 2HFY2017. Full year ASP of gold
products in Mainland China was up by around 15%. The lift in ASP was
partly due to an increase in average international gold price of around 9%
year-on-year. The rest was resulted from an average weight gain per gold
product sold.

. As the luxury watch market recovered broadly in Mainland China, both
RSV and SSS of watches recorded a year-on-year growth.

Jewellery business
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FEIRM R E E SR E A ME SR 82017
MHEEE=FERKEE REBEEXEZR®E
o REEBHEFENZFTHEERIHE
6,2008 7T ©

ELEmAEHEERE2017FRFET¥F
BIEEA - PEANESERNEFFIHEE
EF#15% o FHEB EFIRD RHNFIREE
EERFLAN%  BAAHREEESER
WIS EE EARE

BETEABHEEERTSEEER B
ZEEREEHERFIIEEER -

KEEXH

RSV and POS by tier of cities BETRNESHEEERTES
228% 17.9%
12:3% % of RSV 9% of POS
33.3% ZEE ZTEH RSV YoY change  POS movement
1tk fhtk ZEERLZ TEHREH
[ | Tier | cities — &R A0.7% A8
54.4%
59.3% ] Tier Il cities — 44 v2.5% A47
Tier Il cities and others =M R HMt  v4.6% Al17
. Tier | and Il cities continued to be more resilient in RSV performance —BR_EHTNERAEAZRHBERRAE

thanks to the relatively stable fundamentals and consumer sentiment.

RSV and POS by operation model

- ARESEENKRRFERE -

BEEERXBONTEERTERM

% of RSV % of POS

32.8% 43.8% TEE TEY RSV YoY change  POS movement
it Mkt SEAERLEL ZEHEH
| ] Self-operated (Department store) v 8.8% v39
413% EEEED
38.1%
| Self-operated (Shopping mall) A13.1% A76
BE(BYHL)
33%
% 17.4% Self-operated (Standalone store) v13.8% v4
H¥(HHRE)
| ] Fi hised A1.4% A39
18.3% Franchse °
. Major net openings were in shopping malls with 76 net openings while 017 BFEENFRAEETERNBY O F

our footprint in department stores continued to reduce with a net closing
of 39 POS in FY2017.

. By RSV, the performance of shopping mall was also ranked best among all
operation models and channels illustrated above.

MR76ETEH MRREEARANTEHA
HERD  FRMETER -

REEENE  BYPLRELAEERARR
BHRRREE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis BB mE D

Self-operated Jewellery POS EEUETER
RSV per store by store age REREINEESTER
140%
129.5%
120%
100.9%
100%
87.1% A
FY2017 RSV per same store:
80% 73.2% HK$20.9 million®
20178 B E R R RS
60% °7o% BEE 200mmBLY
40%
20%
0%
Less than 2 years!” 2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more Total
DR2EFO 2B45F 426F 6Z8F 8FRULE st
. 3/2009 or before
POS opening date /& B 4/2015-3/2017 4/2013-3/2015 4/2011-3/2013 4/2009-3/2011 3/2009%% LA
POS BEE 281 234 310 144 350 1,319
% of POS ZEBMALL 21.3% 17.7% 23.5% 10.9% 26.6% 100.0%

I Ratio of annual RSV per store to RSV per same store (1) For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis (1) ERTREIENSEH SEERFEEERRE

BEFETEERSEREEHTEEZLA (2)  Value-added tax ("VAT") included Q) BEEBER

Average quarterly sales THEEHER

(HK$ million B & T)

31.7%

22.4% 26.6%

19.6% 21.7%
A 0

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q

4Q, being our peak season as driven by festive occasions such as
Chinese New Year and Valentine's Day, usually accounts for the highest
quarterly SSS contribution.

While FY2016 strayed away from this usual pattern, quarterly SSS
contribution in FY2017 was generally in line with normal seasonality
as fundamentals began to stabilise.

B FY2017 average quarterly SSS
2017 B E T EEREHE

Wl FY2016 average quarterly SSS
2016 FEFHIFEREHE

-O- FY2017 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

2017 B F EFEHERHFEHERNER

-~ FY2016 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

20168 B EREHERH FEHERNER

. ENEEEERBENFRBAGSHEES
HEEMNES  ZZEBEETHMREHE
TERSNEESRH -

. BE016 M BFE et TIEFNEN - BEF
EXRZBR 2017HRFENEEREHEE
EMEAHEEEENEELERR



E-commerce — Jewellery business

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

EFEl —KREEH

RSV by product RERBISHEEE
9.2%
[0)

M FY2016 FY2017 RSV YoY change
20168 BEE 20179 BEFE ZEERLEL

[ ] [ ] Gem-set jewellery Bk S #R 5 B A22.0%

| | Gold products EE&E R A47.0%

| Platinum/Karat gold products $4& K &M 435.6%

65.7% Overall 288 A41.4%

B X g
B

Unique daily visitors®™

PHSANEE — TEEHE"

364,000

Number of followers®

BEAH®

3,043,000

(1) Source from Chow Tai Fook e-shop, Tmall and JD.com

(2) Source from official Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and WeChat accounts

FY2017 e-commerce 2017HBEESFiH

RSV ZEE

A41.4%

3 30/ of respective RSV
. 0 (5T EE
(FY2016 201681 BIFE - 2.3%)
of respective retail sales volume

O9.3% imme

(FY2016 20168 BEE © 7.0%)

YoY change
Eilx4-414

ASP FHIEE

HKS1,200% T

(FY2016 20168BEE - HKS1,0005 7T)

YR B AAERRIEEE - RERRR
HER B AR - BAMIERMEE SRS
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Management Discussion and Analysis 2B mE DT

. We continue to integrate our online and offline resources to direct
traffic to our distribution channels empowered by digital marketing.

. Our e-commerce business growth accelerated in 2HFY2017, mainly
thanks to a strengthened co-operation with major online platform
partners.

. A notable example is our online order distribution initiatives with

JD.com and Tmall. Orders on online platforms are routed directly to our
physical POS nearby the customers. By mobilising our extensive
physical retail network, we can achieve full 020 interactions and
enhance customer experience by shortening delivery time and cost.

. We ranked 6™ in digital intelligence firm L2's “Digital 1Q Index Luxury
China 2017” and were also the top-ranked pure play jeweller on the list,
a global benchmark for digital performance of consumer brands. The
ranking is based on the overall performance in digital competence
across four dimensions, namely site and e-commerce, digital marketing,
social media and mobile and tablet among international fashion,
watches and jewellery brands.

BRPBEZSSELETER  ZABETS
HEREEITEIR o

B EEEBR 2017 BEETEEWME
TREMNER  FEHREMMETHEHEE
BEFEBENEIE-

ERRARRENAFR  RMERRMX
AR LTEDERTE - R EFAHET
EERBRXIBMEROINERTER - &M
EBYREANERZEMLS  EREXERE
RIEERA  EREENR LR TES » #
iR RS B R 5

BMEEHBEEEARAREAZEER
RSB RIBEEN [2017 PREIE S RBIEE
BB %6l TRFEBRSMWAIRER -
EBEBBRBERER - EREHTRE RS
EREREFEE BIEMSEE  ERXE
BRREEBEANASHENRSEIERRE
ME °

Dr. Adrian Cheng announced
collaboration with JD.com's founder,
Mr. Richard Liu at Shanghai K11 in
May 2017

BEEI 2017 5 5 AE LK
SEMERRAMALEREENES
L

Chow Tai Fook Super Brand Day on
JD.com on 11 May 2017 generated
record high daily sales
AXRBER2017F58 1 BERRBH
g S EHE AN S

Strategies S &

«  Stay selective in POS openings

« Continue store differentiation: roll out luxury, elegant and = - T, — — —
trendy style POS and revamp store image

«  Employ multi-brand strategy: launch new brands “Monologue”
and “SOINLOVE”

RIFBEMHRTEL

SHEETEREZR(L HREE SR BEHEREREE
IEHER

2 MAEERE  #EH [ Monologue | B [SOINLOVE | $T & k&
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Hong Kong, Macau and other markets A R REMTIS
Revenue EXRE
Revenue by operation model REEEXBTHEER

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31ALLFE
(HK$ million B &5&7T)

40,000
35,259
30,000
27,126 26,435 YoY change
22,021 [Bl34:-X(4
20,226——— Vv11.8%
20,000
96.0% o
95.3% o v11.7%
10,000
B Retail 2&
4.0% 4.7% 4.6%
0 A b 0 v13.2% [ Wholesale #tt3%
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

. Weak consumer sentiment and the change in purchase behaviour of . 017 BEE  HERRFEZIHEZRE

Mainland tourists continued to affect the sales performance during BRABBEBETRAREMEITE -
FY2017.
Hong Kong and Macau 8RR
RSV and SSSG by product RERBESNEEERFAEHEER
6.0%
10.9% 26.9%
FY2016 FY2017 RSV YoY change
4.5% 201681 E 2017 BEE TEERLZL
12.7%
302% [ | Gem-set jewellery PR S & 8 v24.8%
[ ] [ ] Gold products EEE v10.0%
56.2% [ ] Platinum/Karat gold products #1% K& EmR  v27.5%
- [ Watches $#&k A14.0%
SSSG of major products FEEMMREHEER

7.8% 19.2%

-11.9%

-16.0% -16.3%

-21.7%
-17.3% -17.4%

248% -23.8% -23.8%

-36.0%

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 .
Q Q q @ Q q Q q -O- Gem-set jewellery BREE $5E i 5 5

FY2016 FY2017
201681 E 20178 BB -O- Gold products E&E
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FY2017 FY2016

2017 (A BLE 2016 ST FE

SSSG  SSS volume growth ASP ASP

FE#HEER FEHEER FHEME FHEE

Gem-set jewellery REEREE HK$12,100

Gold products BEEEM HK$5,700

Platinum/Karat gold products e KEER HK$2,000

Watches EER HK$40,100
Overall =®Ee

. Despite sequential improvement in 2HFY2017, SSS performance of gem- . BEREHER017HRFETEFHELS

set jewellery in Hong Kong and Macau was still under pressure as affected
by a year-on-year decline in customer traffic. Customer traffic dropped by
20.3% year-on-year in 2HFY2017, yet has improved relative to THFY2017
with a traffic decline of 28.8% year-on-year. Gem-set jewellery ASP held
well at HK$12,000, similar to FY2016 level.

. SSSG of gold products in Hong Kong and Macau had a remarkable
rebound since 2HFY2017. Full year ASP of gold products rose by around
19% due to a combination of an increase in average international gold
price of around 9% year-on-year and an average weight gain per gold
product sold.

. The better RSV and SSS performance of watches was mainly due to the
general recovery of the luxury watch market and the launch of an

HEERARERINYE BERBRAKER
BEMHZREHEERBNAZESD < 20178 K
FET¥F  BERERFRD203% #2017
MHEE L¥FEERRFETHR288%E B AH
E o KBERENHTIIEERFEIFN 12,0008
7C 0 B22016 N E MK FAEE o

BEARBRMECERNREEHEERBE20178
BEETHEEHESHEEOS -ESERNEE
FHEBLEAN19%  ERLFHERSERE
AN % BMLEEESERNTHEEL
FHETER o

BHRNTEEREEHEE2017MBRFERE
BHETESEERERERELCND BARTE

enhanced instalment payment programme during FY2017. MRIVEUE ©
RSV and POS by area REHETNEEERTES
32.3% 67.7%
30.4%
% of RSV % of POS RSV YoY change POS movement
69.6% TEEGL TEHEL TEERLEL TEYEE

u u Touristic area® JEiEE® v19.7% v7
[ | [ | Other area Hftith & v4.0% -

(1 Touristic area includes Causeway Bay, Tsim Sha Tsui, Mong Kok, Yau Ma Tei, Shatin, Sheung Shui, Hong Kong
International Airport, Hong Kong Disneyland and Macau

Hong Kong and Macau industry performance®
in FY2017
ABRMIZR201 7B R EENTERR?

YoY change of retail sales of jewellery industry in Hong Kong
¥11.1%

EERE RS EERLL S
Number of Mainland visitors®
R AR

YoY change in
v1.9%

YoY change in
Macau

FORPIE EL L

Hong Kong
REBRELLLEE

A2 5%

) Being the value of retail sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong Kong, and was sourced
from Census and Statistics Department of Hong Kong

3) Source from Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of Hong Kong, and the Macau Statistics and Census Service

m REEaEREEE - RPE - A R - DE - Lk HEER
5 BRBLEYEERREM

Our Hong Kong and Macau performance
in FY2017
RMERMHN2017HREERNRE

YoY change in customer traffic at POS
v24.6%

ZEHERERLRL
RSV settled by China UnionPay/RMB
DHEIRYE, AREEHEZEEE

45 .8% (FY2016 20168 HEFE - 52.6%)

@ AHREE EEREAERINEENTEXHEMEE - WERA
BBBUFRE R

®3) BHREEEEEREARRREDRFIFTEEER



Touristic area in Hong Kong and Macau recorded a 19.7% drop in RSV,
compared to a decline of 22.3% last year, indicating that touristic area was
still under pressure in FY2017.

The percentage of RSV settled by China UnionPay or RMB to the total RSV
of Hong Kong and Macau market, a proxy for sales contribution from
Mainland tourists, reduced to 45.8% in FY2017 from 52.6% in FY2016. Yet,
such contribution remained stable from THFY2017.

Average quarterly sales

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

. ERRBRAREEBNEEETMHF197% kX
FETFE223%  REBREBRRRN 2017 REE
MARZE -

FERBEIARBLEECZEB(RRREFTEH
RiRENHEER) EEBRRMATSEATE
fE 2016 81 B & E 19 52.6% (% £ 2017 B BRE B
#945.8% o AR » FZAhEL B2 2017 I E L ¥ F
AL BT -

FHEEHER

(HK$ million B&#T)

32.2%

25.6%

v
22.4% 28.8%

21.8%
20.5% s6.1 596 5g3

21.6%

446 464

3Q, being our peak season as driven by Christmas and our annual mega

sales, usually accounts for the highest quarterly SSS contribution for Hong
Kong and Macau market.

[ FY2017 average quarterly SSS
2017 BEFEFHIEEREHE

Il FY2016 average quarterly SSS
2016 B EFIEEREHE

-~ FY2017 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

2017 ERESHE RN F EHEENER

-~ FY2016 quarterly sales contribution to annual sales

2016 B EFEHERH FEHEENER

FoEEEEERARFENRERY 8B
EMEERBEMTESNES  ZZEBREER
MREHEPERSHNTEER

Strategies K&

- Continue to optimise POS network while being opportunistic to store
openings in residential neighbourhood

Extend presence cautiously in overseas markets

Reach out to business prospects in soliciting wholesale business
inthe US.

BEBCEERASL EAREMITERRMNEFHREE
FEMFEI T SET XS
EXERRM IR
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Hearts On Fire Hearts On Fire
. We have been expanding the presence of Hearts On Fire primarily in SIS . EM—EZBASEANTERKAIEHearts
and CIS format through our extensive retail network. OnFirefWIRE > X AIERIERIEREE
FES
POS network TERBEL

During FY2017

31.3.2015 31.3.2016 2017 A & 31.3.2017

Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total

st st o b TR st
POS TEH 12 19
Mainland China hE R it 2 5
Taiwan B 8 12
United States ESE| 2 2
SIS and CIS EHERENEE - 136
Mainland China FEIR i - 118
Hong Kong &8 - 18
Macau pEd - -
Other markets Hithhiz - -
Retailer locations EETE 524 544
North America ik 3= 367 362
Others Hith 157 182

Roll-out plan and synergies # & 5t &) & % [ 31 &

Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau H B A it + & & /BP9
« We strive for further realising the synergies from the acquisition by
leveraging our retail network.

- In FY2017, Hearts On Fire products contributed 2.2% and 3.6% of the
RSV of our diamond products sold in Mainland China and in Hong Kong
and Macau, respectively.

EERMNZBERSE  IBE-PERWBERENHRENE

- 2017 BB E © Hearts On Fire E 2 BIE FR IR Bl A EE R B KB E
HENERERTEEZ22%K3.6% °

United States 5
«  Given our well-established relationship with retailers, we will continue our efforts in wholesale business.

«  During FY2017, we also focused on brand building and group integration.
- BEAMEIHHCELIRENEBRR  RMOSEBEBEMEES -
2017 T RPAEERRIEEIRAIES -
Taiwan & i
- 1POS was closed during FY2017.
2017 AR FEXREERA T 1 ETEE -
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@
— o)
CTF Watch AKX 1EiE gk =
POS network FEBBE z
Hk
During FY2017
31.3.2015 31.3.2016 2017 AL E 31.3.2017
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
“st “st 8 fn By b b st
POS TEH 135 125 7 (11) (4) 121
Mainland China R E A th 132 122 6 (11) (5) 117
Hong Kong &8 3 3 - - - 3
Macau TP - - 1 - 1 1
SIS and CIS EHRERENER 48 42 - (8) (8) 34
Mainland China FEIR 10 9 - (5) (5) 4
Hong Kong BE 29 26 - (2) (2) 24
Macau ped 9 7 - (1) (1) 6

Market performance 5 &R &

Mainland China 5 [ P9 it

« In Mainland China, revenue contribution of watches increased from
5.4% in FY2016 to 5.8% in FY2017. Revenue grew by 5.7% year-on-year
at constant exchange rate, a sign of broad recovery in the luxury watch
market.

. PERRYEER S E AL L H 2016 BIBUE E Y 5.4% F £ 2017 T EE
H)5.8%  RIEERTE  HEBEERS7% RRBEEHRTEEE
BEt o

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% ~ j#1F9 & H fth i 15

- In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue contribution of watches increased from 4.3% in FY2016 to 5.6% in
FY2017. Revenue rose by 14.4% year-on-year thanks to the general recovery in the luxury watch market as well as the
launch of an enhanced instalment payment programme during FY2017.

BB BAREMTISNEREEEELR 2016 M BREEN43% FHE 20170 HEEN6% -  TEREZSEXTEZES
BRIEHECNDBANRETE > 2017 M EEL IR FIER 14.4% ©
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Operations and Management
SENEE

Leveraging the strength of our business model and employing state-of-the-art technology,
we spearheaded innovation to deliver extraordinary products, services and experience to our
customers. Our “Smart+” initiatives had also supported us in fostering 020 interactions,
further enhancing our operational efficiency and staying responsive to the ever-changing
retail landscape.

BERMNVEBERANR B - RARLETAN  SEFEREELNER - REMESR -
HMB [Smart+ | SFEITN —EXERMNEGLETEE - #BRMREAEZERNR - A RKEE
ZENTEMHRE

Product management EmeE
Product price range and RSV contribution EmBERISHRTEEER
Contribution of high-end luxury jewellery to respective RSV ZEREZTEEER

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3A31ALLFE

17.8%

15.0% 15.2%
12.3% 12.6%

4.3%

0\3-&& 2.6% 2.4% 2.3%
O— —0O '®)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

-0~ Mainland China FEl A ith

-O- Hong Kong and Macau & 7 2 J&F9
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Mainland China Hong Kong and Macau
RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery RSV by price range — Gem-set jewellery

HER =8 RRP
REREEININSEE — KERREH REXEESNEEE — KERREH
0.7%

4.4% N\ 49.5% 14.8% 18.7%
RN R

FY2016 FY2017 HKS
20168 BEE 20170 BEE B
16.0% | | 10,000
u u 10,001-30,000
u 30,001-100,000
[ 100,001-500,000
28.1% \22.3% [ n >500,001

Wedding gem-set jewellery RSV

as a % of total gem-set jewellery RSV
BERERREHETEE
HERKEEREHTEEZATLL

51.0%

(FY2016 20168EEFE - 51.8%)

ensed gem-set jewellery RSV

2 % of total gem-set jewellery RSV
HKEEHREHSEE

ERGEERAHTEEZEIL

.8%

016 20168HFE - 15.0%)
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CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK

CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK A KRFET MARK

. Inan effort to differentiate our product offerings, we brought in a disruptive . AEBRMNERASEEEZTE  KMAEES
innovation, CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond brand, in Mainland China, REFEAL  EERRMELBEEAFRNAK
Hong Kong and Macau in August last year. It was a breakthrough on the BTMARKSE A M RET4Ts I = "W TH
current industry practice by introducing the "4Ts” concept. RIKYATZE1E I -

« Each CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond is inscribed with a “T MARK” - BERAKRET MARKHE A I B 4K Z) 7 H R B 7
marking by our patented nano-inscription technology with no chemical ZI%8 [TMARK] ENGE » TELEBIRERY) -
residue.

+  The marking, essentially a set of unique serial numbers, serves as a resume - HREAB-EBENES GECSKEBELERME

of the diamond with records of procurement, cutting and polishing, BEESEBEXNTHEE YEIRITE - N - £
marking, authentication, design and production along our vertically BRI EHENBR -

integrated business model.

2% of . 2017EBABFE > AKRKETMARKEREKMAER
ong WUREBRBRACEBAERTEED B 28%
§5.2%

«  InFY2017, CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK products contributed 2.8% and
]

the RSV of our diamond products sold in Mainland Chinajand in Ho

and Macau, respectively.

- Since the launch in August last year, 75 and 27 POS in Mainland Chin@land in - e =F8 AL » A KAET MARKE f IE i 75 {8
Hong Kong and Macau, respectively have been carrying\CHOW. TAH] (FK FEANZSERER27EEERRMASES -
T MARK products. .

« We expect to further expand its presence to more than 300 selected POS in < FEF2018 BB EARAT 0 B AIET MARKE @ 1%
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau by the end of FY2018. BAZHERN - HERRMEB300EFRSE
BAEE -

Patented nano-inscription technology
with no chemical residue
RAMKZAFERN - TELE
IRERYD



In order to provide a new and exclusive experience
to our customers, we revolutionised the current
industry practice by introducing the “4Ts”
concept that enables us “To Tell The Truth”
backed by our vertically integrated business

model.

AOBEERHEZAREENER  RMUER

i’“—\ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘tﬁﬁﬁ% ¥ MEE ATEE IR 4Ts |
R B RTRYIT 18 o

TRANSPARENT a7 41

Unconcealed history from
sourcing to retail sales

HIRBEHE - ERERLAH

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

TRACEABLE a2

Traceable origin of CHOW TAI FOOK
T MARK diamond

JEIR#RET MARK i 7 7T 38 i ) 3 FE

COLOUR
He

CLARITY

TRUTHFUL T2

Credible source behind
each CHOW TAI FOOK
T MARK diamond

HSEEAKXETMARKER
BEAEEIRIE

THOUGHTFUL T2&

New and pleasant customer
experience and services

AT RMRAE P RRERAN RS

#ToTellTheTruth

pC I

Procurement Cutting and polishing Marking
g DEIRATE ENEe

El CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK diamond viewer /& X8 T MARK 8 A 22 & {&
Bl Roadshow in Chongging, Mainland China 4 5 B 3t B BB 21T B0
H Microfilm featuring “4Ts” concept on social media platforms i3t X 1£ 88 7 & & k9 [4Ts | =

HER

Design Production
R sUE

K& OPERATIONS AND MANAGEME
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Hearts On Fire collections

“Hearts On Fire by Stephen Webster — White Kites” Collection

. During FY2017, we collaborated with acclaimed London-based jewellery
designer Stephen Webster and launched “Hearts On Fire by Stephen
Webster — White Kites” Collection.

. This collection, inspired by the magnificence of the white-tailed kite, further
elevates our design offerings with greater variety in both high-end fashion
and bridal jewellery.

IEARTS ON FIR

-r‘\ ."\'
L% L
Q (o)
| ]

» O
%\ A
\:\ &
B 4
1 M
A1 IA:!'
R 7 3 4
| I
A yed
\'\ o
0 &
Y 4 & il
Y ; o
b i, 18
) ik g
l‘ ﬁr
&J‘ rLT‘
B, &
0 g
*i‘ ¢f
B &
\_(_\. (‘.IJ
e r
Q [

Hearts On Fire & 51

[Hearts On Fire by Stephen Webster - White Kites ]

#51

R2017BBEE » RMEEZMBRERFTE
Stephen Webster #F &1F - #H [Hearts On Fire
by Stephen Webster — White Kites | &% ©

ZRVUERNORERARER  E—FIR
ARMWERRE S EERERBEKREN
RAEREE -

Hearts On Fire “Triplicity” Collection
Hearts On Fire [ Triplicity | &%l

Introduced during FY2017, this unique
collection by Hearts On Fire Director of Design
Ilaria Lanzoni takes inspiration from the city
skyline in New York. The perfectly cut diamonds
highlight the glowing elegance and trendsetting
style of modern women.

WA FR20178 BRE E# H - H B Hearts On
Fire 3R 5T 48 E= llaria Lanzoni Z F £ » LI K
MAZRTER BITENEAEHENR 2
ERRZEAIENER -



Continual collaboration with The Walt Disney Company
HERETERARBESE

Chow Tai Fook Disney “Beauty and the Beast” Collection

. The Chow Tai Fook Disney “Beauty and the Beast” Collection transforms
the movie characters into sophisticated ornaments and diamond
jewellery pieces.

BAXEaLR [ EXHETR]IRT
AXEELTRIEXZEFER | ZIEER A ANMREREHAH R R
BAREEM -

Opening of POS in Hong Kong Disneyland Resort and Disneytown of Shanghai

Disney Resort
During the year, we further strengthened our partnership with The Walt
Disney Company by opening POS in Hong Kong Disneyland Resort and

Disneytown of Shanghai Disney Resort.

POS in Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
REBATEREEREZTES

POS in Disneytown of Shanghai Disney Resort
RbgEtEEREETENMEZZTES

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

Chow Tai Fook “Star Wars™” Collection

. The Chow Tai Fook “Star Wars™” Collection
brings back the popular Star Wars characters as
meticulously crafted ornaments and jewellery
pieces.

BAXEIE2RXE™] RTI
BRBEIERKRE™ R #-RERKEE
HAGREREHNMRKEEH -

REBBTRELEERERLBELTREREAT
RBNERRTERM
FR RMEEF[HBTELRAMNBRENE  RE
BHTELEERER LBELEERER
TRNERRETEH -

=

a7

EEREE OPERATIONS AND MA
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Franco-Chinese Branding Forum L mbd S g IE

. In April 2017, we participated in a prestigious event, The Third Franco-
Chinese Branding Forum in Paris. As a company of rich Chinese culture,
we are delighted to leverage this platform to exchange ideas and
inspirations with up-and-coming designers from the West.

. During the event, we also signed up with 6 French designers for the
collaboration of new collections which shall be launched later in FY2018.

R20175F48 > RMERBRSE-HRE[E
ZEPERESERE] - FR-BEATEX
ez RMRECUREEABRLIHEEE
S8 B RETRI R G MER -

BREBER  HMFHEe B iBRMEES
EHE - ZRER2018BFESFERELHE
REN

FEEPEARERILE
3 EDITION DU FORUM BONJOUR BRAND
T PARIS UNESCO/ BY BATNRNTAN

Customer experience BEEER
. Effective brand management and strong customer loyalty lead to the BN mEEBRNBsSNEF HERELAER

successful long-term development of the Group. As customers are
becoming more sophisticated and well-informed, we are committed to
offering personalised and unique shopping experiences to customers.

BURDBERRERRE - ERBFIRIER
Mk TEETHRITE RMEBHIAEER
FEMCMER TR B YR -
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=
Store differentiation EEERL %
(%]
. In response to the evolving retail landscape, 3 POS styles are available . HETHEENWZERE  RPABLSEEHTE 3
to meet different customer expectations: luxury, elegant and trendy H3EFEUDEEETENEE: 2315F E
= s A o
styles. B SHRREFEHER - o
O
. The luxury and elegant style POS, with more personalised product . FERERFERERHEAEMLCNERAS Eﬂ
A i
offerings and services, bring about a privileged experience to customers LR BERBHNWETIRHEMNBEYE %
who strive for exceptional excellence. These stores are mainly located in B AEREEFRETERNBEETHETE %
Tier I and Il cities where customer expectations tend to be higher. BN —S8KR &G e

. For the trendy style POS, we have refreshed the store image. The new . BMENERIE  BOBEHEBREBRARA—F -

display, apart from looking more refreshing, segments the merchandise BRI EERFEEN  FREGTEESIRIIE
display area by different themes of customer needs such as wedding, DN EHEEEE (IR -~ B~ KHE o

fashion, classic, etc.

Trendy style POS with refreshed store image
TR 2B RE

Bxw

CHOW TAI Foow

Elegant style POS Luxury style POS
ERFERE BEERE
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. We are in process of executing our multi-brand strategy to further . BMEFEE—RR-BHMETZRERE
diversify our product offerings and enhance customer experience ERE—SLEERAGRREABEEER
primarily in Tier | and Il cities.

. “Monologue”, targeting young generations, offers fashion-oriented . [Monologue ] $t 1 F & A5 @ RHEFIFIEE
jewellery at lower ASP. As at 31 March 2017, there were 3 Monologue REMNEEKREE - R2017FE38318  #
POS. & 318 Monologue ZE % o

. As the wedding market was blooming, we introduced “SOINLOVE” to . MRIEEMSBE WUt HERBEREHAR
target soon-to-be-wed couples. The first POS was opened in May 2017. [SOINLOVE] - ERZERMN 2017 F 5 AR -

OMNOLOGUE
g

E

SOINLOVE in Wuhan, Mainland China
AR B 9 it X Y SOINLOVE
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Wedding Gift Card EEEEF

. During the financial year, we engaged celebrity couple Pal Sinn and . RABREE  BMESAXRGBE T XHMHARE
Paisley Hu to market our brand new Wedding Gift Card via social media HEeEHELZTNERESF UHELER
and online channels. RBRLERESE-

. The card provides our customers with a through-train convenience of . FRESFIEARMIETRESEEEN

EEREE OPERATIONS AND MANAGE

various wedding-related privileges and promotions, such as jewellery, BENEENERTE %S B RERE
wedding banquets, overseas trips and photography services. HE—INEREEE -
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Customer relationship management

BEREREE

. Our membership programme plays an important role in supporting our EEHEERMNEKERAHEEZ - AT
business growth. To stay connected with our members, we provide them EREFBETHE RMEHEESShVET
with an exclusive experience that matches with their privileged status. BV B B RS o
Mainland China [ Py
Number of members: BEHAE 1,015,000
% of members in top 3 tiers: SKREBERBEEMNL 3.6%
Repeat purchase as a % of RSV: BHEGMZEEZAEDL
All members frEgs 27.2%
Members in top 3 tiers SKEBERREE 8.7%
Hong Kong and Macau EERRM
Number of members: ZEYE : 590,000
% of members in top 3 tiers: SREEHNREENL 2.4%
Repeat purchase as a % of RSV: BHELZEEZADT
All members EgE8 29.5%
Members in top 3 tiers SREERBIEES 11.5%

Hearts On Fire x Stephen Webster jewellery preview luncheon

Hearts On Fire x Stephen Webster (kBB 2B & F &

Mother's Day flower workshop

BREBEBE TS



Production and operations

Our vertically integrated business model gives us centralised and tight
control over the processes from raw material procurement, design,
production to marketing and sales through our extensive retail network.
It allows us to monitor and control the quality of our products and to
respond quickly to customers’ needs and preferences.

Procurement

Steady supply of raw materials and first-class production capabilities are
very important to us in maintaining our competitive edge.

Our excellent capabilities and reputation in processing and trading of raw
materials, together with our long-term relationship with suppliers,
safeguard our stable supply of raw materials.

Product development

With our award-winning jewellery designers and experienced craftsmen,
we aim to refine traditional craftsmanship and techniques in design,
sampling and production processes by the application of the latest
technology.

Production

We continue to develop, upgrade and improve our production facilities
and retain skilled craftsmen and technicians to maintain our position in
the industry.

During FY2017, we further improved our production processes by
automation and the use of artificial intelligence.

Products sold by production mode — Jewellery products

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

TEREE

EMNEERSEBER - seRPMEHEER
REEMBREE - R5H - 4£E - UREEANE
ERBETTSEBERHEEIDNEMRBE
TEMNEERERNERE  UARDEERR

R
RENREMEHER SN EERIHREM
ERHRFEZBRER -

EMERMBNIRRZTEGES S
MEE mEEEENRMSFEE R
RIZFRIAVIRE HLFE

FE vm Bl 3%

EMZERREFNKRERAMETERNT
F- 81FAGEHBRBEERNIEURE
Bt B R A E T R RO -

5B

BMEERE BRAKRKELEEREMNRER
BREY T B 4 B DA HESS AT 26 A9 A3z o

017HBEE  RMEAEBBILERGERALE
B E-—SUELEEIFRF-

BEEERXBOMCEER —HEER

54.0%

FY2016 FY2017
20168 N E 2017 EE
46.0% 43.6%
42.8% 40.6%
57.2% 59.4%
56.4%

% of retail
salesvolume % of RSV
fHEmtt ZEEMEL
L In-house production RIER4 &
u Outsourced production M4 &
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Products sold by production mode — Gem-set jewellery

BREERABONECEER —HEHREN

FY2016
20168 BN E

FY2017
20178 NEE
31.8%

N\

33.9%

N\

53.7% 51.6%

68.2% 66.1%

Supply chain

. We strive to enhance the operation capabilities of our supply chain. The
Logistics and Distribution Centre (the “Centre”), situated in our Shunde
production site, has commenced operation.

. Equipped with an automated warehousing system, the Centre extensively
applies the Internet of Things (IoT) and item-level RFID technology to
enhance the overall efficiency of stock movements and distribution. Such
technology also streamlines the storing, sorting, packing and delivery
processes, and provides real-time security surveillance.

. The Centre won the Productivity and Quality Grand Award at 2016 Hong
Kong Awards for Industries, as well as the Merit Award in Retail and
Supply Chain Management at Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards 2016.

% of retail
salesvolume % of RSV
HEMmtt TEEGL
| In-house production R4 E
u Outsourced production SN 4 &
ik FE

EAMBORAMEBENEERLD - WRIEEE
EEBNYREREE SO (TZF0]) A
BiE o

ZHROREBBLRATRSG  B2EAYEEA
(loT) & 55 G 4% S48 S 5838 Bl (RFID) 51l » 1A 7
FERORBENZENE  FEBETHE
P BEREREIF AHREHERRKAR
By o

ZHROEREERIFER AEIREE
KEE > WEBE2016 B AEMRBAREAEN
TERHEEEEARIERE -

RFID-embedded sorter can automatically sort the products to the designated POS
EERFDEMMNARXTTRB I REREIEENTER

Automated Logistics and Distribution Centre in Shunde, Mainland China

R E R IEEREN B BWRREE S0
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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park BAXBEHEXILERE

. Since FY2015, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan (the “Jewellery . B2 BEERL  WRRENAREBHREX
Park”) has been serving as a pioneer site for improvement initiatives of LtEXR(EXE) —BEALBEM  HITE
our production processes. EIFKBRER -

. In addition to the production function, the e-commerce function of the . MREEINGEN EXENESIEHEIETR
Jewellery Park has gradually commenced operations in FY2017. 2017 BFEEZRSHIREE

EEREE OPERATIO

. In our Jewellery Park, we are committed to promoting sustainable . EXEYNEEERASENEEREE - &

practices in operations and production. With our “Clean Production” BEMIMEEEEINRA KMEERER
principle, we implement stringent controls to monitor the potential BRESEMBEETRE  WER - E§7}<&)§¢w
environmental issues such as air emission, wastewater discharge and HRMEE -

waste disposal.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park — April 2017
BRBHRAMLERE —2017F4A

Data Intelligence Space HIEER=EH

. Embracing big data analytics in formulating and tracking our strategic . EPREBRTPEANBRIEIBEEEE[ - £

moves, we established Data Intelligence Space in both Hong Kong and AREESNRGERBH KGR - SIEE
Mainland China. The Space is managed by professional team tasked with HEEEHEXEEBKEE  RAHZEREMEDL
data analytics management spearheading various strategic corporate ¥HEERFEETHESTER -

projects and initiatives.

Data Intelligence Space — Headquarters in Data Intelligence Space — Production Management Centre in Data Intelligence Space — Hong Kong
Shenzhen, Mainland China Shenzhen, Mainland China BEBEEl — &8
BEEEEM — PERRYIEE HEEREE — PERNERYIEEEEH O
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Human resources management

Number of employees by reportable segment

ANEREE
A 2R BN ETHE

18.0%

Total number of employees & T#%

29,450

YoY change
Eilx4-214

v8.5%

[ | Mainland China F B Ay ith

82.0%

Number of employees by function

B Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8 + BFI R Hitbihi5

BERERSHEIHE

19.0% 62.8%

B Sales$HE
18.2% ]

Production £ &

M General and administration —f& &% 1T BX

Training and development

We value our staff and believe their professional and personal development
form a major pillar of our sustainable growth. Our talent development is
supported by our all-rounded training opportunities which aim at encouraging
our employees to unleash their potentials by sharpening their skills.

Chow Tai Fook Academy

. Established with a mission to provide our employees with a wide variety
of training programs.

. 3,800 courses were provided with an aggregate of 714,000 training hours
during FY2017.

Accredited courses

. Gemstone courses recognised by the Qualifications Framework of the
Hong Kong Government and Gemological Institute of America were
offered to our employees.

Strategic Acumen and Ambidextrous Leadership Programme
. A training programme for senior management was conducted by Ivey
Business School of the University of Western Ontario in August 2016.

. Through sharing of inspirational success stories, group discussions and
presentations, the competence of our senior management in strategic
planning was enhanced, so as to grasp the business opportunities in the
highly competitive environment nowadays.

= 5l B B R

EMERET  HEMMANEERBAZRREEMR
BRENERER - RMREEAZIHSUEA
T#R EESBETRRSKEE - BEERE -

FX &5 A 2k
R B H R HETRETRGEAEIRE -

. R2017 I EREERME T 3,8001ERE » $Z3IBFE
&+ 714,0003R 8 o

RummE
METRREEUNAERBRXERERN
RENERRE -

CUUT RS bt PR

2016 % 8 A 78 2 K B& K 2 Ivey Business School %
SREBEBRMIEINRE -

BBAZRIINSE  NMEFNWREH  BAS
REEBHMKEENEN  BURBRKHRFH
ZURIRIB P ICIER# o



Smart Learning

An online learning platform, iLearning, was implemented to encourage
continuing studies. A new smartphone App, “Smart Learning”, was
launched in April 2017, facilitating our staff’s learning at any time and
any place.

Hearts On Fire Champion Club

Staff who has completed the Hearts On Fire training course becomes a
member of Hearts On Fire Champion Club. An award ceremony was held
in September 2016 to recognise our winners in the Hearts On Fire 2016
Championship on their efforts and support.

The five staff who have achieved the highest level of sales target are
entitled to participate in a 4-day training to be held in Las Vegas at Hearts
On Fire University, an educational seminar designed to enhance sales and

customer service skills, in October 2017.

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

g-8¥8
BRI TR LEBEFAilearning BB T#H
EEE o BIEES THERMEMES > 2017F 48
BHEETNERETFREREXE - 8T8

Hearts On Fire Champion Club
5E X Hearts On Fire 35 HI:R 12 19 8 T & X A Hearts
On Fire Champion Club I E{ & ° R 2016 F 9 A &2
T2 P ELE » LLFR 5 T Hearts On Fire 2016 1t
REERFALHBENS IREF -

KM BENRSHEEEMNEFTE TN 2017
10 A 2 B2 Hearts On Fire A 22 A H7 Hi 4 hn Hy
BB ARKIEI > WL EHR A EREANE
BREHE I MR 2 AT o
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Financials
H HE AR,

Benefitting from the sales rebound and operating leverage in 2HFY2017, our profitability remained
relatively stable year-on-year and exhibited improvement when compared to THFY2017. We strive
to maintain an optimal capital structure and capital efficiency in creating long-term value and return
to our shareholders.

ZER2017HRFETHFFHELAREEN R RPNBREDZRFEFTRE > L2017
MBFELF¥FEHRESHE RMBBIERSENELARBRYE  ARRAERBER
JSAEIE:
Profitability 2R gE

Core operating profit? by reportable segment

BRUERSPDE SN EELEHF

Overall 52

For the year ended 31 March EE3 31 AL FE For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 A31 AL FE

(HKS million B & T)

29.2% 28.9%
O)—

28.5%

S % % 1400 3777
—— 20.5% 20.1% 3,000 2513 2,006
o ——O0— —0 2,500 ' 1,782 2,026
2000 1527 1,686
1,500 1,074
1,000 .
15
10.4% 8.9% 9.1% 500
0
2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

-O- Core operating profit margin®
FBEERENEY

-~ Adjusted gross profit margin®
EREBHERNE"

Mainland China (2HFY)
AR A it (B T 3 )

B Mainland China (THFY)
R A it (BB L &)

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (2HFY)
B RFIRHEAMTIE GIBEETHE)

[l Hong Kong, Macau and other markets (1HFY)
B RFIREAMT IS GIBFEEL¥EF)

~()- Selling and distribution costs and general and administrative
expenses (“SG&A”) as a % to revenue
SHER D HRAUR —RRTBE X ([HERTEE X)) Frk
EEEROL

Mainland China 5 i Py it Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &% ~ (P9 & H i 5 15

For the year ended 31 March B Z3831HILEE For the year ended 31 March B E3A31HILEFEE

29.1% 29.2% 29.7% 29.2% 28.5%
O— —O— —0 O— 26.7%
19.8% 20.0% 21.4% 22.0%

5 o— %% 8% O
) 40
1 1%%\0\0
7.4%

y 11.5%
5.3%

O
10.0% 10.0%

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017
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1HFY HFY

THFY2016 2HFY2016 THFY2017 2HFY2017 YoY change YoY change

2016 2016 2017 2017 MBEE MBEE

BHEE BREE MBEE BHEE L% T

Half yearly performance YLEERR t¥F T¥% g TE G51%-1(4 51% 1[4
Revenue EXE 28,124 28,468
Adjusted gross profit” EREBHEFRO 8,038 8,329
Adjusted gross profit margin® EHEENEFFED 28.6% 29.3%
Other income HetA 166 140
SG&A HERTHAX (5782) (5,841)
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHE S 20.6% 20.5%

EXBEAL

Core operating profit? FEREER 2422 2,628
Core operating profit margin® ITELLEREY 8.6% 9.2%

(1)

(2)

Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised
hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of adjusted gross
profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its core businesses

Mainland China

Mainland China was our main profit contributor and accounted for over
75% of the Group's core operating profitin FY2017.

Thanks to the business turnaround in 2HFY2017, core operating profit
delivered a 13.7% growth in 2HFY2017, resulting in a 6.3% growth for
the full year.

In terms of profitability, adjusted gross profit margin was uplifted by 50
basis points in FY2017 primarily due to margin improvement on gem-set
jewellery.

Coupled with a reduction in operating expenses, core operating profit
margin of Mainland China improved by 150 basis points to 11.5%.

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets

Similarly, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets recorded a growth of 8.1%
in core operating profit during 2HFY2017, compared to a decline of 81.1%
in THFY2017. 2HFY2017 core operating profit contributed around 85% of
the respective segment profit in FY2017.

On the other hand, adjusted gross profit margin dropped by 180 basis
points mainly due to an increase in gold products sales mix and jewellery

trading income.

Core operating profit margin fell by 210 basis points to 5.3% on a full year
basis. 2HFY2017 core operating profit margin improved to 7.9%, up by
610 basis points from 1.8% in THFY2017, as business stabilised and the
benefit of operating leverage kicked in.

(1)

()

EABRNERRERERNER R FFREARABIREGERTEH
MR T ESEENRERETEIR(KE) WE - AQRMERER
BEPEER T RECERAREBNERIBE

FEEERFI R EBEEER R REARMHRELRH - 5L
AEENEFRAMBUENAE  AEERITHRAY  ADEEREL
ERRBEHEEM T MALERBREOEXBNRRIES

R P it

HEIAE AR MERETRR - R 2017 B F
EEAEBETELLERBB75% -

FER2077HBFEETEFEBKEFH > 20178
BEETHENTELLENRB13.7%ER
2FAIBB63%ER -

MEBERNENTS 2017 HEELAZRENE
FMEEFHSOEEY FEFRNAGEREREH
WEREEFNE -

MEEERET TR REAHNEELEEEF
T FFH150EEEE11.5% °

R BEMREMTS

B &8 BAREMTENEETLLERN
R2O017HBREETHFEREBI%ER M
2017 BN B F BT PR 81.1% © 2017 BIBUE
ETHENEBLEEFIE LD IBH 2017 BT
FERAIL 85% o

S—HHE KRBRENERETE 180EEE
TEHRECERHEEMLRKEESRA L
FHEREL -

PENFTELEGRETRE210EERE53% °
SERERBEREENRS  TELEERNE
H20177BEEE¥FMW18% EF610EER
Z2017HBEETHEMN7.9% °
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Group

At group level, core operating profit margin improved sequentially from
7.9% in THFY2017 to 9.9% in 2HFY2017 due to the sales rebound and
operating leverage in 2HFY2017.

Gross profit margin

Unrealised hedging loss/(gain)

. REBRER  TER2017HHFEETEFHER
FREBNG  FELEERNEH2017HBREE
FEER79%EFHE2017HBEE T EEHI9.9% °

ERE

KRR EhEE ()

For the year ended 31 March HZE3ANALFE 2015 2016 2017
Gross profit margin ERZE 29.7% 27.6% 29.2%
Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) on gold loans =& {E & RSB PEE (k) (0.5)% 1.3% (0.7)%
Adjusted gross profit margin KREENER=E 29.2% 28.9% 28.5%

Unrealised hedging loss/(gain) for the year represents the net effect of (i)
the reversal of the loss/(gain) recorded due to the timing difference in
recognising the effect of long and short position in gold when we take a
snapshot position at the end of the previous financial year; and (ii) the
loss/(gain) arising from such timing difference at the end of the current
financial year.

We use gold loans (short position in gold) to hedge against the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). While the long-term
effect of long and short positions in gold is expected to net out each
other through the sales of gold products, a loss/(gain) may arise due to a
short-term timing difference between the time when a loss/(gain) on gold
loans is recorded in the cost of goods sold and the time when sales of
hedged gold inventories are recognised, when we take a snapshot
position at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in adjusted gross profit margin

FRARSRETER (KRS EOBERN E—
B BRFETEERERESHRAERANE
2R EFTEENEE (W) 5 i) 1 E AT
BEEHAER BHENBBE=MEENE
B () WERE -

EMAAESERE (ESXR) HESFE (R
THE)NERKE HBRABSHARNRES
EEMEEELEESERNE RS Y
BEBARANBRERRME - SFABEREHE
SEEFE (KR HEHTESFENHE
CHIEEEENEEE #MAKEELS
B/ () -

BABRKMENEZES

Year ended 31 March E{£3A31HIEFE

30.0%

29.5%

29.0%

28.5%

28.0%

27.5%

27.0%

28.9% 0.8%

0.4% 28.5%

2016 2017

At group level, adjusted gross profit margin was reduced by 40 basis
points year-on-year primarily as sales contribution of gold products
increased.

B Change in product mix
EnAs®s

Change in gross profit margin by product
RERBINENEEE

REBERH SHBROEFRZFTR0E
BE TEHRNESEREEGLEARS -



London gold price RS &{E
(US$ per ounce X T8 7))

1,400
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Average of T-120 days refers to the average gold price of previous 120 days on rolling basis, being a proxy of the
average price of our hedged gold inventories. Average of T-120 days was used for FY2016 and FY2017

Changes in hedging mechanism

.

We regularly review our gold hedging mechanism and during the year,
we decided to use a more targeted hedging approach to enhance
effectiveness after considering the below factors:

(i) Higher reliance has been placed on Mainland China operations
where seasonality plays a more prominent role.

(i)  There has been a higher proportion of consigned inventory due to
inventory ownership unification programme.

(iii)  Arelatively low gold price level has been seen in recent years.

Under the new approach, our gold inventory is classified as (i) base
inventory, (ii) seasonal inventory, and (i) consigned inventory and others.

Seasonal and consigned inventories are 100% hedged as they are more
short-term and volatile in nature and usually have thinner margins. By
taking a fully hedged position, our profit margin could be protected.

Base inventory, which is the inventory needed for the normal course
of business, is regarded as our long-term cost of capital. Short-term
fluctuation in commodity price is not a concern to our continuing
operations. Thus, no hedging is applied on base inventory. As at 31 March
2017, base inventory accounted for around 75% of gold inventory
balances.

With this approach, the hedging ratio would change from a constant 70%
to a floating ratio ranging from 20-50%. With a lower hedging ratio,
volatility on the reported earnings and finance costs arisen from gold
loans would be reduced.

This new approach has been gradually implemented since 2HFY2017. The
hedging ratio was around 35% as at 31 March 2017. Full implementation
of the new hedging mechanism is expected in FY2018.
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London gold price RS &{E

—— Average of T-120 days T-120K F15{E"

(1)

T-120 RFHEEBEEM 20 XNESYE  AERRRMACHEHE
SFEHFIIMEE 2016 B FE R 2017 FRFEIFEAT-120 K F
HE
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EMEMRAESEIES - Fr o BOUKE
BUTHEER  REUABRSSHEHENEHEN
RAEMNY

O HEERBEBORERS - HEHS0
FONYEEREE -

) G- FEEARHEESEE L
0E -

(i) EFESERKTHEERE -

EHAAT  BEFEAIHOEREFE - (i)
ZHMFE ki) FEFERHM -

BN EHMURTEFEHF100%E 4 - 15
HRZEFEMERREERKE » ERER
T—RBE - BREFEET2EH TG TR
BERMAEFRIR -
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BB FEE RPN ECEERERE
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SG&A SHE RITHRX
SG&A by reportable segment RAZBROBEITHHE RITHRX

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 831 ALLFE
(HKS million B & TT)

YoY change
14,000 5154:-5(4
12,344
12,000 11,623
10,307— V11.3%
10,000
soon 60.7% 0
' 56.8% v12.9%
6,000
4,000
5000 39.3% 42.2% 43.2% v9.1% B Mainland China REIFit
0 M Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8 + 8P R b5
2015 2016 2017
SG&A to revenue ratio HERITHRZIGE XML E
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 31 AL EE
(HKS million & T)
025 20.5% 20.1%
14,000 1 O_%O\O YoY change
12,344 [Eil24:-2(4
11,623 e
12,000 -O- Asa % of revenue Fi{E & 2B E DL
10,307—— V11.3%
10,000 W Staff costs B TR
V¥8.5% -
8,000 B Concessionaire fees EHE S X,
6,000 v11.9% [ Rental expenses &%
4,000 v11.9% I Advertising and promotion expenses & R S8R X
¥28.0%
5000 v2.9% B Depreciation and amortisation 78 [ # 85
¥13.1% _
o B Other SG&A EftbSHERTHBIX™

2015 2016 2017

1) Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transaction settlement, royalty fees for the sales of 1) HMFERTHRXTEQEHEERIAEELENRITFHE - e
licensed products, certificate expenses, packing materials, utilities and staff welfare BRERNENER 88 QYR  kSEREIEA
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. Our Mainland China segment contributed over half of SG&A over the past . FEARSBRBAIFHEE - FEERT

3 years. BBAE o
. With effective cost saving measures, we managed to trim SG&A expenses . R2017BBEFE  KMETERNEERAE
by 11.3% to HK$10,307 million in FY2017 with both segments and all Mt B ERTHBXZEE11.3% 210307 H
expense components recording a year-on-year drop. BEx mMMEIHBRAEHEXERGHER
EE TR ©
. Advertising and promotion expenses were reduced by 28.0% as some . BEREEHRIEID 5 HEETELER MR
marketing activities have been deferred. 4>28.0% ©

. Thanks to the sales rebound during 2HFY2017, SG&A ratio fell to 18.1% in . SER2017VRFETHEHEDH  HER

2HFY2017 from 23.0% in THFY2017. On a full-year basis, SG&A ratio THAXLER 2017 W BEE £¥FH23.0%
improved slightly by 40 basis points to 20.1%. FEE2017BBEE T ¥FM18.1%  BEFF
HERTHHEILEHURZSI10BEREE
20.1% °
Major SG&A components HERITHHEXZWEEIEH
Staff costs BIRHA
Mainland China & 9 i

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3H31ALLFE
(HKS million & T)

6.4% 6.8%
3,000 YoY change
R FY2017 20178t B
2,500 2,403 2,411 average number of employees
2,119 v12.1% 25,2 70 FHEIEAE
2,000 o e
d YoY change
S A% v10.4% e
1,500
1,000 py
69.6% 73.9% -O- Asa % of respective revenue FTE & £ H Lt
69.2% v17.7%
500 I Variable proportion ;ZE1E %
0 I Fixed proportion EE 5

2015 2016 2017
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Hong Kong and Macau

EHERIARM

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 31 AL EE
(HKS million &% T)

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

o o— 2

6.4%
6.1% 6.0%
YoY change
El=4:2(4
1,551
1,271
G 1,206—— ¥5.1%
34.4% 36.7% A12%
56.0% 65.6% 63.3% ¥8.5%
2015 2016 2017

We strive for staff costs optimisation by enhancing productivity of our
employees. The average number of frontline staff per self-operated POS
decreased by approximately 12% for both Mainland China market and
Hong Kong and Macau market as compared to last year.

In Mainland China, staff costs contracted by 12.1% to HK$2,119 million,
generally in line with the reduction of average number of employees
during the year.

In Hong Kong and Macau, staff costs dropped by 5.1% while average
number of employees reduced by 13.6% as a result of POS consolidation.

Concessionaire fees and rental expenses

Mainland China

FY2017 201781 BVEE
3 5 7 O average number of employees
p FHETHE

v13.6% muei

-O- As a % of respective revenue FT{E & £ H Ltk
M Variable proportion ¥ EZ %

I Fixed proportion EEZB 2

EMBOEBRAETLEENUB(LE TR -
TEAETSEEERRAMTENEETER
MIEAIRE THEIREFRDK12% °

RAPBEIR B THAEIRK121%ZE21198 8
BT BERFHEIHERBMAZ -

REBREREM > BIHKREIRS1% FHET
HERMRNTEREST FME13.6% °

HESRREERX

o Py it

For the year ended 31 March & Z3 831 HLLFE
(HK$ million B &E#T)

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

9:4% 9.0%
. 8.7%
O— O— 0
2,231

1,927
I 1,700

2015 2016 2017

-O- Asa % of respective revenue T & 288 B ALt

I Concessionaire fees EHED X,



Hong Kong and Macau

Annual Report 2017 FE3R 65

EFHERIARM

For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 831 AL EE
(HKS million &% T)

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

Other income, other gains and losses and other expenses

8.2% 8.0%

GM —0

1,779

1,575 1,524

-O- As a % of respective revenue FT{ & 25 H 2Lt

2015 2016 2017

In Mainland China, concessionaire fees dropped by 11.8% as a result of
revenue decline as well as the reduction of concessionaire fees by product
during the year. The slight decline in concessionaire fees ratio was mainly
due to lower concessionaire fees by product.

In Hong Kong and Macau, rental expenses were down by 14.3% due to .
consolidation of POS and rental renewal reduction. Rental expenses ratio
also edged down slightly by 20 basis points to 8.0% in FY2017, helped by
a stabilising business environment. We achieved an average reduction on

rental renewal of approximately 35% in FY2017.

I Rental expenses #&BI 32

RPERt > EEIRTHE11.8%  THERFER
EEETRURREREINERES D -
PRLEEMBREEANEZERIINEES R
TRRATER

REBRREM  REERESREBERE 2
S HEIM143% c 2017 TN EEHR SRt
EYENEHREOEBMBEM TR 20EERE
8.0% ° 20177 U » RMEHEMNE TR
8 #9 5 35% ©

H g ~ Hfti 5 RS HE I R 2 fthF 32

2015 2016 2017 2017 v5 2016
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March BE3IANALEE BEBT BEET HEBT Eil=4--214
Other income Hebug A 302 306 A7.6%
Other gains and losses Hib i & B8 (36) (245) A16.7%
Other expenses HpAk (95) (51) A318.9%

. Other income mainly arose from the government grants received by the . Hts g A EZEIER B FE A D RESH

subsidiaries in Mainland China. BUR AL ©
. Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign exchange loss of . HtWREEEFTEERERARBEEMESE

HK$273 million (FY2016: HK$229 million) due to the devaluation of RMB.

An impairment loss on investment, amount due from an associate and
amount due from a joint venture amounted to an aggregate of HK$164
million was recognised and included in “other expenses” during the year.

KISNEFE B 273 588 T (2016 FIBUEE - 229
BHEBIT) °

BREREBEEE BR—IEHELATREURE
W-—REELERBERIAEERBTCER
R M AFER[HAbRAE ] o
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Interest income, finance costs and taxation

FIBWIAN - MER A RBIR

HKS million
BEBT

For the year ended 31 March BZE3ANNALEE
Interest income from banks SRATRIE WA
Other interest income HF B WA
Finance costs on bank borrowings  $R{TE B E B A
Finance cost on gold loans ELBERERSE
Taxation HiE

26
149

2016 2017 2017 vs 2016

HKS million HK$ million YoY change
BEET BEBET Eil=4- 214
112 A9.0%

43 v57.7%

69 A36.0%

174 v17.8%

957 A28.2%

. Effective tax rate increased from 24.3% in FY2016 to 28.0% in FY2017 due
to higher profit contribution from Mainland China, where higher tax rate
applied, and as more tax expenses were incurred during the year for the
dividends distributed from the subsidiaries in Mainland China for paying
the special dividend declared by the Group.

Return on equity

. We use return on equity (“/ROE”) to measure the efficiency of generating
profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

. Net profit margin increased by 80 basis points to 6.1% due to an
expanded reported gross profit margin and operating leverage as
fundamentals improved. As a result, ROE improved by 140 basis
points to 9.7%.

Net profit SF&F

ROE
ERENCIETE=
Net profit margin

0.1% Fun=

(FY2016 2016 BABUF £ : 5.3%)

Total equity #E = #58

1.0%°

Revenue & %58

Net profit &I

Revenue & 2£%q

Assets turnover

(FY2016 2016 BB & 2 1.0 times )

Total assets & &

. BB EH 2016 B BUF E #9243%F £ 20178
BFEEMN28.0% ERARBERSNPEAL
BRIEREZM  URBAEESTRNEFEIRE -
FEARHEATDRFRAEMBERS 2K
WIS EEBEINIBIBFTE

B% A [ 3R #

. BMEARAEREFEEETRRREZER
B RE o

. ERENRRLEBERERNERAZNEMEN
R SEENEEAOBEELE6.1%  HIt
PRAEEHRE FF 140 EEEZE 9.7% ©

9.7% (Y2016 2016 BT E : 8.3%)
A1.4% ptsBH D 2

'I 5 times  Equity multiplier
I E REREE
(FY2016 2016 BB B : 1.6 times )

Total assets 42 & &

Total equity #5447
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Inventory turnover and capital structure FERABRERREE
Inventory balances and turnover period FEHERREHEE
Inventory balances by product™ RERESNELELERO

Asat 31 March 438318
(HK$ million B &3&7T)

40,000 39,645 YoY change
El=4:2(4
31,244 0
30,000 29,176 v6.6%
20,000 v8.8% B Gem-set jewellery BRE S E &
B Gold products EEE R
10,000 43.3%
=R [ Platinum/karat gold products $4& K& E
v12.1%
0 v17.3% B Watches ###k
2015 2016
Inventory turnover period by category® RERNESHEEERER
For the year ended 31 March BiZ3 831 AL FEE
(Day X&)
400 YoY change
Eil=4--2(4
320
300 279 294 ———A15daysX
A3d
o ays Xk
100
B Finished goods &L &
64 A12daysk
0 47 [ Raw materials BT %
2015 2016 2017
m Packing materials excluded m TaEaRyR
[®)] Being inventory balances, excluding packing materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by cost of goods (2) BREPRFEHLER(TEEBEDR) RUFRHEERE  BRU
sold for the year, multiplied by 365/366 365/366

. Inventory balances, excluding packing materials, decreased over the past . FEHR(TEEEEY EREME—ET

2 years and stood at HK$29,176 million as at 31 March 2017. % BRZE2017F3A31AR29176 BEBIT ©

. The reduction was partly attributable to our continual optimisation of . TREEB ZHARBMSERLCLFELS
inventory balances and partly related to the reclassification of certain BAIRBEERERMNGSHBRRRAEE
high value unique collectibles into “Non-current assets — Jewellery TEEEBEBYREHIEAIERBEE —
Collectibles” on our consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 LKEYHEH |- R2017F3A318 REZES
March 2017, jewellery collectibles amounted to HK$967 million. %67 EBET

. On a full year basis, inventory turnover period was 294 days, 15 days . BRE2FH FERAEHA24K  BREFZ15K -
longer than last year.
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Capital structure

BARE

% to % to total Increase/ Denominated Interest rate
2016  total equity 2017 equity (decrease) currency!” structure!”
oy 3=kl 1GHESAE &/
ER Bt (R4 FHEE®BO FZZEBO
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March M3A318 HEBT BEET HEBT
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,670 18.7% 463 N/A T ¥E 3 N/A T ¥E
Inventories 78 31,377 87.8% (2,118)  N/ATEH N/A T ¥E
Bank deposits and cash  $R1TER K 13,001 36.4% (5,058)  Mainly HKD, Mainly
equivalents® ReZEY? RMB and USD variable
FERBT - interestrate
AR#R ETEREH
E H =
Total borrowings® BERO 14,433 40.4% (4,424)
Bank borrowings IRITER 7,920 22.2% (1,127) HKD and RMB Variable
BITRARYE  interestrate
FEF=
Gold loans HEEE 6,513 18.2% (3,297) RMBand USD Fixed
ARMRKET  interestrate
& E | =
Net debt® fRIEFE 1,432 4.0% 634  NATER  NATEM
Working capital® HEESV 30,241 84.6% (3,761) N/ATEA N/A TiE F
Total equity AR 35750  100.0% (3248) N/ATEA  NATER
(1) Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at 31 March 2017 (1) BRGTEEERAREER2017F3A31 ANER
(2) Bank balances and cash included (2) BERTEBRRS
(3) As at 31 March 2017, bank borrowings amounted to HK$6,193 million and all the gold loans would be matured 3) R2017F38310 6 1B EBBANBRITERRTEESEHESR
within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$600 million would be matured in more than 1 year but 1218 A REIE  Meo0 B BB TMNRITERBHBB 1 FERZH2F
not exceeding 2 years REIE
4 Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents (4) SBITERN ELEEZLE (CHRRITERARESZEY)
(5) Being net current assets 5) FREEE



We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity requirements
through a combination of capital contributions, including cash flows from
operations, bank borrowings and gold loans. Gold loans are also used to
hedge against the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the Group’s
gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash flows,
and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy inventory financing
needs during peak seasons, working capital for future expansion plans
and unexpected needs. The Group has not experienced any difficulties in

repaying its borrowings.

The Group’s income and expenditure were mostly denominated in HKD
and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly denominated in HKD,
RMB and USD.

Effect of RMB fluctuation

RMB continued to devaluate during FY2017. As at 31 March 2017, RMB
further went down by around 6% as compared to 31 March 2016. As part
of our business operation was in Mainland China, the devaluation of RMB
affected the performance and balances of assets and liabilities of our
Mainland China operation, as well as the balances of inter-group
advances denominated in RMB, which posed some impact to our net
profit for the year.

The table below illustrates the impact to our financial performance due to
RMB fluctuation:
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EMTIZEZBRAKLLERERE RITERR
EEERENERARFENEEESREMR
EEFER -BEEETRAEYHIAEEES S
EERKBNTBLE -

AEEHEXBFFESTERBLERETN
B TEIEUEHEEREEERNEFE
E2ER - ARBERFEFNFTLEESRTA
SZHANER - AEEAREEER S EHLE
E T IR &k -
REBZWARFAXETEUEBETIR AR
B MEEREGERNEZELEBT - ARBRE
JTETE °

ARBERIHZE

ARBR 2017 B FEFERE - HE20165F
3318 2017F3A3TEHMARKE—ST
FE#6% °c AR IEKME ;o E I 1E E R ih &
g ARERESYETERNEENRER
EENEBBENARURNUAREHENEER
BN EMEFERFEANEMTE -

TRIIFARERBERMBBRANZE

2016

Constant exchange

2017
Constant exchange

BARSHROR,

As reported rate basis As reported rate basis
For the year ended 31 March HE3ANALILEEE 23R RERERGE T2k RARERME
Revenue YoY change EERBEE L EL v12.0% v10.5% v9.4% v6.0%
Net profit YoY change FamflE & v46.2% v41.0% A5.8% A11.8%
Inventory balances YoY change GFEASRBLZL v21.2% v19.0% v6.7% v6.4%
Bank balances and cash YoY change $R{T# A RIREE L& (L A53.4% A57.3% v38.9% v37.3%
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Cash flows and others

Cash flows REmE
2015 2016 2017
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March HE3A3TALEE BEBT BEABT BEET
Operating cash flows before movements EEESH DI ZKERERE
in working capital 7,288 5,787
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,117 7,499
Net change in gold loans B2 BEFEY (2,036) (2,161)
Net cash from/(used in) other operating H & TBAE,(FTR)BEFHE
activities (2,837) 611
Purchase of jewellery collectibles BEKRELHE - -
Capital expenditure BEREX (2,768) (1,046)
Pro forma free cash flows HEEHRERE 2,764 10,690
Net change in bank borrowings IRITEFFEH 450 1,192
Dividends paid 2RRE (3,534) (6,582)
Net cash outflow used in acquisition of WEMBARMARERE
subsidiaries T (1,188)" -
Other movements Heth & 8 518 (776)
Net increase/(decrease) in bank balances RITEBRREBESEMGAY)FHE
and cash (990) 4,524

(1) Cash paid for the respective fixed assets upon acquisition of the subsidiaries were included in “capital expenditure”

Major cash flows items for FY2017

(1)

R B AR ARBARRETEENRSESE E4M%]

017 BEEFTEREREHEHE

(HK$ million B&#T)

Pro forma free cash flows f§Z HHIR&FE

A 1,989
25,000 :
20,000 5702 . 599 3,023
'l. _ 49 378 g6
T emm 1012
15,000 5,148
13,001 il
10,000
787 7,943
5,000
0
Asat i As at A
31.3.2016 31.3.2017

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

LEELSRPHZRERERE

[ Decrease in inventories

Net decrease in gold loans
EEEERD TR

Net cash used in other operating activities
Hib Q& ZB AR T8
Purchase of jewellery collectibles
BEREYHE

Capital expenditure

BEARRX

Net decrease in bank borrowings
Dividends paid

BfRE

Other movements

HAt2 5



Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure incurred during FY2017 amounted to
HK$862 million (FY2016: HK$1,046 million).
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BARRX

AEER017FBRFENELRMEZAS2EE
BT (2016 THUEE 1,046 BBEIT) ©

Capital expenditure by nature BRHEEEINELRX
For the year ended 31 March B Z3A31B It FE
(HK$ million B &3&7T)
3,000
2,500
2,000 B Furniture, fixtures and equipment and leasehold improvements
B - RERRENEEWERE
1500 B Land and buildings and construction in progress
’ THREFNERIR
7 Investment properties
1,000 o CUE -
B Land use rights and patents
500 tifERERER
M Plant and machinery and motor vehicles
0 5.9% R BE RN E
Capital expenditure by function BB M ERREX

For the year ended 31 March 823 A31B L FE
(HKS million B&#&T)

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

2,768

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016.

Capital commitments

Details of the Group’s capital commitments as at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B Projects IEH
B pos BEH
1 Productions 4 &

B Offices BIAE

HAEE
AEBEM2017FE3831HR20165F3831 B
EBEMNEARRER -

BARRIE

AEBEMN2017FE3831BK2016FE38318H
BRREFBHENGE M RRM T34
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Risk management and internal controls

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems which assist them in understanding
the Company'’s risk profile, allocating resources to strengthen control measures
and making risk-reward optimised business decisions for business planning. The
Board recognises these as the prerequisites for the Company to overcome
challenges flexibly and achieve its strategic objectives towards sustainable

growth and development.

Our risk management and internal control governance

framework

Board of Directors

=g

}

Executive Committee
HITEEE

} t

Group Risk Management Committee ("GRMC")
SEEREEEZES

Second Line of Defence 55 —E 43

First Line of Defence 55 —EBh 43

I’

Risk Management Monitoring:
[E BRI B 5E

Risk Ownership:
[ B

Executive Office;
Finance & Governance Centre

TRER B I ER T

Business & Functional
Units and Individuals

EBRIEENRERAL

Board oversight

Board of Directors

. Evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks the Company
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives

. Ensures that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems

. Reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of our risk management and

internal control systems

Third Line of Defence 8 =& 4%
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EZERURREEARNEAREERABEZERGZE
ZEM ZERASEWEMBEARREABRMRR - 28
ERMBEZER  HEREABERRFELRENED
RE ETEBRE - ESSRE UERKEAD
RARABERMEERBOLERS - BB 2RENK
ERMHEER  RREBBELRRER -

RiaEERASBEZEERER

t

Audit Committee
EREEE

BEIRG
1pNny [euiaix3

Independent Assurance:

B3RS

321
wRISAS BuImo|gaISIyM

Internal Audit
A EBEZ

EX
=

B

BExg
S
AEREE D AEMKREERRTREEZN
R ERREE

BRLODRLMNEFSBERERNAREER
AEPE RS
BRIABRMHEABEERABEZREZTE
S =p g3
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Audit Committee
. Oversees the design, implementation and supervision of the risk

management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board

Executive Committee

. Regularly reviews the risk and control issues escalated via GRMC

. Suggests the priority of risk management efforts at Group level

. Drives risk-conscious culture and promotes control environment of
the Group

Management oversight and communication

GRMC

. A management committee comprising the Managing Director, four
executive directors and management personnel from major business and
functional units

. Maintains the risk management and internal control framework and

drives improvement for the processes

. Identifies and manages risks at corporate level, reviews the principal risks,
control measures and oversees the progress of works of risk owners on a

quarterly basis

Independent assurance and investigation
Internal Audit
. Our internal auditors and PricewaterhouseCoopers have teamed up and

are responsible for carrying out the risk-based internal audit

. Provides independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of

our risk management and internal control systems

. Communicates audit findings and control deficiencies to management for
their implementation of remedial actions

External Audit
. Communicates with board committees and management on risk and

control issues identified in the course of audit

Whistleblowing System
. Provides a confidential channel to encourage employees to raise concerns
on frauds and other misconduct

. Whistleblowing officers are responsible for the investigation of the
possible improprieties and engagement with appropriate level of

management for their implementation of remedial actions

. Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management would be reported to the Audit
Committee for assessment

EZEEE
REESSEERBREERABERRARAER
i BRERERSENEETE

HITERE

TR EEEEEMREEEZESS LRNER
REEEE

REEEERRERELFREES
SHEABRSENTEURRASENAIE

a3
TEEREREE
Ean4ﬁ§aa

EEZEENREAESHLE WEHIT
%%U&EE%%%&UJEEE&E’S%EAE

HERREERNIEZER  EBBERF

UAREBHENREERE RERITIER
B E:’i}: Bit  WEERMEEANTFEE

BIRERFE

WERE &
ABRBMEEIRKESE  BEETURA
MR A ER WA BER

HEMNEAREERABERRRZRERE

MR EE I RE
RBRERREEFTRZEREEEEBE U
BHTHRIER

SMERE %
REZBRPRANEARKEZEERESE
EEREEEEE

B
REKZRE HPBSIHSERZTBEREMT
ETRRELEE
BREEEEATEANTETH HEERE
HNEREASEBRE » UEMPIBITHRER
BEZZESESRETERERTANMESR

FE TR fE BREVHY 16 e A iR T A%



Risk management monitoring
Executive Office and Finance & Governance Centre (“FGC")
. Support GRMC on the risk and control functions through ongoing risk

communication and monitoring

. Establish policies, standards and guidelines to reinforce risk management

and internal control systems

Risk ownership
Business & Functional Units and Individuals
. Identify, assess and control risks in day-to-day operations

. Design, implement and ensure the effectiveness of risk and control
measures within their area of accountability

Risk management process

GRMC is responsible for leading the risk management process in an integrated
approach in accordance with the Enterprise Risk Management Policy Manual.
Our risk management process involves the following steps:

. Risk identification — adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach

. Risk analysis — assesses the potential consequences and likelihood of
the risks

. Risk evaluation — evaluates the risk level, risk treatment and priorities

. Risk mitigation — recognises the control gaps, assigns risk ownership and

confirms risk control measures

. Risk monitoring — conducts evaluations on the design and progress of
implementation of the risk control measures

. Risk reporting — facilitates risk communication, reviews the net risk level
after control measures and assesses areas for continuous improvement

GRMC adopts both top-down and bottom-up approach to facilitate risk
identification and quarterly risk review process.

Top-down approach

. GRMC has various channels for risk identification, for example, the
material risks escalated through the Group risk registers, potential control
weaknesses indicated through internal and external audit and concerns

of our stakeholders on social, environment and governance issues

. Members of GRMC and representatives from Executive Office and FGC
discuss the risk issues they consider important to the Group

. Upon approval, the risk management strategy is cascaded to relevant
business and functional units to design, implement and monitor the risk
control measures
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Bottom-up approach

. Heads of business and functional units are required to submit their risk
registers for material risks identified along with their existing control
measures at least annually through risk management training cum
brainstorming workshops

. FGC consolidates and validates the risk registers and Executive Office
assists the respective general managers to endorse the risk level and
priority

. GRMC reviews the Group's consolidated risk register and determines the
level of attention from GRMC and the Executive Committee

Internal controls

The structure of our internal control system is based on the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”) integrated
framework for effective internal controls, which comprises 17 principles under
five components, namely, Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control
Activities, Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities.

Our internal control system is integrated into our business processes with the
support of information system and technology. Control objectives, authorities
and responsibilities, backed by established policies and procedures, and the
performance of control activities are maintained in the system. This helps
capture audit trails in the system, facilitates the monitoring activities and hence
appropriate corrective actions can be formulated by management as soon as
practicable.

Our review of internal controls is closely linked with our risk management
framework and process. Principal risks and risk management strategy of the
Group are communicated to heads of business and functional units and internal
audit team. This aims at helping them to allocate their resources and control
monitoring efforts. Controls of high risk areas are continually evaluated by
management while internal audit team would consider the need of adjustment
on its audit plan on the testing of key controls for significant risks of the Group.

On an annual basis, members of GRMC, senior management of all major
business and functional units are required to assess the effective
implementation of internal controls through self-assessment questionnaires,
covering the effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and
the reliability of financial reporting. Through this exercise, they also undertake
to fully support various Company programmes which promote effective internal
control practices, including internal control review, internal audit, case
investigation and whistleblowing system.
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Our continuous improvement in risk management

& internal controls

In view of the amendment of Corporate Governance Code and Corporate

Governance Report set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (effective

from the year under review for us) relating to risk management and internal

control aspects, we have conducted in-depth review and extensive

engagement with the directors and senior management in order to

conclude the phased improvement plan for the relevant processes in

medium term.

Focuses of our phased improvement plan are:

Risk and control governance culture — strengthening the
accountability on all levels of management; promotion of risk culture
and fraud risk awareness

Risk communication — reinforcing the risk and control governance
framework, by redefining the roles and responsibilities of the major
parties involved, to streamline the communication of risk profile and
risk management strategy

Risk monitoring — enhancing the evaluation process on the quality
and efficiency of risk control measures

Risk reporting — enriching the visuals and contents of risk and
control reports to the Executive Committee and Audit Committee,
aiming to facilitate their informed decision making and assessment
processes
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Risk Management Report EEERE

Effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and
continued effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the reports prepared by GRMC, internal audit team and
external auditors and communicates with them at least three times a year.

The review covers risk management functions and all material controls,

including financial, operational and compliance controls. Key elements of review

include:
. Principal risks identified by GRMC, internal audit and external audit
. Changes in the nature and extent of principal risks since last annual

review and the ability of the Company to respond to the changes in its

business and the external environment

. The scope and quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
and of the internal control systems

. The extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee which enables it to assess control of the Company and
the effectiveness of risk management

. Significant control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the year

. The progress of remedial measures implemented by management

. Assurance provided by internal audit on the effectiveness of the

Company’s processes for financial reporting and compliance with
prevailing regulations

. Significant issues arising from whistleblowing system, internal and
external audit

. The results of management’s control self-assessment

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board,
has confirmed that there was no significant issue that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year under review.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss as sustainable growth and profits are, in part, the reward
for informed and successful risk taking in business.
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Principal risks and control measures

Business and market development risks

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

FERRBKERER
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A challenging macroeconomic environment

A challenging macroeconomic environment coupled with fast changing
consumer behaviour across Greater China may adversely affect our sales and
growth if we could not navigate the situations well.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

Risk trend
mpEs © P

For more analysis, see Management Discussion

. optimising our retail network to enhance our store productivity
) ] ) and Analysis
. expanding our business footprint to overseas market > Business Review
. uplifting customers’ shopping experience by introducing various store > Operations and Management
brands and fostering 020 interaction DN REBEEWESN
. accommodating the increasingly sophisticated customers through store > %i}’%lﬁl@
) I . ) > EEREHE
differentiation and product innovation
MBI R B BERE
BRZBSERRETRRE BMERPEEEETASRES  MBEMEEZ
EREMEIRE  REBRMWHEENERBRAATE -
BRMEEMENESLRBNENT
BIATERR  IRAEHER
EEBRERREE SIS
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VAU 2= 2L E M A G & K5l R AN EE
Risk level increased during FY2017 Risk level remains similar as FY2016 Risk level decreased during FY2017
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Risk Management Report EEERRKE

Franchisees management Risk trend
Apart from the self-operated POS, we also leverage on the local resources of our [y 4

franchisees to expand our retail footprint. If we cannot manage the franchisees

effectively, it will adversely affect our business and reputation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
adopting the inventory ownership unification programme and optimising
the financial settlement with franchisees

reinforcing our monitoring on franchisees, including implementation of
whistleblowing system and special audit programme in franchised POS

IER T E IR
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et 8l
Competition Ordinance of Hong Kong Risk trend
The Competition Ordinance of Hong Kong (effective from December 2015) aims EiBg
to protect consumers by preserving the integrity and sufficiency of competition. If
we violate the Ordinance, our business and brand image will be adversely Well-established guidelines and monitoring
affected. system

TREMMIEEIMERRZR
We control and mitigate the risks by:
maintaining our own pricing mechanism for jewellery products

reviewing business agreements particularly on franchising and distribution
regularly

updating our related policies, procedures and guidelines with reference to
legal opinions

. conducting regular training for our staff, especially those with exposure
to competition law issues
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Operational risks
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Intellectual property protection

Our business heavily relies on our intellectual property, particularly our
trademarks. We strive to avoid infringement and unauthorised use of our
intellectual property rights in counterfeit products. The unauthorised use of our
trademark in counterfeit products could harm our brand image and reputation,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospect.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
. taking legal actions against brand infringement

. filing registration of certain of our intellectual property according to our
internal policies and guidelines

. observing intellectual property rights and collecting information regarding
actual or possible infringement of our intellectual property from various
channels

. improving continuously our anti-counterfeiting techniques
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Risk trend
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For more analysis, see Sustainability Report

> Our Practices — Respect for Intellectual
Property
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Risk Management Report EEERE

Synthetic diamonds

We take the entire life-cycle of our products seriously and are committed to
ensuring that our products are genuine, safe and ethically sourced. Irruption of
synthetic diamonds could impact our brand image and operation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
introducing “CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK" diamond brand to reinforce our
efforts in ensuring that our diamonds are natural and ethically sourced

conducting evaluation on suppliers regularly and sourcing from

trustworthy suppliers with sufficient accreditations

. deploying new devices to authenticate our diamond products according to

the rigorously designed procedures throughout our value chain

. engaging external professional experts to perform in-depth verifications on
our diamond products where appropriate

BRER
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Risk trend
[ B EB 2%

For more analysis, see Management Discussion
and Analysis

> Operations and Management
Sustainability Report

> Our Customers — Product Responsibility
FADN 0 REEEWRED AT
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Customer loyalty

Customer loyalty is critical to our business and operation. We would lose market
share to our competitors if we could not manage our membership programme
effectively or provide professional and dedicated services to our customers.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
providing our members with an exclusive experience that matches with
their privileged status

. reviewing our membership programme on a regular basis to strive for
continuous improvement

. conducting mystery shopper inspections by professional consulting
companies to enhance the service quality of our frontline staff

. offering comprehensive after-sale services to our customers to enhance
customer confidence
BEEBHE
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Risk trend
RERiBE

Effective membership programme

BRHEETE

For more analysis, see Management Discussion
and Analysis

> Operations and Management
Sustainability Report

> Our Customers — Service Quality
FLN - REEREWED N

> BENEE
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Inventory turnover
Owing to the volatile macroeconomic environment in Greater China, our
inventory turnover has the risk of slowing down.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
. using item-level RFID technology to timely trace and record warehouse
inventories and stock-taking information

. setting up an enquiry mechanism to enhance efficiency of transportation of
products across stores and different channels, thereby lowering the
inventory per store

setting up a dedicated team to closely monitor our inventory turnover,
performing ageing analysis and clearing the aged inventories as
appropriate e.g. through outlet stores
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Risk trend
REEBE

Effective measures on inventory turnover
monitoring

ERFERAENE REE

For more analysis, see
Management Discussion

and Analysis
> Operations and Management — Supply
chain
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Risk Management Report EEERE

Information Technology governance Risk trend
We are keen on effective application of IT resources to facilitate reporting and [y

monitoring of the performance of our operations and internal controls as well as
performing big data analysis. We are also committed to harnessing technological
innovations in our key operations to support our business development and
strategies. If our IT set up and resources could not match with our business
development or reasonably protect us from security breaches, our business
growth and results of operations may be adversely and materially affected.

We control and mitigate the risks by:

. establishing IT Governance Committee to review and improve the
governance issues concerning IT resources and matters including the
business role of IT, IT architecture, IT infrastructure, business application
needs of IT and IT investment and prioritisation under the Group'’s overall
strategy

engaging external consultants to review controls and recommend

improvement measures on system security issues
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Talent acquisition and retention Risk trend

Talent is one of our most important assets. We endeavour to build a people- ERBE

oriented culture and have high regard for talents acquisition, development and

retention as they collectively make substantial contribution to the development Effective engagement with employees
of our operation. Outflow of talents may adversely affect our business and BMEESES

operation.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
. performing benchmarking analysis to ensure remuneration packages of our

staff members are competitive in respective industries, taking into account For more analysis, see Management Discussion

their skills and experiences and Analysis

> Operations and Management — Human

. roviding a safe, comfortable and harmonious working environment for -
P 9 ! 9 resources management & Training and

our people working at frontline, back office and factories development
promoting well-being and benefit of our employees so as to enhance their Sustainability Report

sense of belonging with the Company, e.g. a set of family-friendly measures > Our People

are implemented and a wide variety of recreational activities were | FHDH > REERERES

organised by dedicated teams > HEREE - ASNEREEBMBIRER
AEHERRRE

. fostering effective communication across different levels of staff and _ -
> BTRME

management, e.g. opinion and voices could be sent directly to senior
management for independent assessments, exit interviews are conducted

to understand and remediate the issues

offering holistic and tailored training programmes to different segments of
employees through our Chow Tai Fook Academy, iLearning and Smart
Learning (online learning platform and App via mobile devices) and the
collaboration with certain renowned organisations such as Ivey Business
School of the University of Western Ontario
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Risk Management Report EEERE

Financial risks

Rt 75 JEL Bk

Credit control

Most of our transactions in Mainland China with department stores and shopping
malls are on credit, which exposes the Group to credit risk. If the department
stores or shopping malls have difficulties in financing, it could adversely affect our
financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
monitoring the receivables turnover and overdue balances

. building a good rapport with the management of department stores and
shopping malls to understand their credibility and financial condition

. recovering receivables in accordance with internal policies and guidelines

. escalating exception reports and prompting follow-up actions when
recoverability of these retail operators is in doubt

. taking legal actions when appropriate if serious cases are concerned
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Risk trend
BRES

Tightly designed internal guidelines on
receivables and close monitoring on the
implementation
RETERENRURRARIESINE EREE
B

Gold price fluctuation

The gold market is influenced by global and regional supply and demand
conditions. Our purchases of gold represent the largest component of the cost of
sales of our gold products. Fluctuation in gold price may materially and adversely
affect our operation and financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
hedging gold price fluctuation in our gold inventories (long position)
through gold loans (short position)

assessing regularly the actual and potential impact on our profitability and
financial condition due to gold price fluctuation

. reviewing and optimising gold hedging mechanism, in response to the
changes in our business development, strategic objectives and trend in
global gold market

HEEERED
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Risk Trend &
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Change in gold hedging mechanism in
2HFY2017
2017 IR T ¥ FNESEIPHEIZS

For more analysis, see Management Discussion

and Analysis
> Financials — Changes in hedging
mechanism
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Fluctuation in RMB exchange rate

Our operations in Mainland China and intercompany balances denominated in
RMB expose the Group to RMB currency risk. Inability to manage our RMB risk
exposure may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We control and mitigate the risks by:
. monitoring the RMB exposure of the Group periodically

. reviewing the financial impact arising from RMB fluctuation, especially the
effect brought about by the bank balances and intercompany balances
denominated in RMB

. monitoring the market information closely and adjusting financing plans to

accommodate operational needs when appropriate

. obtaining sufficient credit facilities from Mainland China banks to minimise
the use of offshore RMB for financing our operations in Mainland China

ARBEREE
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Risk trend
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For more analysis, see Management Discussion
and Analysis

> Financials - Effect of RMB fluctuation
RO REEEWEDN

> BB — ARBRBHNTE




Major Awards and
Recognitions

FERBIBREF




Annual Report 2017 53R 89

==

Governance B8

Award #218 Presenting organisation 78 22 148

2016 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team Rankings (Consumer/Discretionary sector)  Institutional Investor
2016 fF £ All-Asia Executive Team (RNE1E B ) HE/TH5 (ELEHE R R
1. Most Honored Company — Third Place

BREERAR —H=F

2. Best Investor Relations — Third Place (Nominated by the buy side and

sell side)
BEREEBRLAR —F=FB(ABEAREHFINERA)
3. Best Investor Relations — Third Place (Nominated by the sell side)

BEREEHRQAR —F=A(RHEHINERSR)

4. Best CEO — Second Place — Kent Wong (Nominated by the sell side)
BETBEES — -4 —ERE(REHFINERR)

5. Best Investor Relations Professional — Third Place — Danita On
(Nominated by the buy side and sell side)
BREREEBFREE —¥$=F —ZBF(RAESREFIMERSE)

6. Best Investor Relations Professional — First Place — Danita On
(Nominated by the sell side)
REREERREE — ¥ — % — 2R (AELINERS)

7. Best Website — First Place (Nominated by the buy side and sell side)
BERE — -2 (HEAREFSMERS)

2016 Best Annual Reports Awards — Best New Entry Hong Kong Management Association
2016 FRIFFHE —REFHSBEFRE EREEEXHS

12 Corporate Governance Asia Recognition Awards 2016 — The Best of Asia Corporate Governance Asia

— Asia’s Outstanding Company on Corporate Governance MEEER

B+ EDNEXERK 2016 — NN AR — KEDNEXER
HKIRA Investor Relations Awards — Certificate of Excellence Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

EREREEEBAE — R EBREEERGE
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Major Awards and Recognitions FE#I1ER =T

Corporate social responsibility ¥4 25T

Award #8185

Presenting organisation f85E#1%

|

Diamonds Do Good Awards — Community Development Award

BRTEAR —HERRR

BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2015
RIREBRRBRRBELEKRE2015

1. EcoChallenger
BREF L

2. 5 years + EcoPioneer
5 + BERRLE

Green Office Label and Better World Company Label 2016
2016 FEFERAERRRBOLEET

The 7t Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award — Merit Award

(Enterprise Category)
BLtEFEBAHLGEARR —BRR (AR
Caring Company

HMRREER

Consumer Caring Company 2016

Diamond Empowerment Fund

BAHEREESS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) and Federation of Hong
Kong Industries

RREEREBIXES

World Green Organisation and United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals

HRGEEAMRBHSETHERS

Hong Kong Productivity Council
BBEENRER

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BEENEREHS
GS1 Hong Kong

2016 B/ BEREEHS
g K¢ “HKPC® = B @ = @ Y8kbun
' , '?ﬁllmfﬁﬁl‘i“ﬂ’l‘# 3, s
E ST i 2016 10018 ol

Diamonds Do Good Awards — Community Development Award

EATEAR —HEBERRER

The 7" Hong Kong Outstandmg Corporate Citizenship Award — Merit Award
(Enterprise Category)

BLEEBRATENRE — BEE(LFAF))
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Corporate branding 12 i f&

Award 3218

Presenting organisation fE 22 118

2016 Forbes Global 2000
201618 A HT 2 2R £ 2 5] 2000 38

Brand Finance Global 500

IAIR Awards — Company of the Year for Leadership (Luxury, Asia)
IARKHE — BEEESELE (TNEBEERITE)

World’s 500 Most Influential Brands — Ranked 443
1t 53 A A8 500 38 — 55 443 1%

China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands — Ranked 45t
P E 500 A EEME — F 451

World Branding Awards 2016 — Brand of the Year (Retailer — Jewellery, Hong Kong)
2016 R REAR — FEREME (BERH — KB F8)

China’s 10 Most Influential Brands (Jewellery) — Ranked 1+
TETAZENRE (REEH) —H 11

Influential Brands 2016

2016 FEE N M

1. The Top Influential Brands 2016 in Premium Jewellery
SRKEERATE LTS

2. The Most Trustworthy Brand in Premium Jewellery
ERRERRESERERE

The BrandLaureate Most Celebrated Brand Award 2015-2016 (Premier & Luxury Jewellery)

The BrandLaureate Bx £ fA /58 2015-2016 (B R R B EEKE)

Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Awards 2016 — Outstanding Jewellery Retail Network

ETURBHDERE 2016 — REKRBTERE AR

Forbes

&
Brand Finance

International Alternative Investment Review

World Brand Lab
tHRAREERE

World Brand Lab
HtRAREERE

World Branding Forum
57 R R E

World Brand Lab
HtRAREERE

Influential Brands
EENRE

The BrandLaureate

Quamnet
EFIK

LE FONTI

COMPANY OF THE YEAR
AWARDS

FOR LEADERSHIP
LUXURY
ASIA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group

IAIR Awards — Company of the Year for Leadership (Luxury, Asia)
IAIRA %€ — BEBE SR (ENBEERITH)

World Branding Awards 2016 - Brand of the Year (Retailer — Jewellery, Hong Kong)
2016 th RBIEAR — FERERIE (TER —HE - &/8)
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Major Awards and Recognitions FE#I1ER =T

Design & &1

Award #8185 Presenting organisation fE#E#£4E
Year of Jewellery Design Excellence — “Le Labyrinthe Artistique” Bazaar Jewelry
High Jewellery Collection ESHRE

FEGNRERTR —RARE ] SHKERS

E-commerce and technology & 7 &7 & £H%

Award #2185 Presenting organisation 828 #4448
Digital 1Q Index Luxury China 2017 — Digital Competence — Ranked 6" L2

2017 HEIESREBEEEY — BB L — o

Asia Pacific ICT Alliance Awards 2016 — Merit Prize in Retail and Supply Chain Asia Pacific ICT Alliance
Management D REM R BB R

2016 TAEMREABEAR —SERHEEERAEARNERER

2016 Hong Kong Awards for Industries — Productivity and Quality Grand Award HKSAR Government

016 FBIHFR —EEIRMERE EBEITHRERA
HKIM Market Leadership Award 2016 — Market Leadership in 020 Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
BEBMHEE 20165 EMALRE — 020 MIHEM AL BEMHES
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2. My Favourite Mobile Jewellery Platform
REBKEEHT A

2016 Hong Kong Awards for Industries — Productivity and Quality HKIM Market Leadership Award 2016
Grand Award — Market Leadership in 020
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We are committed to being responsible and transparent towards our
investors in order to bolster their confidence towards the Company.

Since being founded in 1929, we have stayed focused on the
development of business. We supervise directly the key functions
throughout our value chain from procurement of raw materials, design
and production, to marketing and sales.

After we became listed on the Stock Exchange in 2011, transparency,
communication and fair treatment have always been the core values to
our approach in investor relations. We believe that facilitating investors to
make informed investment decisions would enhance their confidence
towards the Company.

In FY2017, the Company received various industry accolades in

recognition of our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor

relations.

Institutional

All-Asia Executive Team
MOST HONORED COMPANY

[HRREEEREAZHE  ‘MATREE
FO]REMARE -

B1929F AR R —EEXBRRHKEE
ER RAEEEERE L SFERMBERE
RETCAE - THEEENEESIRES -

BNFEEBBRALHE - RMNBHRER
E -BBNAFHSE=ZARARELERE
EWRER - RMBERAEDREEFLIE
HURTE - AENE MM DR HED o

R20177BREE > RAESEETRREEY
RERMELCEXEANREERESENT
W2 o

In the 2016 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team rankings by Institutional Investor, the We were awarded “The Best of Asia — Asia’s Outstanding Company on Corporate

Company and its key executives garnered the “Most Honored Company”, “Best

Investor Relations”, “Best Investor Relations Professional” and “Best Website”

Governance” in the 12" Corporate Governance Asia Recognition Awards 2016

organised by Corporate Governance Asia

accolades HFIREMNEEE SRR E+ —EEMNEEE R 2016 HEE [ TNEEE
Rinstitutional Investor 823} #9 2016 4 JZ All-Asia Executive Team (T B AXK) BEEEFAE — RETEMNLEES]

HITES  RAIREBTBRABEEF[REGRNA] [REREZHEFEL
Al [REREEMEFRES | K [ REFW | 255



Timely and transparent disclosure

Enhancing transparency has been our Board’s crucial mission in
governance. Maintaining a high level of transparency prompts us to be
responsible to stakeholders in our decisions and operations, and to
proactively prepare for scrutiny and the ever-changing regulatory

environment.

To ensure timely and simultaneous public access to the Group’s material
information, we publish announcements and results presentations,
annual and interim reports and press releases via public channels
including websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. We also hold
press and analyst conferences at least twice a year after releasing the

interim and annual results.

The presentations and webcasts for these conferences are uploaded to
our company website. In addition, we keep our investor relations
webpage up-to-date and provide an “Investor FAQ” section for ease of
reference. Furthermore, investors can subscribe to our email alerts and
contact our investor relations and corporate communications team

directly via email at ir@chowtaifook.com.

We publish quarterly voluntary announcements of key operational data
in standard format generally in about 10 working days after each
quarter end.

The Company has policies and internal control measures in place
regarding inside information disclosure to ensure announcements are
published in due course. We adhere to the principle of providing timely,
transparent and effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market
regularly informed of the Group’s performance and minimising market
surprises.

Our motives for enhancing annual reports go beyond compliance with
the Listing Rules. The annual report is not only a means of communication
with our shareholders, but also an internal management tool that drives
us to continuously improve and create value.

HIK
n AN SR

e il Sl —_—— - [

22 2016 BEST ANNUAL REPORTS AWARDS
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ARRABREARBNEDSENAEENEE
AE - HMAAARREVEBRIANAAHE
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EHRMABHORES  HEAEEENE
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Our FY2016 annual report won the “Best New Entry” in the general
category at the 2016 Best Annual Reports Awards competition held
by the Hong Kong Management Association

K AB2016 B FEFHRERFS T BEEZEGSEWHH
2016 F [ RIEEFHEE | LB THEFAL [ REFHSEFR L
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Interactive engagement

We believe communication with our shareholders is a two-way process.
We make no distinction between institutional and retail investors.

While we try to understand investors’ perspective, we also share with
them a full picture of our business through the eyes of the management,
including our thoughts in making decisions, our views on market outlook,
our development strategies and so on. In addition to reporting results, we
take a step forward to show how we run the business and how the Group
will develop in the future.

Our executive directors and senior management in the investor relations
and corporate communications team participate in various investor

meetings, conferences and non-deal roadshows every year.

In FY2017, we attended over 400 one-on-one and group meetings, 12
investor conferences and 19 non-deal roadshows held in Beijing, Boston,
Hong Kong, Kuala Lumpur, London, Los Angeles, Melbourne, New York,
San Diego, San Francisco, Seoul, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Singapore, Sydney
and Tokyo. We also maintained continuous dialogues with a large number
of analysts from research institutions, of which 18 of them covered our
Company and published research reports on a regular basis.

Investor visits are often arranged to our operation centres, POS and
production facilities.

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) is a platform for face-to-face
communication with our shareholders. Our full Board and external
auditors attend the AGM and answer questions raised by shareholders on
the performance of the Group. In general, over 100 shareholders or their
proxies are present at the AGM and the voting rate among the
independent shareholders is around 20-30%. Shareholders are welcomed
to stay after the AGM and meet with our Managing Director and Finance
Director for further exchanges.

In our meetings with investors, frequently discussed topics include
business outlook, gross margin, change in product mix, POS network,
industry benchmarking, capital expenditure, inventory management,
e-commerce business, dividend payout ratio, free cashflows and so on.

In the other way round, investors often give us constructive ideas that
inspire us to improve and create more values for shareholders. We are
therefore always keen to engage with investors.

BEE@E

EMBEERRNBBEZE —E2QNBERE
YHBBREENEAREE -RE(C -

EMEHESREENAE BABTFTIHRR
EENEEEENDEMREBERRE  BEFHR
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REN—F KREREE HEREEENE
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EMWREEBBERCXENER  BITE
ERSRELEEEAN  BESNZEREES
BN ENERZRE -

2017 TEEFEER » BFHFEE 00X -8 -8R
REESE hESE12RBREEFHEM9
RERZEE BRIEE - KLE B FE
W mE R BEA ALY EEE -
=W 858 L' RY FnE - BEMR
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Meetings by investor event in FY2017:

017MBEEER(RBEEFTHNER) ©

30%

22%

27%

M Conference call EFEE

M Face-to-face meeting %I I &%
Investor conference % & & st E

I Non-deal roadshow J X 5 B&7&

—~—_ 21%

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2017 are set out below:
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Summary of investor relations activities in FY2017:

017 EEREERBEETHHE :

one-on-one & group meetings

— - REREE

C-level participation rate*

cities visited
BFE ™

investor conferences &

BeERESHEE non-deal roadshows
REEMNERFRSBE
* In investor conferences and non-deal roadshow meetings

RREEMASENERZHRPOEE

R2017PBFESENABREEDSS

Date Event Location
B £EH bk
June 2016 J.P. Morgan 12th Annual Global China Summit Beijing
2016 F 6 A ERKRBREERNS =
UBS Asian Consumer Conference 2016 Hong Kong
HIRIREEHNE =8
July 2016 Nomura HK Retail Corporate Day Hong Kong
2016 7 A BNREEWRIE =8
August 2016 J.P. Morgan'’s Asia Yield 1x1 Forum Tokyo
20168 A ERKREREEWRNS R®
September 2016 CLSA 23rd Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
201659 A BERREEWNE =8
November 2016 CITIC Securities Investor Forum 2017 Shenzhen
201611 A HERSREEWHE w
January 2017 Deutsche Bank 15th Annual dbAccess China Conference Beijing
201751 A BEERTREENTS =
Citi Hong Kong/China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
EEREEWNE i
February 2017 CICC Corporate Day Hong Kong
20175 2R hEREEMTE &8
Morgan Stanley Hong Kong / China Consumer Corporate Day Hong Kong
EREFAREERTS B
February-March 2017 Daiwa Investment Conference Tokyo 2017 Tokyo
2017 2-3 A RRBEERHE Rm
March 2017 Credit Suisse 20th Annual Asian Investment Conference Hong Kong
20173 A8 HEREEWNE &
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Our investor relations and corporate communications team also plays an
important role in assisting the Board to obtain market feedback, which in
turn helps to strengthen the Company’s inside information policy.

We constantly monitor the share price of the Company, screen media and
analyst reports, document feedback from investor meetings in order to
understand market expectations.

Based on such information, we are able to conduct analysis for the Board
to assess whether market expectations differ significantly from the
Group's circumstances.

Such information also facilitates the Company to assess the likelihood of
material share price movement in the event that a particular piece of
information on the Group’s circumstances is made public.

Furthermore, such market signals help the Company to determine whether
certain media news or market rumours should be clarified after considering
the possibility of misleading the market; and to monitor whether the
Group's inside information that relies on a safe harbour provision has been
leaked, in which case disclosure is immediately required.

Equal treatment of shareholders

The Board is conscientious about returns to shareholders. The Company
declares dividends twice a year. The basic payout ratio for the last
financial year was about 50% of the Group’s net profit. Special dividends
will be considered by the Board, on a case by case basis, when the
Company has managed sufficient funds for expansion and operational
needs of the Group.

Shareholder analysis, conducted every quarter, enables us to review our
investor relations strategy and work plan. Through well-planned
roadshows and investor conferences, we endeavour to make long-term
value of the Company visible to the investment community at large,
thereby enhancing the investment return to all shareholders.

No selective disclosure of inside information is allowed in our Company.
We have formalised controls on the sources of information and the
communication channels.

We emphasise the integrity and consistency in the content of the annual
and interim reports, which contain information desired by investors and
the public.

This set of published information is used in investor meetings and
conferences.

According to our spokesperson policy, only designated executive
directors and the investor relations and corporate communications team
are authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media on
behalf of the Company. Attendance notes and call logs are properly kept
for future reference.

Our investor relations and corporate communications team establishes its
own code of practices, which includes setting out a quiet period to refrain
from investor relations activities before results announcement; preparing
scripts and Q&As to manage the information released to the public; and
obtaining approval from the Board on the results presentation materials.
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Other information

Shareholders’ rights

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are able to
exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the
Articles and are also encouraged to participate in the Company’s general
meetings or appoint proxies to attend and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less
than 10% of the Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of
the meeting must be stated in the related requisition signed and deposited with
our company secretary at the Company’s headquarters at 33/F, New World
Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director in a general
meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated in a nomination notice
signed by such shareholder and deposited together with a notice of willingness
signed by the candidate to our company secretary at the Company’s
headquarters or at our Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor Investor
Services Ltd., Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of
the Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Enquiries may be put to our investor relations team and the Board via email at
ir@chowtaifook.com.

Constitutional documents
There was no change made to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year.

Market capitalisation

As at 31 March 2017, the market capitalisation of the listed shares of the
Company was approximately HK$75.5 billion (31 March 2016: HK$48.5 billion)
based on the total number of 10,000,000,000 issued shares of the Company and
the closing price of HK$7.55 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors as at the date of this annual report, the directors
confirm that the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of 10.7%,
which is a lower minimum percentage of public float accepted at the discretion
of the Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2017 FF 3§

H & R

B R

BRI ERBREQAFTHS MATUERITEL
BRRER > SEARTFNSERRAEHNER >
ZERARHEFINBRRASLRES - BEFRIORA
ANFI0%EBEREANRRITERESTS BRI
BAAEBTRZHZE FHRREEUEEIHERE
HEENEN  UESEAIAAWE  thitsH ' 2D
TBE  BEERRE R 16-18 R IR KE 33 -

BRRUOMABRRAS LIREEMA L HEES  BIE
BEERBAFMEANEHBEREBAZSERLR
BARENRERZE  EXFAQATLETH AT
E RAQAEBRNBEECIREERFETE
PRAT > it BEBERKERI183HEMF L2248 o
BAZEANEERRASEHIEL ERES -

B% 3R °] 3538 E # ir@chowtaifook.com 8 1% & & B R E B
REESRHBEH -

HEEREH
AR TR F R EAA B R S A TR o

miE

R2017F3831B BALAAEBERITRHEH
10,000,000,000 B¢ LA R B RR U T E 7.55 B Lat & » AR
ALmROTENE7SEET(2016F38318 ¢
485fBHBIT) ©

REMARERE
REAQXDESHLIHERRAESAA  EFER
RAFHRAY  RNOAEFBIAHNBEZEANBRESR

DPABEREBDE107% ©

101



102 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B ABHKEEEER QA

Corporate Governance ®¥%%8
Information for Investors & &EH

Investor calendar BEHEAR

FY2017 annual results announcement 017 BEESFEENE
8 June 2017 2017F 6 A8H

AGM BEBEXE

26 July 2017 20175678268

Proposed payment of final dividend and special dividend
on or about 11 August 2017

Closure of register of members (both days inclusive)
For ascertaining attendance and voting right at the AGM
21 July to 26 July 2017

For ascertaining entitlement to proposed final dividend and special dividend
2 August 2017

ERRE RGBSR E
20178 B 11 BRATE

TERERMERERFE(EEMXEIEEN)
BREEHERRBFASINE LRE
2017F7H21BZ26H

MEREREZERAREFNISHIRENEF
2017 8H2H

Share information

B & #

Company name
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

Listing
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Stock code
1929

Listing date
15 December 2011

Board lot size
200 shares

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2017
10,000,000,000 shares

Index constituent

Hang Seng Global Composite Index

Hang Seng Composite Index

Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index

FTSE Asian Retail Index

Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index

A&
BAAEHRERMARAT

L
BBET

Bt X 5%
1929

L E#
20115128151

BFEEEN
200 f%

#R201743 A31 HE&TBRA
10,000,000,000 %

Bt B

BAERRGEER
BEGEIEE

1B FE (BB L) 1005EH
ERFENTEXEER
BEBREREH
BATFERRIEEEEY
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Shareholder services

B SR AR

For matters relating to your shareholding such as transfer of shares, change of
name or address, and loss of share certificates, please write to our Hong Kong
Branch Registrar:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1333

Fax: (852) 2810-8185

Shareholders can obtain the annual/interim report of the Company by writing
to our Hong Kong Branch Registrar, or access the electronic version from our
corporate website.

FRETHEREE - WRDER  EEAZb
MEXIRE  FUEERAXNBARMNEBRDBF
BROE

EERSFETEARAT

BB
ERERER 183
BRI 2212

T FE  (852) 2980-1333
f&H : (852)2810-8185

RRATBBEMARBERMANTEROBFELD
BEUERARRNFR HHRE  IRBRANLE
BUMRBE TR -

Investor relations

REEME

For more information about the Group,

please visit corporate.chowtaifook.com

or contact our Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Department at
38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2524-3166

Fax:  (852)2526-9178

e-mail: ir@chowtaifook.com

BEAEEFE

58| corporate.chowtaifook.com

FERMWREEBERERCEEAIIPIBL
ERERKRE+R16-185

it R K= 384

EEE 1 (852) 2524-3166

{5 : (852)2526-9178

Z B : ir@chowtaifook.com

General information —REE R

Headquarters and principal place of business in Hong Kong BAMREBELIEEEME
33/F, New World Tower BERBERKEP16-185%
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong it R K E 334
Registered office HEMHER

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Board of Directors =&

Nomination
Committee

REEEE

Remuneration
Committee

HMESE

Audit
Committee
E%ZEYE

Executive
Committee

HITEES

Review the structure, size
and composition of the
Board, assess the
independence of the
independent non-executive
directors and make
recommendations to the
Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of
directors and board
diversity policy

FERESTRE - HAENA
B sHEEM IEHATESH
Bt URMEENER
EEEEHESTE LUK
KRS ENESSRNHE
BiEE

Make recommendations to
the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the
directors and senior
management and on the
establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure
for developing
remuneration policy of the
Group for approval by

the Board

BARABRNEBREEZNSR
EEBHMBERTERE 0 U
R BAEEZE Y ERMZEH
HFBNBCR BIET R F » mE
EERMAEBERUEER

3

Engage external auditors;
review the Group's financial
information, financial
reporting system, internal
control procedures and

risk management system;
and hear the reports of
internal audit and
whistleblowing

ERIMNEZ M A ERALEE
BEER  MBHEEAR A
MEEAGREFNEREER
% RN E LA IR
HERE

Management
EEE

Managing Director

ERREE

Oversee the day-to-day
management and
operation with the Board’s
delegated authority

RRESTNREEERR
EEREESH

|

Operation
management centres

EEE

Manage the Group'’s business in
Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and other markets by
regional headquarters, oversee
the entire operation chain from
raw material procurement, design,
production, to marketing and
sales

HE AR E R A S B P E A
B8 AP HAmISIER - B
BRENEERTEN  BEEN
RHREE - REH - £FE - URDSE
REHEEE

Corporate function
departments

R INEERRFT

Manage corporate functions,
such as corporate planning,
branding, finance and
accounting and IT by functional
department at corporate level

HEEE X EEMPIEEE
ETNEE - FlINEFERE - mER
B - MR ETURERRERS

Cross-functional
committees
SHfEEeE

Comprising executive directors
and senior management,
formulate strategies and
supervise performance related
to enterprise-wide governance
duties, such as risk
management, sustainability,
reform and development,
human resources planning of
the Group

HITESRSREEREAMN -
FIRI R W E B AR ER
BRI - FlanAE B YR
B AEHERRE C IER
R ANERRIZE



Board governance framework and major tasks

The Board'’s role is to provide leadership for the Company and direction
for the management as an independent decision-making body. Our Board
is collectively responsible and accountable to our shareholders for the
Group's performance.

The Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee each has its respective terms of reference specified by the
Board to undertake detailed governance work. A brief summary of their
tasks during FY2017 is shown on the chart in the preceding page and
further mentioned in the sections below.

The Executive Committee is delegated with all the powers, authorities
and discretion to act for the Board according to its terms of reference in
all operational, managerial and administrative functions concerning the
Group’s ordinary course of business. It monitors the execution of the
Group's strategic plans and the operations of all business units of the
Group.

Matters beyond its delegated authority are reserved to the Board for
decision, including those transactions which are notifiable transactions or
non-exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules; or in which
an executive director has (individually or together with others) material
interest; and those matters of onerous or unusual nature.

The roles of our Chairman and Managing Director are clearly defined and
there is an effective segregation of duties between the Board and the
management. Our Chairman, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and
all important issues are discussed in a timely manner. Our Managing
Director, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, takes the lead in managing the Group’s
operations and business development.

Directors’ composition and appointments

The Board currently comprises a total of 15 directors, with 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-executive
directors. The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship
with each other and the membership of the board committees are set out
in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

The Executive Committee comprises executive directors. Each executive
director has his own role and function to oversee the Group’s operations.
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The Company has a Board diversity policy and strives for a broad
spectrum of directors’ background to bring along comprehensive
considerations in forming Board decisions.

Independent directors nominated to the Board are required to be of
sufficient calibre and experience for their views to carry weight and pose
constructive challenge to Board proposals.

The five independent non-executive directors come from diverse business
and professional background. Their experience ranges from general
management to professional practices, from China business to global
enterprises, from private investments to companies listed worldwide. All
of them have proven experience in forming corporate strategies, risk
management and corporate governance.

While the executive directors possess management experience and
professional knowledge in various fields, the diverse composition of the
Board enables us to connect with a wide range of stakeholders including
our customers, suppliers, business partners, investors and colleagues. The
diversity of the Board is summarised in the following charts:

RAFETESESTBE - BRESMW
ZRER  FUHESTARTBEZAMNEZE -

REBUESNRAURLABRATHMNERE
HAUEESREEXE D URTEESREN
AR REAERENES -

BRI AU BYFHITESIRETRMNITEN
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PEEBUZRREE  RAREUSINEN
EHARE BALERRKSE  BREEMD
EERE  HELUENERER -

BEMNHBTESHEETREINEBRERNE
XHE EBELZANESEARKMERS -
MER EBRMY  REENBEZEFEFE
MENEBHBREBR EBEWZuibAadi
RTE :
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Area of experience
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year, amongst
other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.
We believe that the current Board composition is of sufficient diversity for
the achievement of our corporate strategic objectives, which explore
opportunities in business innovation and technological transformation by
leveraging on the existing competitive edge of our Group.

All directors have formal letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Articles. Appointments to the Board and Board committees are made
for specific terms to facilitate regular reviews and planning for any
adaptations in the structure and composition of the Board.

Board effectiveness

Leadership and control

Strategies drive our risk-based management approach which aims at
seizing emerging opportunities amid the changing external and internal
environment, in order to achieve sustainability.

During the year, strategy workshops and risk evaluation workshops were
held to facilitate the Board to devise the Group'’s strategy plan for the
forthcoming year and determine the critical tasks and key performance
indicators.

We also organised the annual corporate planning day to lay down the work
plans for various business units and to prepare the annual financial budget
of the Group.

The reporting and analysis generated from our information management
system are reviewed by the management who monitor the financial
budget and analyse the outcomes of the Group’s strategies in order to
review or make appropriate adaptations.

In the four Board meetings held during the year, the Managing Director
took the lead to make reports to the Board on various aspects, including
business performance and prospects, financial performance, risk

management and corporate governance.

During the year, the Board allocated sufficient time to discuss on
strategies related to 020 synergies, big data analytics, development of
U.S. wholesale business, industrial automation and artificial intelligence,
launch of CHOW TAI FOOK T MARK, revamp of store image and
enhancement of shopping experience. Besides, the directors revisited the
risks profile related to RMB exchange rates and gold inventory hedging.
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The Company also provides monthly updates to all the directors on the
Group’s performance and position to enable the directors to make

balanced assessment and informed decisions for the benefit of the Group.

The enhanced accountability and objectivity of the management are built
on the scientific management approach mentioned above which
promotes a professional management style.

Board independence in decision-making

We believe that independence is crucial for the Board to work effectively
to create value for our stakeholders as a whole. Notwithstanding the
family stake of 89.3%, the Company is committed to maintaining a
balance among the interests of the stakeholders by implementing various

corporate governance policies and practices.

The Group and the controlling shareholder exhibit independence in
regard to their respective operation, asset holding and financial
management. The business nature differs from each other so that conflict
of interests are minimised fundamentally in the absence of directly

competing business.

Driving for long-term value is the main objective in making Board decisions.
During the year, the independent non-executive directors raised questions
actively in Board meetings and Board committee meetings, taking into
account both the commercial context and the perspectives of minority
shareholders, and enable the Board to make thoughtful decisions which we
believe are regarded as reasonable by third parties and to keep the interests
of the controlling shareholder and other shareholders in alignment.

In respect of our approach to connected transactions, we work together
with related companies mainly for collaborating efforts in marketing to
explore value-added services for our common customers. With each of us
contributing our edge, we believe such efforts could enhance the
competitiveness of our brand and shareholders’ interests as a whole.

When approving a connected transaction, apart from the fairness of the
agreement terms, the independent directors also consider the
commercial rationale and the benefits brought by the proposal to the

business of the Group.

It is a norm for the director who is a connected person in relation to the
connected transaction tabled for approval to declare his interest in
advance and then abstain from voting on that resolution, regardless of

the materiality of such interest.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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Compliance and audit

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for developing and reviewing
the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance.

The Company has established its policy for inside information disclosures
as well as its internal controls on the reporting and monitoring systems so
that material matters are escalated to the Board in a timely manner for
them to judge whether inside information exists and whether an
announcement is required to disclose inside information in due course.

All our directors and employees are bound by the prevention of insider
dealing policy of the Company and should refrain from dealing in the
Company’s securities if they are in possession of any inside information of
the Group.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
regarding the securities transactions by all the directors and those
employees who are likely to come across inside information because of
their duties. Having made specific enquiry of all our directors and relevant
employees, they confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of
conduct during FY2017.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are discussed in the
section headed “Corporate Governance” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 March 2017, the Company was in full compliance with all
applicable principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group.
The directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. The statement by the auditors of
the Company and the Group regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Company and the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. They reviewed
the financial statements for the Group’s interim and annual results. They
also reviewed reports on the Group'’s risk management, internal controls,
internal audit and whistleblowing system, and discussed the related
matters directly with the management, external and internal auditors. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness of
our risk management and internal control systems. Further details are
included under the section headed “Risk Management Report” in this

annual report.
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The Audit Committee, after reviewing the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process,
recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s principal auditor. During FY2017, the total fee paid/payable in
relation to audit services provided to the Group amounted to HK$8.8
million, of which a sum of HK$5.0 million was paid/payable to our
principal auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and the remaining was
mainly paid/payable to other auditors performing audit work for the
Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject to local
statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for services rendered is listed as follows:

BERZEEREBEENEREMAREEF LN
Bt  REMANERER BEEREEH. B
ERFETMTARATNETEREE - AEE
R20V7THBREERAERRECH ENER
BEHSSHEBBIT  HHPEHN B ETERY
MEE. BERASTETAMTS0E 8B T 8/
AlFERAQFPEARUHE QR E AR
BETNEZIECH, EAEMZEE - 5
ERUHEBECAEE . .BEERAFMITREE
BARMNMESHEIIWT :

FY2016 FY2017
2016 T 2017 BABLE &
Types of services HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAS A FiET FT#ExT
Audit services BER% 4,793 4,985
Audit-related services FE 2R RIS 1,738 1,821
Non-audit services®ote) 3’F$*ZHE§%(M13) 41345 11705
10,876 8,511

Note: Non-audit services comprise primarily services on tax compliance and IT system enhancement provided to the M FEXRBEIELEOAEMEREEESHERERARRBUEZR

Group. None of these services provided compromise the independence as auditor, in terms of the International % o RIBER SR ESEAEEN [SXESFHMERTA ]
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and ERMHRBYRYEZBENE LY AEREZZESFHN
approved by the Audit Committee. #HEf o

E
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HHFE
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BRHEE - fIEARKK - EEBEF 2HAE
EE - MSEARTEBER SAITE
SEES  EEAKENSREEENEES
AEMBENRERBRXEKERZ -

Dedication and evaluation
. The directors have diligently and actively engaged in our Group’s

/|

business. Our executive directors carried out their respective duties to
formulate corporate strategies, supervise operations and take part in day-
to-day management. They attended the Company’s business meetings
and monthly meetings of the executive directors, managing director and
senior management, provided leadership over and supervised the
attainment of the Company’s business objectives.



Their performances are closely related to the results and development of
our Group. As such, the directors (including the independent non-
executive directors) reviews and evaluates the Group’s success in
strategies, operating efficiency, effectiveness in risk management and
internal control systems, reliability and disclosure standards in financial
reporting, corporate governance standards and sustainable development
principles through various management reports and the annual report,
taking into account investors’ feedback and comments.

Meanwhile, we are committed to enhancing the disclosure standards of
our annual report and the level of transparency for investors and other
members of the public, with a view to supplying meaningful information
which would enable stakeholders to play a part in reviewing the Board's
performance in corporate governance.

Attendance at AGM and Board meetings
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Number of Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for FY2017
017 BEELE SEREFESRRY

Annual
General Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee
RRBFRE EEREE EREES FHEES REEER
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAB L 1/1 3/4 - 1/2 1/1
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERELE 11 4/4 - 2/2 1/1
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EERE L 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BB 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong PR B EE 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BREBREE 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PREEA 4 1/1 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRARER oA 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRBrE 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRI 11 4/4 - - -
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul EREAEN Sk 11 4/4 3/3 - 1/1
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor® BEgELO 0/1 2/4 - 1/2 0/1
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon® LB E 0/1 3/4 3/3 2/2 -
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey M2 EE 11 4/4 3/3 - 11
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EREE L 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 1”1

Notes: P &E

m

)

Dr. Fung was unable to attend the AGM and a Board meeting both re-scheduled to 9 August 2016 due to typhoon,
as Dr. Fung had another prior engagement. The Company invited another member of the Nomination Committee,
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond to answer questions addressed to the chairman of the Nomination Committee at the
AGM. Besides, due to unexpected technical problem, Dr. Fung was unable to attend a meeting of each of the
Board, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee held on 7 June 2016 which he originally intended to
join by telephone conference from overseas.

Mr. Kwong was unable to attend the AGM and a Board meeting both re-scheduled to 9 August 2016 due to
typhoon, as Mr. Kwong had another prior engagement. The Company invited another member of the Audit
Committee, Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond to answer questions addressed to the chairman of the Audit Committee at
the AGM.

Q)]

(2)
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Remuneration and continuing development

The remuneration policy for the executive directors and senior
management is incentive-based, with a significant portion of discretionary
bonus being linked to the overall performance and profitability of the
Group, as well as the share price of the Company. This aims at enhancing
accountability by a better alignment of their rewards with the interests of
our shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year. The
performance of the executive directors was assessed, and the
remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management were reviewed and approved by the Remuneration
Committee a majority members of which were independent non-
executive directors. They also reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s medium to long-term incentives for the management’s
remuneration package to align with corporate goals in the long term.

In order to broaden the management’s horizon, the Company sponsors
them to attend professional programmes and participate in forums or
conferences. The Company also commits to enriching the roles to be
played by young management and creating promotional opportunities in
their career path which in turn will promote the sustainability of the
Group's business.

The Company'’s basic principle for selection of the management is on
merits. Coupled with talents obtained via external recruitment, the
Company has built up its management team primarily through internal
promotion.

We tailor-made induction programme for new directors in view of their
background to brief them on the Board proceedings and culture, the
operation and business of the Company, its corporate governance
policies, and statutory duties and responsibilities of directors.

We arrange visits to our management centres and production sites to
enable the independent non-executive directors to understand our
management, operation and control systems, as well as the latest
innovations.

We also encourage colleagues to participate in awards or competitions
which are relevant to their expertise.
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The directors also attended seminars or workshops relevant to their
profession and duties as directors. Their training records during the year
are summarised as follows:
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Other professional development activities

HttEERRED
Attending
trainings
organised by as speaker/
Name the Company trainer as attendant read materials
HEARQT ferEE/
=L ek diope]| EE fERHEE BIEER
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRI v/ v/ v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERESE 4 4 v
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEMIE L v v/ 4 v
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy WEELE v v/ v/
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong BRitt 8 4 4 v/ 4
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BRERELE v v/
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BREEAE o4 v v v
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERRER Se A 4 v/ v v
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BikAEE v v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BERR A v v/
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul BREFEI B L v/ 4 v
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BERE L v/ v/
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon B EE v/ 4
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey MRS TE v 4 v
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEE L v/ v
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We believe that our commitment to ethical practices and critical oversight
on our organisational processes and structures has contributed to a
strong control environment. It enables our organisation to preserve its

integrity and be resilient to internal and external pressures.

Systematic management infrastructure and scientific analysis have been
the key to the internal controls on our business activities and governance
in our organisational behaviour, supporting a sustainable growth in the

scale of operations.

We consider “ethics” and “science” as the two pillars in preserving
integrity and disciplining behaviour throughout the organisation, which
prove to be a pragmatic model to enhance our trustworthiness with
traceable accountability.

Corporate culture

Blessings and collaboration

Jewellery represents our commitment to consumers and not merely a
product. We wish to create unforgettable experience for the most
precious moment of our customers with excellent products and services.
In pursuit of our corporate core value of “Sincerity « Eternity”, we have
been committed to giving our best and blessings to our customers,
employees, partners, shareholders and the society. We ensure proper and
efficient use of social resources in support of our business and give back
to the society by creating shared value for sustainable development and
establishing a constructive rapport with the community.

Ethical business practices

We have encountered various challenges along our development path.
Nonetheless, we stay firm in our adherence to good corporate
governance. Having inherited an “artisan” DNA in the pursuit of
excellence, we are relentlessly dedicated to details in order to consistently
align our beliefs with real-life practices. Committed to integrity, business
ethics and legal compliance, we are widely recognised and supported by
customers, partners and other stakeholders. With their support, we are
able to overcome challenges and surpass ourselves in our pursuit of
sustainable development.

People-oriented objectives

All along, we operate with a people-oriented spirit and regard
communication as a fundamental in building mutual trust. We have a
culture of openness in listening to stakeholders’ needs and expectations
through interactions in our daily operation. We consider that a scientific
management system can only thrive by implementing people-oriented
practices in parallel. This can inspire continuous remediation and
enhancement towards our dual goal to explore growth opportunities for
the Group and our stakeholders.
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“Listen to Your Heart” programme

In view of the challenge of rapid market changes, the management
focuses on formulating responsive strategies and stepping up the
application of technology and innovation. Meanwhile, the Board cares
about how major stakeholders (including colleagues and business
partners) are coping under such circumstances. We therefore encourage
frequent sharing and communication hoping that more interactions
would inspire and drive us to make continuous improvement in various
aspects of our operations. We hope to be a faithful partner of our fellow
colleagues who stand by them and grow together in good and bad times.
Trust from our major stakeholders is highly valued by Chow Tai Fook.

During the year, recently retired senior management members were
appointed as advisors of a new programme “Listen to Your Heart”. The
advisors paid visits to frontline staff of our POS as well as officers of
shopping malls and franchisees in different cities each month to
understand how they felt about the work environment, team work,
remuneration, administration, technological application, business
performance and prospects in a relaxed setting through face-to-face
conversations and satisfaction surveys. The advisors then escalated those
feedbacks, together with their own observations, to our directors in an
organised way. Actions or improvement were to be taken under the
coordination of the respective executive offices. The advisors also made
recommendations to the heads of regional operations based on their
observations on the business sentiments and strengths of these regions.

This programme has yielded positive results by facilitating our directors
to stay tuned to frontline situations, helping them to take into account of
the perspective of major stakeholders in their decision-making. This
programme also reiterates our corporate culture that emphasises the
priority of people and persistent attention to details. Meanwhile, it has
also provided an alternative means of appraising the management’s

performance, thereby strengthening corporate governance.
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Promotion of “Do Good” spirit

Ever since the inception of Chow Tai Fook more than 88 years ago,
bringing happiness and well-being to people and mutual benefits to
partnerships have been at the heart of our business. While the concept of
sustainability has already been embedded in our business operations, we
used to stay low profile in marketing our “Do Good"efforts.

Recently, we have come to realise that better communication of our
efforts pertaining to sustainability both internally and externally would
promote inclusiveness and interactive engagements with stakeholders.
We want to understand more on how they perceive our current efforts
and what they further expect from us.

“Do Good, Feel Good” is our latest branding programme to showcase our
well-developed series of deliverables in pursuit of good business
practices, customer relations, well-being of staff members, better living of

community and harmony in a green environment.

Although we have published CSR reports for a few years containing
comprehensive information, we need more real-time sharing with our
staff in order to promote their engagement. In the course of launching
“Do Good” programme, we have formulated the communication
protocols, including logo, signature, information collection catalogue and
message circulation mechanism on various social platforms for staff.
Directors, management and staff are invited to join in “Do Good”
promotional events.

We aim to create a “Do Good” culture that strengthens our staff’s sense of
corporate identity and encourages them to take part in “Do Good” in daily
lives. From now on, “Do Good" is from everyone and for everyone of
Chow Tai Fook.

Sustainability report

We published a standalone sustainability report, an electronic version of
which is available for download on the corporate website of the Group
(corporate.chowtaifook.com/en/cg/sdreports.php).

The report focuses on aspects with important impacts on or opportunities
for the Group and its stakeholders, including our business practices, our

customers, our people, our environment and our community.

The sustainability report shall be read in conjunction with this annual
report to form a comprehensive view on the Group's sustainable
development efforts, which are found with our strategic planning,
corporate governance and business performance, as well as the
recognition of social responsibilities in our strategic planning and
business operation.
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Organisational structure

Our management structure is mainly organised by regions and functions.
All regional and department heads report to the Managing Director and
the Executive Committee. In this flat hierarchy, directions at the top level
reach regional offices promptly for implementation. Our established
corporate policies and operational procedures have ensured consistent
management standards over all key business activities throughout the
organisation. This mode of centralisation works well particularly for
corporate functions to ensure the overall management standards.

Meanwhile, in view of the rapidly changing and diversifying local markets,
our management is adapting to a more agile form in business
decentralisation. The regional units are promoted as active owners in
charge of the relevant purchase to sale strategies, taking advantage of
their local wisdoms to capture opportunities quickly in the local market.
The scope of duties and authority of each business unit are designated
according to the Group’s business model and management strategy. An
appropriate measure of autonomy and accountability is maintained
through staffing structure and clear definition of authority, with a view to
delegating the Group's strategic tasks.

In addition to the above vertical management structure, we also have
cross-departmental committees jointly led by our executive directors and
senior management. With clearly defined functions, roles and duties,
these committees assist in the Group’s strategic planning for relevant
areas and supervise the attainment of the Group’s objectives. The
committees include:

— Risk Management Committee

—  Sustainability Committee

—  Reform and Development Committee

— Human Resources Planning Committee

—  IT Governance Committee

Further, we have been setting up more project teams to undertake
business explorations and pilot projects. We like the flexible and open-
minded characteristics of small teams which enable us to be highly

responsive to market opportunities, as well as to train up our young
potentials.
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The Company has formulated applicable policies, rules, employees’
handbook and operational manuals for implementation in day-to-day
operations across all business segments through the management
hierarchies and operational systems. This scientific system is underpinned
by a reporting and self-inspecting mechanism for the purposes of
supervision and internal control. Independent certifications by external
institutions as well as internal audits are being conducted.

Performance and analysis

The Group conducts business planning on an annual basis, and all
regional offices and departments are required to prepare financial
budgets, which are consolidated at Group level and subjected to
sensitivity tests, while key performance indicators are also set.

We have established information management systems at the upstream,
midstream and downstream business units to allow close tracking and
monitoring of business input and output, including the procurement of
raw materials, production per order, inventory control, product sales,

human resources and customer relations.

Reports and variance analyses of multiple dimensions can be easily
retrieved from the business intelligence system. The transparency of
information transmission allows prompt indication of deviations in key
performance indicators and business performance trends, thereby
providing comprehensive information for the management to facilitate
appropriate planning and decision-making.

Given the inseparability of financial and business analysis, the Group has
made huge efforts to facilitate the convergence of financial data and
business data to improve the analysis of effectiveness of strategies and
monitor the use of resource, while enhancing integrated analysis in

annual reporting and overall performance review.

During the year, the Group set up the Strategic Business Office and Data
Intelligence Space in order to leverage on big data analytics and business
intelligence with a view to providing timely, visualized and market-
compatible analyses to drive business innovation and grab new business
opportunities.

RAEEEBROGEEANOEE - KA &
ITFMANEEFMR BRRLEBREMER
FE - BARBEEF - EEANBLRERAHER
FERMBEEVEOHS  REFEEE R
MEH o ETARESR BEINMEEE
SLEERE o

SESFETERERSE SEALBRMBPINE
BEHENBEE  TEEERESMETHR
ERSRE - I HIE S HBERANIER -

EMELE PHENTESSBEBEVEY
NEMEERS  BRMOTURZERMESR
EBLNEERANES  BERERMBERE -
AEAE FEEN ER#EE - ANEER R
BEFEBERE -

ZEEENRENZRINTESEBHXE
BAGEN SMEENEHETTRRERE
REVESENRENEBRRED - HAEEE
RHEZENEREM  URAFEEEDNS
FRE -

MBEXEBIMTTLE  FEFEHRZBD
THBEERLBHIEED - MR R KR
o BRMERERERNRG  MARH
REFRERNGS D AREBERRE -

F R EEE KB EK P QD E (Strategic
Business Office) 1 & K & & # £ [ (Data
Intelligence Space) » 3R f& Bh K &35 5 AT BEd g 3
BE, BHMEATSNEBEREBENDT - HE
SEEBERAIG - BIEEEK -



IT governance

The management is keen on applying IT resources in close tandem with
the business development of Chow Tai Fook, in order to support cross-
regional management, innovative retail business model, maintain a close
connection among the upstream, midstream and downstream business
units, and facilitate big data analytics, internal control and business and
financial reporting.

We have appointed a professional consultant to review the extent to
which the Group'’s IT set-up matches with its business development and
to assess the Group’s IT security. Reforms in the Group'’s IT governance
have been made with reference to recommendations furnished following
the review exercise. During the year, the IT Governance Committee
comprising executive directors and senior management in charge of
business innovation, financial and production management, data analysis
and IT was established to provide a platform for coordinated actions with
major stakeholders. The potential benefits and risks associated with the IT
requirements identified by business units are weighted in a rational
manner from a strategic point of view, with the aim of finding solutions
that maximise the benefits and efficiency in resource allocation in tandem
with the priorities under the Group’s overall strategy.

We have formulated the IT governance policy to regulate, among others,
activities relating to IT and computer security, social media software
application, management of product procurement and outsourced
services, operational and project management, and data management.

The IT Governance Committee also undertakes responsibility in IT risk
management, conducting analysis and evaluation of risks identified on an
annual basis and reporting to the Group Risk Management Committee.

During the year, the Management Information System Department has
been restructured and renamed the “Information and Communication
Centre” while the functions of IT professionals were streamlined to
enhance management of user requirement analyses, technical solutions
and service standards.
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Risk management and internal controls

While the Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of risk
management and internal control, we adopt an enterprise-wide risk
management structure from leadership role at Board level down to
accountability at business unit level. We take both “top-down” and
“bottom-up” approach.

During the day-to-day business processes, the executive directors have
ongoing dialogue with management of business units on the emerging
risks and opportunities, their possible impact and suggestion of measures.
They have ongoing review on the variance reports and analysis, budget
plan and actual performance, findings of control weaknesses reported by
audit teams. All such information also assists them in identifying what and
where problems may have arisen which require tackling from “top-down”
in order to achieve the strategic objectives.

On the other hand, policies, procedures and parameters of delegated
authority are in place to implement a formalised risk management annual
cycle from “bottom-up”. In the annual risk management cycle, business
units are required to identify and assess risks they face at the operation
level and record them in a risk register. Mitigation measures are also
registered to facilitate subsequent review and tracing of progress. To
facilitate both consolidated risk assessment at top level and following up
on each entry of registered risk, we process the risk data in a system
similar to an accounting system which is designed to allow traceability of
each risk entry and owner, categorized by business segment or business
objective, and consolidation of a holistic view of risk profile for the Board's
oversight on all significant risks facing the Group.

We put much effort in improving the formalised process, scope of
inclusiveness and quality of reporting of risk management. We aim to
raise risk awareness and accountability across all business operations by
putting all levels of management under a risk management framework
and then integrate risk management into day-to-day operations and
control system of the Group, resulting in a continuous process.

As part of monitoring of the effectiveness of internal control system, an
internal control self-assessment process is in place. Executive directors
and senior management of all major business and functional units are
required to complete and submit self-assessment questionnaires,
covering the effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance
controls and the reliability of financial reporting of the respective business
or function that they are held accountable for.
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Three lines of defence have been laid down in our governance framework
so that our internal control procedures, risk management, financial

compliance and internal audit can function in tandem.

Notwithstanding all the above, our risk management system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Compliance and audit

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring its business operations are in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board, the executive office and the legal department monitor from
time to time new legislations on our Group, while staying alert to
relevant notices from relevant authorities and industry news, to
evaluate the implications of such new regulations to the Group and

our business.

We typically start to study the potential impact from new regulations
might have on our business operation during the stage of public
consultation relating to such new regulations or otherwise ahead of their
formal implementation, so that we have sufficient time to prepare and
seek the best handling approach. In the event that changes in policies are
required, a company notice will be issued to announce the
implementation of new or revised policies.

We held almost 20 sessions of training on compliance and corporate
governance knowledge during the year, covering knowledge in new
advertising laws, consumer rights, intellectual property rights, personal
data privacy, prevention of corruption and bribery as well as risk
management. Over 600 colleagues from relevant business units
participated in these training sessions.

Regular reporting and monitoring on the compliance of various business
units are conducted via our management hierarchy. Through our crisis
management and reporting mechanism, social responsibility compliance
examination team and cases handled by our legal department, all
important areas of compliance monitoring have been covered.

There were no threatened or concluded cases of material nature in
connection with legal compliance during the year.
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Internal audit

The internal audit function is responsible for making an independent
assessment on the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and reporting its findings to the Audit Committee.

Our internal audit department draws up annual audit plan to review our
major operational, financial, compliance and risk management controls.

We team up with PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) to execute the audit
plan to utilise respective expertise and achieve better resources efficiency.

PwC focuses more on operational and compliance risks and controls, such
as IT system, production management, human resources promotion and
appraisal system which were reviewed during the year.

Our internal auditors conduct the Financial Control Assessment and
Monitoring System (“FAMS”) to monitor the Group’s financial statement
controls, aiming to enhance the reliability of financial reporting system.

Audit findings and control deficiencies are communicated between the
internal audit team and the management, who is responsible for ensuring
these deficiencies are rectified within a reasonable period. Post-audit
reviews are also performed to ensure the remedial actions have been
implemented.

The audit plan is designed based on risk assessment. Ad hoc reviews may
be arranged on top of the pre-set annual plan in case of potential
uncertainties raised by the management that require internal auditors to
attend to. Examples include review of franchise management,
management controls in overseas subsidiaries and handling of defective
products that were reviewed during the year.

We also monitor the Group’s POS audit programme which covers all of
our POS in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, allowing cross-
checking by skillful store management personnel between different
stores in order to assure the protection of inventories and cash and
operational compliance.
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External assurance

External assurance on the Group’s financial statements is obtained from
the independent auditor. Their roles and opinion are included in the
section “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

For operational aspects, we engage independent experts from respective
profession to assure standards such as environmental compliance, quality
management of manufacturing activities, product quality and safety.

With the assistance of independent experts who should have obtained
sufficient and appropriate evidence and tested the validity of such
evidence, we aim to enhance the monitoring of our business activities
and ensure our ability to meet the desired technical or quality standards
enabling us to remain as an industry pioneer.

Whistleblowing

This system provides a confidential channel for all employees to raise
concerns about fraud and other misconduct or improper behaviour. We
have put up posters at various staff corners to promote the
whistleblowing channel.

The chief whistleblowing officer is directly accountable to the Audit
Committee. The system is managed by a team of whistleblowing officers
appointed at the Group level. Their responsibilities include case
management, investigation on possible improprieties, engagement with
appropriate level of management for their investigation findings and
review of the progress of remedial actions undertaken by the

management.

Investigation results of cases involving fraudulent behaviour and gross
misconduct and relevant remedial measures are reported to the Audit
Committee and executive management for their evaluation.

The aim of the whistleblowing system is to detect, rectify and control
weaknesses at the earliest stage. More importantly, this system involves
participation of all levels of staff, reinforcing our determination in
preserving an integrity culture within the organisation.
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NC=Nomination Committee member
REESERE
RC=Remuneration Committee member
FHESERE
AC= Audit Committee member
FREERRE
Committee Chairman
EEEERE
Four of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other
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Chairman and Executive Director
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBS

Aged 70, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an executive
director in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is responsible for the
strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a director
of several substantial shareholders of the Company, including Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited, Chow Tai
Fook Capital Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and a director of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of New World
Development Company Limited, chairman and an executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited and International Entertainment Corporation, chairman and a
non-executive director of New World Department Store China Limited, Newton
Resources Ltd and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, a non-executive director
of SJM Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director of HKR
International Limited and Hang Seng Bank Limited, all of which are listed public
companies in Hong Kong. He is chairman and managing director of New World
China Land Limited, which was a listed public company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on 4 August 2016. He was a non-executive director of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong,
until his retirement on 4 May 2015.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong Kong
Foundation and a Standing Committee Member of the Twelfth Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung,
Timothy and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 61, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing Director in July
2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall
management of the Group.

Mr. Wong is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, which is a subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wong has diverse experience in both operations and management. He
was responsible for developing the Group’s market in Mainland China and in
2008 he was promoted to managing director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Company Limited.

Mr. Wong is chairman of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (“HKTDC") and a member of the 2017 fair organising
committee of the HKTDC for its Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and
Hong Kong International Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, council member of
The Hong Kong Management Association and chairman of its 2017 Theme Year
Working Party, chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association
Ltd., chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong & Kowloon
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, a vice chairman of the
Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, a member of Hong Kong Consumer
Council, vice-chairman of the Yantian District General Chamber of Commerce
and a member of the Yantian Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wong was awarded Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in December 2015 and named as “CEO of the Year/Luxury/
Asia” at the 2016 IAIR Awards presentation ceremony held by International
Alternative Investment Review.

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, JP

Aged 37, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Dr. Cheng is responsible for the brand identity re-creation and
marketing activities of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group, and a director of
a substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and
its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from Harvard University
and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by the Savannah
College of Art and Design. He worked at UBS AG from September 2003 to
April 2006 prior to joining the Group, and has substantial experience in
corporate finance.
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Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and general manager of New World
Development Company Limited, an executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited and International Entertainment Corporation,
and a non-executive director of Giordano International Limited and Modern
Media Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.
He is an executive director of New World China Land Limited, which was a listed
public company in Hong Kong until its delisting on 4 August 2016.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation Limited, the
vice-chairman of the All-China Youth Federation, a member of the Tianjin
Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of the Central State-owned Enterprises,
chairman of the China Young Leaders Foundation, founder of K11 Art
Foundation and a member of the board of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority.

Dr. Cheng is a son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-
Hung, Timothy and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Aged 39, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the procurement of diamonds and
gemstones as well as production management of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and

its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The Western
University (formerly known as The University of Western Ontario). Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu Ming Investment Management
Limited from 1999 to 2000 as a corporate finance executive. He is currently a
member of the executive committee of the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong,
China Ltd..

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of New World Development Company
Limited, which is a listed public company in Hong Kong. He was a non-executive
director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited until his resignation
in June 2015.

Mr. Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu,
Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian and a grandnephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Aged 54, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s operations in Mainland China.
Mr. Chan is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 36 years. He is an administrative
director of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China, a member of the
standing council of China Gold Association, a member of National Technical
Committee 298 on Jewelry and Jade of Standardization Administration of China,
an executive vice-chairman of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery
Chamber of Commerce, a vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery
Association, a general vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong
Province, a vice-chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade
Industry’s Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute, China
University of Geosciences (Wuhan).

Mr. Chan is also a non-executive director of Giordano International Limited,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 52, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Suen is responsible for the Group’s Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas operations. Mr. Suen is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for 32 years. He holds an Executive
Master’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Aged 66, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for the diamond procurement and operations
of the Group’s diamond department. Mr. Chan is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business from Western lllinois University.
He is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America, a Fellow of
The Gemmological Association of Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the
Gemological Institute of America, Alumni Association.
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Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 42, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Cheng is the finance director and company secretary of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s financial management and company
secretarial functions. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is also
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a committee member of
its Corporate Governance Policies Committee, dedicating to the advancement
of good corporate governance practices. Mr. Cheng was awarded Director of the
Year Awards 2015 by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in December 2015.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 42, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive director in
January 2016. Mr. Liu is responsible for the business innovation of the Group
and managing the Mainland China Management Centre. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has been responsible for developing the Group’s e-commerce and high-
end luxury jewellery business in Mainland China since 2010. He has also been in
charge of the Group’s watch business in Mainland China from 2016 onwards. Mr.
Liu holds a Master of Business Administration degree from The Western
University (formerly known as The University of Western Ontario) and a Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Mathematics from Carleton University. He has
over 18 years of experience in retail and administrative management.

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 58, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive director in
July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group’s bank and landlord
relationship management.

Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a director of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of
Hawaii, Honolulu. Mr. Cheng is a vice-president of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society.

Mr. Cheng is an executive director of International Entertainment Corporation,
which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung,
Timothy, an uncle of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng,
Conroy and a nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul, JP

Aged 80, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
September 2012 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Lake Forest College (lllinois, the
United States) and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
Wharton Graduate School of Business at The University of Pennsylvania.

He is deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of Esprit
Holdings Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong; and an independent
non-executive director of Global Logistic Properties Limited (a company listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange) and Pacific Alliance China Land Limited (a
company listed on the AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange). In addition,
he is a director of the CHG Capital Growth Fund. He was also an independent
non-executive chairman of Vietnam Infrastructure Limited, which is listed on the
AIM Board of the London Stock Exchange, until his resignation in June 2014. He
was a former member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council as well as the former
chairman of Inchcape Pacific Limited, N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong)
Limited, The Link Management Limited and the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce.

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

Aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Fung holds Bachelor’s and Master’s Degrees in Electrical Engineering from
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a Doctorate in Business
Economics from Harvard University.

He is group chairman of the Fung Group, a Hong Kong based multinational
group which comprises major operating groups engaging in trading, logistics,
distribution and retailing. They include publicly-listed Li & Fung Limited, Global
Brands Group Holding Limited, Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity
Limited. He is also honorary chairman of Li & Fung Limited. In addition, Dr. Fung
is an independent non-executive director of Koc Holding A.S. (a company listed
on the Istanbul Stock Exchange). He retired from the Board of China
Petrochemical Corporation (PRC) end of January 2016. He was an independent
non-executive director of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong) from
June 2002 to June 2014.
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In 2015, Dr. Fung was appointed Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Asia
Global Institute at The University of Hong Kong, a new multi-disciplinary think-
tank to assume and carry forward the mission and operations of Fung Global
Institute, of which Dr. Fung was Founding Chairman (July 2010-June 2015). In
public service, Dr. Fung is a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is also a member of the Economic Development
Commission of the Hong Kong Government, and chairman of the Steering
Committee on the Hong Kong Scholarship for Excellence Scheme. Dr. Fung was
appointed adviser of the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation Office of The Hong
Kong Monetary Authority in July 2016. He was chairman of the International
Chamber of Commerce (“ICC") (2008-2010), a member of WTO Panel on Defining
the Future of Trade (2012-April 2013) and a vice chairman of China Centre for
International Economic Exchanges (March 2009-October 2014). The Government
of Hong Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the Grand
Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the community in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwong is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Kwong was a Partner of PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an
independent member of the Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from
1992 to 1997, during which, he had acted as convener of both the Compliance
Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Agile Property Holdings Limited), COSCO Shipping
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited), China Power International Development Limited, CITIC
Telecom International Holdings Limited, Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land Development
Company Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, OP Financial Investments Limited,
and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies
in Hong Kong. He was also an independent supervisor of the supervisory
committee of Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited until his
resignation on 30 June 2014 upon completion of his term.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

Aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in mechanical engineering from Tufts
University in the United States. He has over 30 years of experience in the toy
industry and is currently the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries
Limited which is engaged in toy manufacturing.

Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited,
China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited, Wynn Macau, Limited and HNA
Holding Group Company Limited (formerly known as HNA International
Investment Holdings Limited), all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He was also an independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited until his resignation on 10 May 2014 and Bracell Limited until
his resignation on 1 November 2016 after its delisting.

Mr. Lam is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He also holds a number of other public and
community service positions including being a non-official member of the
Executive Council and a member of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong,
chairman of the Assessment Committee of Mega Events Fund, a member of the
board of Airport Authority Hong Kong, a general committee member of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, chairman of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) Complaints Committee, a member of
Fight Crime Committee, a director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited and the board of Heifer International-Hong Kong.

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

Aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in November
2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Or holds a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics and psychology
from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded an Honorary Doctor of
Social Science from the City University of Hong Kong in 2014.

Dr. Or is also chairman, chief executive officer and an executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited, vice-chairman and an independent non-executive
director of G-Resources Group Limited, chairman and an independent non-
executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited, and an independent non-
executive director of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Television Broadcasts Limited and Regina Miracle International (Holdings)
Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Or is also
deputy chairman and a non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited (a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange).
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Honorary advisers to the Board of Directors

Mr. Ho Pak-Tao
Aged 86, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the
Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on research
and development. Mr. Ho is also a director of a substantial shareholder of the
Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

Aged 85, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the
Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial shareholder of the
Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is an uncle of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, and a granduncle of
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

Aged 66, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an honorary adviser to the
Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and its
subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. Mr. Cheng is a cousin of Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, an uncle of Dr. Cheng
Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, and a nephew of Mr. Cheng
Yu-Wai.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 45, joined the Group in 2010, is a deputy general manager of the Group
and the director of Branding Department. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for the
branding and marketing activities of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 22 years of
experience in luxury branding and marketing.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1993, is a deputy general manager of the Group
and the head of Information and Communication Centre. Mr. Tsang is mainly
responsible for managing and developing the information infrastructures and
technologies of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 24 years of experience in
information technology.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management EERSHREEASHN

Mr. Chan Chi-Kong, Morison

Aged 50, joined the Group in 2012, is a deputy general manager of the Group.
Mr. Chan is responsible for corporate planning and related affairs of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 27 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance and management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chan is
the past Chairman of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong
Kong. He is currently a member of the Professional Development Sub-
committee of the ACCA Hong Kong, Human Resources Development
Management Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association and
Council of Management of the Hong Chi Association.

Mr. Lau King-Ming

Aged 50, joined the Group in 2013, is a deputy general manager of the Group.
Mr. Lau is responsible for the Group’s production management and the
management of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Park in Wuhan. Mr. Lau has over 27
years of management and consultancy experience.

Mr. Lee Tin-Hei, Jade

Aged 42, joined the Group in 2016, is a deputy general manager of the Group.
Mr. Lee is responsible for business strategy and analytics of the Group. Mr. Lee
has over 20 years of experience in advanced analytics carrying out consulting
and business management roles with leading business analytics corporations.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

Aged 55, joined the Group in 1986, is the senior manager of Diamond
Department. Mr. Wong is responsible for the operation of Diamond Department
and diamond manufacturing management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 31
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

Aged 45, joined the Group in 1994, is the senior manager of Procurement
(Gemstones) Department. Mr. Cheng is responsible for managing and
purchasing gemstones such as jadeite, colour stones and pearls for the Group.
Mr. Cheng has over 22 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max

Aged 34, joined the Group in 2011, is the creative director of the Group. He is
responsible for the design and development of jewellery products. Mr. Lam has
over 13 years of experience in jewellery design. He was awarded Hong Kong Ten
Outstanding Designer Award in 2014 and is an adjunct professor of the
Shanghai International College of Fashion and Innovation, Donghua University.
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Mr. Wong-Tang, Alex

Aged 58, joined the Group in 2000, is the general manager of the Hong Kong
and Macau Management Centre. Mr. Wong is responsible for managing the
Hong Kong and Macau Management Centre and Chow Tai Fook Fei Cui Testing
Centre of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 43 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master’s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Graduate
Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America and a Certified Gemmologist
(Fei Cui) of the Gemmological Association of Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. Danita On

Aged 40, joined the Group in 2012, is the director of Investor Relations and
Corporate Communications Department of the Group. Ms. On is mainly
responsible for maintaining effective communications with investors and media.
Ms. On has over 19 years of experiences in auditing, management consulting,
equity research, asset management and investor relations. She is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Chartered
Financial Analyst.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2017.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group’s core business is
manufacturing and selling of mass luxury and high-end luxury jewellery,
including gem-set products, gold products and platinum/karat gold products,
and provision of related services; and distributing watches of various brands.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's revenue is derived from business activities conducted in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and other markets. The segment information of the
Group’s operation is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for FY2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 158.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per
share (FY2016: HK8.0 cents per share) and a special dividend of HK20.0 cents per
share (FY2016: HK22.0 cents per share) for FY2017, amounting to approximately
HK$3,000 million (FY2016: HK$3,000 million). Such payment of dividends will be
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 26 July 2017 and is payable
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 2 August 2017. Together with
the interim and special dividends of HK21.0 cents per share paid in December
2016, the total distribution of dividend by the Company for FY2017 will be
HK51.0 cents per share (FY2016: HK80.0 cents per share). The payment date of
the final and special dividends is expected to be on or about 11 August 2017.
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Business review

FY2017 continued to be a year filled with challenging business dynamics. The
Group's revenue decreased and we remained selective in our moderated POS
expansion. Encouragingly, remarkable improvement was shown in the
2HFY2017, resulting in an increase of the Group’s profit in FY2017. Despite the
headwinds ahead, the Group’s underlying competences and strategies remain
strong. We are dedicated to leveraging the Internet and technology to facilitate
our business innovation and enhancement. We will further invest in the use of
automated technology to achieve greater supply chain efficiency, and sharpen
our edge on the vertically integrated business model to reach out to U.S.
wholesale business. Besides, we aim at delivering unique and personalised
customer experience by refreshing store image and offering diversified products
and collections in view of the evolving lifestyle consumption. Looking ahead, we
will remain focused in striving for sustainable growth with quick response to
market changes and customer preference.

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year as well as a
discussion on the likely future developments are provided throughout this
annual report, particularly in the following sections:

—  “Chairman’s Statement”

—  “Managing Director’s Strategic Report”

—  “Management Discussion and Analysis”

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties, compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations, environmental policies and performance
and key relationships with its stakeholders are provided throughout this annual
report, particularly in the following sub-sections:

—  "Risk Management Report”

—  "Board Governance”

—  "Investor Relations”

—  “Corporate Management”

—  "Sustainability Report”, which is available on our corporate website

Financial summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 238.

Share capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. There is no movement in the share capital during the year.

Distributable reserves
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2017 amounted to

approximately HK$5,540 million (31 March 2016: HK$5,539 million).

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 162.
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Pre-emptive rights BrBEER

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the RIS B 2 F AN A MEMNME LB ERIRI -
Cayman Islands.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities BE HERENLmES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or AARREEAMBARRERIEEE HERE
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year. EARQ B MEA LS o
Directors =]

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are: FARBEETFHRAHNESS
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAGE L

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent ERERE

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BERIE L

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BERELE

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong Rt 2 S

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREE

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BRAEE L4

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRIRER 4

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BikBrE

Non-executive Director EHITES

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BERE L

Independent Non-executive Directors BWIAEMITES

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul 1 e

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BRI E LT

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon AR EE

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey MR E

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EEE L

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Dr. RIBMAAISE g4tk - BMRAEL BERB L - EIHE
Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor Sk BESETIRBETREEBAERERRESE R
and Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon will retire at the forthcoming annual general SLRE BEFCEREREE-

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts EEREESY

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its BEREBSHAQARARIEETMAWNE LRI LFAR—F
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of ABEAZFEAEECEEFERI) ML LR
compensation, other than statutory compensation. BEH -



Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements and
contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which any of the
Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent companies was a party and
in which a director of the Company or the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

The Group has certain ongoing transactions carried on with connected persons
with expected annual transaction amounts exceeding the “de minimis”
exemption threshold and therefore the Company reports these non-exempt
continuing connected transactions during FY2017 under the Listing Rules. These
transactions are mainly related to lease of premises and sale and purchase of
goods and services. Information about the connected persons is shown on page
144. Details of these transactions are set out in the tables below.
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EBRRE - RHRAQPIRE

BRAFRABZEEIN  RRBANHMERR - BRKE
RARFRARFRIFRNEMERE - LETHER
HAEBXBEMEBEAARDAESHESNEHE
ATREFEFEARERS (THEEIBR)NRS -
ZHREH

AEBEFHEEATETETRS  BHRFEXSZE
ERAKERREKY  HALARE LTHRAUER
01T7MBFENNZSFRRFEBERS - ZEX
ZEEMRREHEURFEERBEERRRE - B
BEEALTHNERBREIM4E - ZERZNFAER
FIRTE& -

Lease of premises 4 ¥ A &

Name of counterparties 32 5 ¥ 77 & 1§ CTFE B XfR ¥

NWD #iitt 7 3 &

NWDS #iitt R B &

Main purposes of the leases Standalone retail shops,

industrial and office uses

Offices and standalone
retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters
operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HETEMAR REBHNBLTERE REBHORIER RPBEREEE AR
IERBAZERR BYEER FREE
Master/framework agreement date 28/11/2011* 11/4/2014%* 22/3/2012**
e /ER R A
Next renewal date 31/3/2020 30/6/2020 30/6/2020
TREZEBH
Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2017 (HKSmillion)
017 BFENCHEFELRRERE+ESE(BEET)
Annual cap 108 199 455
FELR
Amount incurred 77 11 69
Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HK$Smillion)
HENBFENCHEFE LR (BEET)
FY2018 122 132 100
2018 FBUF BE
FY2019 122 132 124
2019 AU BE
FY2020 122 134 154
2020 B
Notes: P &E
* This agreement was renewed on 1 April 2017 * EER 2017 F4 81 HEE
** These agreements will be renewed on 1 July 2017 ** ZEWMHEER2017F7A1AEE

141



142 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B ABHKEEEERA A

Corporate Governance ®¥%%8
Directors’ Report EEER &

Sale and purchase of goods and services $55 % i & & S F1 R 55

Name of counterparties 3 5 ¥ 77 & 1% NWDS #f it 57 & & NWCL # tt 57 o B th NCE KTL 71/ B8 5 bt

Major types of goods and services Use of shopping Use of gift vouchers  Polishing, processing  Licensing of intellectual
vouchers, prepaid to purchase goods and handling of property rights in,
shopping cards, in our Group’s POS gemstones for among other things,
joint name vouchers  and settlement of the Group, and cartoon characters to
etc. to purchase respective voucher provision of related the Group for
goods at NWDS value and rebates; technology, related production, sale and
stores, and sale of gold assets and other marketing of certain
settlement of products ancillary services, licensed products
respective purchase products and
value, commissions devices

and rebates, where

appropriate

ERRRENETEESR EAHEES - AN ERRFRAER AXREEBEAMRY - AAKRERD(EH
B R EOH ETZEHEBE MIRERE =23 BEF) FRAEH
BESENMHR Em o SEETHEE HERM - HEEE XEERE . HEE -
BEERBESR > BHREERDD. MEAMRERS - HERTISEE
WHFEEBEEE - HEESEM EmRIA BETREER
AEREFN (EA)

Master/framework agreement date 11/4/2014*%* 19/3/20713%*** 29/1/2016 29/4/2016

e/ ERTE B

Next renewal date 30/6/2020 30/6/2018 28/1/2019 28/4/2019

TREZEBH

Annual cap approved and actual amount incurred for FY2017 (HKSmillion)

017 MBFENCHEFELRERERSHLESH(BEBT)

Annual cap 96 390 130 44
FELR

Amount incurred 0.3 5 25 26
BERBEELRE

Annual cap approved for subsequent financial years (HKSmillion)

HENBRFENEHEFELR(BEEBT)

FY2018 N/A 18 461 240 57
2018 BA R EE
FY2019 N/A 1 3E N/A T3 B N/A T3 A 73
2019 BIREF E

Note: Bt -

*ex This agreement will be renewed on 1 July 2017. As all the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule e ZEMBERBR2017F7A1REE - ARZMBEERRETNEE
14.07 of the Listing Rules) of the transactions contemplated upon renewal of this agreement are, on an annual REMEBABALER(EER LHRAIE14.0715) ER0.1% A
basis, less than 0.1%, the renewed agreement commencing from 1 July 2017 will be fully exempt from the 201771 BHBRNEEEREK 2 ARRRETHR A ERRK
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements RAERE

P ZER &
i This agreement was renewed on 1 July 2015 RN 201557 31 AR



The Group's pricing policy and internal control on continuing
connected transactions

The Company has entered into master agreements or framework agreements to
set out the principles governing the above continuing connected transactions.
The Group maintains a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for the
negotiation with counterparties regarding the respective definitive agreements
under the continuing connected transaction arrangements of the Group.

(@  Forrental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time of entering
into the respective tenancy agreements will be followed. The Group will
obtain comparison from relevant market information from the market or
independent valuers and with rental rates of premises in similar locations
leased by the Group.

(b)  For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as the case
maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group offers or is willing to
offer to independent customers around the time of transaction will apply.

(c)  For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing market prices
around the time of transaction will apply. The Group will obtain
quotations or tenders from independent third parties for goods, services
or assets with similarities to compare with the prices and terms offered in
the market, if there is no sufficient comparable in the market, the Group
will make reference to the reasonable costs for developing or providing
such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable profit margin that
commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a regular basis
to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either equivalent to or better than
the prevailing market prices.
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Relationships between counterparties

Other than NCE and KTL, the other counterparties to the continuing connected
transactions mentioned above are connected persons of the Company mainly
due to direct or indirect shareholding held by the Company’s substantial
shareholder, CTF Holding, in these counterparties. Shareholding relationships
among the Company, CTFE, NWD, NWDS and NWCL are illustrated in the
simplified chart below:

CTF Holding™

BAREERD

B3 58 AR EF

BRNCER FIBE m i 2 5h » LS ERER S NEM
SHABRALANEEAL  TERHARARRE
ERRARBEREESIBBESAZSHTFIRE -
ANE - BRBRE  FERRE  HERTEEN
R EE RS R ERFHESE RN TEEE

89.3% 100.0%
The Company CTFE®@
GaoL BAEEED
44.2%
NWD(3)
i RERS
72.3% 100%
NWDS® NWCL®
FtRBEEY it R AR EC)
Notes: Bt -
(1) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (1) BXREEZR)ARAT
) Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (2) BAXBEEARDT
3) New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17) (3) it ABRERAT (BRHNRSE 17)
@) New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825) 4) R EEFEBRA T (RHRE - 825)
(5) New World China Land Limited (5) it RPEERRA R
6) The approximate percentages of shareholding are shown for reference only to illustrate the relationships between (6) BMABRESLEHRSE  UHPHEESNEER ZENREEE

the connected parties. The information is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock
Exchange website as at the date of annual report, which however may not be updated or correct

New Cutting Edge Limited (“NCE”) and its subsidiaries are majority-controlled
companies indirectly held by Mr. Cheng Kam-Chiu, Stewart, who is a family
member and therefore an associate of certain directors of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, NCE and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company.

KT Licensing Limited (“KTL"), through its holding companies, is in turn owned as
to 50% by the trustee of a trust established for the benefit of the family
members of Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor. Therefore, KTL is an associate of a
director of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, KTL
and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the Company.

FI|MAMPR AU LB ESRE - RLEEHNREE

New Cutting Edge Limited ("NCE" )R EMIB AT RHE
SNBENWHBEBELEMBESEN G S EIRGIE
WATE RBLETROFEMAZEE  BAEILINK
NEENBHEA At NEREWHBLATNRAAT
WEEAL o

FMBmEERAR (FERE ) BEEZRATHEN
BEEETRERENEMRINETENZIAAES
50% % o Hit - RIFELETHRAUE 14AE - FIBRES
AR -—BRESHBHEA - Bt AEBREREKE
RABEARBFEEAL -



Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a summary of
the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the review of the Executive Committee to ensure that those
transactions are entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on
normal commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable. Our internal audit team will
further select samples from those transactions and compare them with similar
types of transactions entered into by the Group with independent third parties
during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
Company'’s auditor to perform certain review procedures in order to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the Executive
Committee, the internal audit team and the auditor of the Company were
reported to the independent non-executive directors in the Audit Committee
meeting. After review by the Audit Committee, the independent non-executive
directors confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group’s non-exempt continuing
connected transactions. The directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in so far as they are applicable.

Related party transactions

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year set out in note 39 to the financial statements include transactions that
constitute connected transactions and continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with.
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Major customers and suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’s revenue was attributed to the
Group's five largest customers. Besides, 71.2% of the Group's total purchases
were attributed to the Group's five largest suppliers and 52.3% of the Group's
total purchases were attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of
the directors’ knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder who to the knowledge of
the directors owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 March 2017 held any interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

Directors’ interests in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares

TEBREFNHER

FR > RNEEDR00%EEEREREFRLAEE -
Beoh » AREEBIREEER71.2% R B A EE A A ER -
MAEBEARERES23% RAREERAHER - FE
EE R2017F3831 8 MEEE  HEREE
ZHEA(EER LRI AESNERELAQAFS
BITRAS% U EMEMRRISFEASEE R AHES
RNEEEIRELS o

EFRAAANBRY  BERHR
R

MR2017F3A318 RAREERESITHRAERE
AR EEAEEEE (EXRBFRBEHRGIEXV
) KRR - EEER D REEET  HEREESRE
BIRGIEXVIBE7TRESHHEME AR A RERFT
WRERRKRE  RITHERIREE S R ERGI5352
RAEEBTFFENZCMANESZR AR  SREL
TR BIRT 8% 10 FRER MV E<F RIZB NS AR D B R B R A
WRERRRENT :

R BT S

Number of shares Approximate

RSB % of
Personal Spouse Corporate shareholding
interests interests interests Total AR
AR BB EERERE a% Bat

The Company (ordinary shares AAR(BREE

of HK$1 each) 1B THEER)
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BERELE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BEME L 20,000 20,000 0.0%
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong it S 4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter ‘AR EE 3,600 3,600 0.0%
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert PR L4 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERRER S 4 4,800 4,800 0.0%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRAEE 12,000 12,000 0.0%
Note: WiaE -

(1) These shares are beneficially owned by a company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

m ZERDEESAEL2EREN - RONERRES



Substantial shareholders’ interests in securities

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons (not being directors or chief
executives of the Company) had the following interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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FERRREBESFNER
R2017F38318  RIEFSFRAEGRAIFE3361KE
BFENETMATENUT AL (EFRQATEERR
SITBRAB) FiiEE AR AR KRAS RAAER D HER R
AWMT :

Long position in shares RGBT
Number of shares Approximate
RAEE % of
Beneficial Corporate shareholding
Name interests interests Total BAER
27 BERER EEER &t Vil
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8,933,937,400  8,933,937,400 89.3%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited BRE(ZER)BRAR 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.3%

Note: Bt :

As at 31 March 2017, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I) Limited held
approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively, which in turn held an approximately
81.0% interest in Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited is deemed to have an interest in the shares of the
Company held by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited held 8,933,937,400 shares of the
Company directly as at 31 March 2017.

Share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a shareholders’
written resolution of the Company passed on 17 November 2011. No options
have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption
up to the date of this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
incentivise them to remain with the Group and motivate them to strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the
Group and any other persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the
Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to
the Group.

74201743 B 318  Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited % Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings I1) Limited & B 4 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited % Bll %75 # 49.0%
%.46.7% #E%5 » T Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited BIAB AR (2R BRAREFE
#181.0% % % It Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited * Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings I1) Limited 5 Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 18 5 1A B A %8 (1£4%)
BRDRAFMFARTROPEEES - MAKE(ER)BRIAN2017F3A8
31 B RIE B A D H8,933,937,400 RAR 1D ©

BT

AATBRER20MENBI7EN—REEEAS
BT BRE B ([ZEt8)) - BZHEARKAHE
AERAE  AQAYPERL  TERFHZFET
(R B8 ARAE o

ZAT B EEBARMENLAARENKS - RE5IH
REMERNAS - BBGMNEEREE  SBES
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted pursuant
to the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the Company's listing date
of 15 December 2011, being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit”),
which represented 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report. The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with
shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options which have
been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out in
the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the options granted to
each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares of the Company in
issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the “Option
Period”) shall be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at
the time of such grant, which shall not expire later than 10 years from the
grant date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during the Option
Period in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and the terms on which the
option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event shall not
be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the grant date, which
must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of
the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of
conditional adoption, i.e. 177 November 2011.
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20MFENAISEE BT ARAA KM A10% B
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BB TR E ITRIDHY30% o

MRIERZTEMBARNEAQATARRIE BREE
B2HEETEMNREARERBERE(BREETER
MARTENBERE) BENROBRSHE T ESBRER
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Permitted indemnity provision

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all losses, damages and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the directors.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$10.8 million (FY2016: HK$9.8 million).

Events after the reporting period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the
Group after 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 June 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
ARBEHREEEERNF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 158 to 237, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MBEEAER

HRETSEEREXMANIRAE - AHYAHR
SUBBRNBETRAEENSH - ELEEZHRER
MNEAERGSUBRRRHASRBETREN -
EMNTEHELSERMHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMEFMTHRARE A ETHETRE

Valuation of inventories

HFEEE

We identified valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the judgements associated
with determining the amount of allowances on inventories.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$29,259.3 million. The management of the Group determined
that allowances on inventories were recognised in profit or loss
amounting to HK$39.8 million during the year ended 31 March
2017.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, in
estimating the amount of allowances on inventories, it is the
Group’s policy to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to current market situation and
conditions of the items. The Group’s management reviewed
regularly the suitability of the allowance policy and then applied
allowances on those inventories by considering the net realisable
value. The Group’s management reviewed the inventory age
listing to identify slow-moving inventories and then estimated the
amount of allowances primarily based on pricing policy and
strategies and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation and assess the conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery
with reference to international diamond prices, its expertise and
the current market situation.

BRHAEFELERBERENSE RAHAKRSHAURER
SUBRRMEER  UREEFEEGSEI R -

A2017F38318 FEMKRAEEA225938E8ET B &&
EEEEFEENRE  BE2017F3831BLFERBREIN
FEEER398FEBT -

MGEEPBHMRMTAMBE - AEEFELER S BEENEE
RSERBHRREERRUAETHRIFETLEFEE . HE
EEEETHRIBEERNGEN BZEASFENTER
FEUGERE SEEEEERMERBE  HRHFHEF
BR TEREERERERAREEAUMESRNERBME
HEBEHE - i BEEETEREVEEREETEMBUETHE
B W2RERELER EEXRNBAREGTN - HHRERRE
EAYE AR E T ENT A TREARR -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories included:

. Understanding how the Group’s management identified the
slow-moving inventories, set the allowance policy and
assessed the amount of allowances on inventories, and the
involvement of independent professional gemologist
appointed by the Group to assess the conditions and
valuation of certain inventories;

. Assessing the appropriateness of allowances on inventories
made by the management and the accuracy of the net
realisable value by comparing the subsequent selling prices
of the finished goods to their carrying amounts, on a sample
basis;

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional gemologist and obtaining an
understanding of the scope of work and their terms of
engagement;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation prepared
by the independent professional gemologist with reference
to international diamond price references for selected gem-
set jewellery products and market research reports on
jewellery industry, on a sample basis;

. Testing the accuracy of the inventory age listing, on a
sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery
documents; and

. Evaluating the historical accuracy of allowances on
inventories assessed by the management by comparing the
actual loss to historical allowances recognised.

HEFEAERRENEFERE
T BEBEEEENAABFHETE - HIEEBBER KT
MEFEEFEHE - UKk EEEZEEMNBYEXKREETM
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Key audit matter

MBEAER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMEMTHRREAERETRE

Valuation of jewellery collectibles

BEEHEEE

We identified valuation of jewellery collectibles as a key audit
matter due to significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the judgements
associated with determining the valuation of jewellery collectibles.
As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of jewellery collectibles
was HK$967.1 million.

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with extremely
high-value considered by the Group and are designated not for
sale. In estimating the valuation of jewellery collectibles, it is the
Group’s policy to review the conditions of items by internal
gemologist and assess the recoverable amount periodically with
reference to international diamond prices and market research
reports on jewellery industry. The Group’s management reviewed
regularly if there was impairment indicator and estimated the
recoverable amount if necessary. The Group also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation and
assess the conditions of items based on gemstone testing for gem-
set jewellery with reference to international diamond prices, its
expertise and the current market situation.

HMHBEKREDEAERABREENTR AAESHERER
SUBREMSERUARE FHGEY R FE - 7201753831
A REDENREER%7. I BEBT -

MEEMBHRRMWTAMBE  EEERKELEABE 8=
BEEFENDREIEEAFER HHREDEETMHER 85
R B2 AR Bk SR E AT AR R TH B BRI 2 REI R B R E
BRURKBTENTSAMBEETHILTREEE . BEE
EEETHRGAESFERETSKUARGH IRESE(NEE
) ot BEEETEEBUYEXRKBEETEMETMHE A2
REFEAER  AEXAMMARTR  HHREEREHNE
BARETERENTRHREDEHOMR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of jewellery collectibles
included:

. Understanding how and when the jewellery was determined
as jewellery collectibles by the Group’s management, and
how the Group identified the impairment indicator and
involvement of independent professional gemologist
appointed by the Group to assess the conditions and
valuation of jewellery collectibles;

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional gemologist and obtaining an
understanding of the scope of work and their terms of
engagement;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation prepared
by the independent professional gemologist with reference
to international diamond price references and market
research reports on jewellery industry; and

. Checking the accuracy of the acquisition costs of or carrying
value upon the designation to jewellery collectibles by
tracing to the source documents.
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Key audit matter

REEtEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMEFMTHRREAETHETRE

Impairment testing of goodwill of Hearts On Fire Company, LLC
(“Hearts On Fire”)
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC ([ Hearts On Fire_|) /& £ g {& izt

We identified the impairment testing of goodwill of Hearts On Fire
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgement of
determining the recoverable amount of goodwill.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2017 was
HK$257.8 million (note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements).

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
determination of an impairment is highly subjective as significant
judgement is required by the management of the Group in
determining the recoverable amount of goodwill. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value in use calculation which
uses cash flow projections of cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated and the Group engages an
independent professional valuer to perform such valuation. The
cash flow projections for goodwill are based on financial budgets
covering a 5-year period, in which the key assumptions include the
discount rate used, points of sale (“POS”) opening plan, gross
margins of products and long-term average growth rate, taking
into account the economic outlook, the Group’s past sales
experience of premium diamond jewellery and jewellery industry
growth forecasts to calculate the present value.

The management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment recognised with respect to the goodwill of Hearts On
Fire during the year ended 31 March 2017.

HAPIH Bt Hearts On Fire BB R EN A ABARBEAZTHEREE
BEARE S RERAL -
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B BEEBEEEEREE BE2007F3ANABLFELER
Hearts On Fire B 2 EREE

Our procedures in relation to impairment testing of goodwill of
Hearts On Fire included:

. Understanding the Group’s impairment assessment process,
including the valuation model adopted, key assumptions
used and involvement of independent professional valuer
appointed by the Group to perform valuation of goodwill;

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the POS opening plan by
considering the approved financial budgets, management'’s
business plan and available industry and market data;

. Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumption of the gross margins of products with reference
to the Group's past sales experience of premium diamond
jewelleries and market research reports on jewellery
industry;

. Evaluating the historical accuracy of the financial budgets
prepared by the management by comparing the historical
financial budgets with the actual performance; and

. Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
appropriateness of the discount rate used and long-term
average growth rate.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s

financial reporting process.
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156 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHREEEERA A

Independent Auditor’s Report B3 & AR &

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 June 2017
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158 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHKEEEERA A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #(£ 201743 A 31 HIEFE

2016
Notes HK$ million
P EE BEAT
Revenue =] 5 51,245.5 56,591.5
Cost of goods sold SHE A (36,282.8) (40,950.1)
Gross profit E¥ 14,962.7 15,641.4
Other income Hipug A 6 329.5 306.2
Selling and distribution costs SHENR DA (8,011.3) (9,196.8)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHE X (2,296.0) (2,426.6)
Other gains and losses HAobU i & K8 7 (285.8) (244.9)
Other expenses Hibpx (214.5) (51.2)
Share of results of associates PEBE DT 2 EE 20 (9.6) (3.6)
Interest income FIE U A 140.0 154.6
Finance costs BhE A (236.6) (243.0)
Profit before taxation EXATR k| 9 4,378.4 3,936.1
Taxation | 1 (1,227.3) (957.2)
Profit for the year FEEHF 3,151.1 2,978.9
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hie2m s (BR) -
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEHFHEZEDH
profit or loss: IHH :
— remeasurement of defined benefit scheme  — Bt & EiEERE 2 15.8 .1
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to EETREEEH 7 EEIER
profit or loss: IHH :
— exchange differences arising on translation =~ — IREIESMEFRFREE
of foreign operation ZERES (1,094.6) (1,010.7)
— share of translation reserve of associates — D iEEE AR 2B E 1.9 (0.7)
(1,092.7) (1,011.4)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHME2ERAZ (1,076.9) (1,013.5)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>IWERTE 2,074.2 1,965.4
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2016
Note HKS million
P BEET
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEFEILEERH
Shareholders of the Company ¥iN/NCT ) 3,055.3 2,9414
Non-controlling interests IR 95.8 375
3,151.1 2,978.9
Total comprehensive income (expense) UTE&EAEMEERSE(FAX)
attributable to: R
Shareholders of the Company NATPRE 2,030.1 1,979.3
Non-controlling interests RS 44.1 (13.9)
2,074.2 1,965.4
Earnings per share — Basic BREN—EX 12 HK30.6 cents #&fll HK29.4 cents &1l
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160 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABHREEBEHERA A

2017 2016
Notes HK$ million HKS$ million
B 5E BEET EX- v
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BWERRE 14 4,749.7
Land use rights b 5 AR 15 211.6
Investment properties REW* 16 272.9
Goodwill HE 17 257.8
Other intangible assets HinB\EEE 18 407.5
Jewellery collectibles KREYLH 19 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYE BERRZE
property, plant and equipment efiRe 1326
Interests in associates NG o 20 39.7
Amounts due from associates FEWEgE & N R RIE 20 82.8
Interest in a joint venture R—REELEZER 21 -
Loan receivables FEWE R 22 37.6
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBEE 23 478.2
6,670.4
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 24 31,376.5
Trade and other receivables B hEMERRE 25 4,605.2
Loan receivables EWRER 22 4.
Convertible bonds ARBRES 26 17.8
Bank balances and cash IRITHBRRES 27 13,001.4
49,005.0
Current liabilities mEAR
Trade and other payables B S REMENRIE 28 4,336.1
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders  FE{F & A 7 IEIER IR R 29
of subsidiaries g 161.2
Taxation payable SRR 4334
Bank borrowings IRITER 30 7,320.0
Gold loans HEEE 31 6,513.3
18,764.0
Net current assets MEBEEFHE 30,241.0
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTEARE 36,911.4
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2016
Notes HKS million
P HEBT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Bank borrowings RITER 30 600.0 600.0
Retirement benefit obligations BRIKEFIESE 37 226.6 2434
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE 23 285.7 318.1
1,112.3 1,161.5
Net assets EEFHR 32,501.5 35,749.9
Share capital it %N 32 10,000.0 10,000.0
Reserves 5 21,798.8 24,904.3

Equity attributable to shareholders of AAFRRRELER
the Company 31,798.8 34,904.3
Non-controlling interests RS 702.7 845.6
32,501.5 35,749.9

The consolidated financial statements on pages 158 to 237 were approved and EEEN2017FE6 B A ENIRETRENE 1582
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2017 and are signed on 7B HEEBHRE  WHUTRERS
its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
BT ERELE EmERE &
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EZ EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERB R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #(Z 201743 A 31 HIEFE

Statutory Attributable to
Share Share Special surplus Translation Retained  shareholdersof ~ Non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits the Company interests Total
B& B EE HRE EERHBEGEE REHE REEF ANAREES FeREs @zt

HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEERL BEER BEERL BEETR BEER BE#ER BEER BEERL BEER

(note a) (note b)
(Mizta) [GiE39)

At 1 April 2015 20154818 10,000.0 5498.7 24995 659.5 1455.0 19,3168 39,429.5 11113 40,540.8
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - 29414 29414 375 29789
Other comprehensive expense ~ EEH2ERS

for the year - - - - (960.0) 2.1 (962.1) (514) (1,0135)
Total comprehensive (expense)  FE2E (B %) K&

income for the year ek - - - - (960.0) 29393 19793 (139 1,965.4
Acquisitions of additional WEMBLAR

interests in subsidiaries BOMER - - - - - 11 1.1 (113) (102)
Partial disposal of interests in AFERRRLE

asubsidiary tonon-controlling ~ —HHBAF

shareholders BosE - - - - - 0.1 0.1 04 05
Deregistration of subsidiaries ~ H3MBAR - - - (57) - - (57) (112.) (117.8)
Transfers o - - - 1381 - (138.1) - - -
Dividends RE - - - - - (6,500.0) (6,500.0) (1288) (6,628.8)
At31 March 2016 201653A831R
Profit for the year FEREA
Other comprehensive (expense) ~ FEE2E (%)

income for the year W&
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ EEZME (B%)

income for the year KR a%
Acquisitions of additional WENBAT

interests in subsidiaries BovER
Capital reduction in respectof ~ BlE—FHBAH

non-controlling interest in FERERZ

a subsidiary R
Deregistration of subsidiaries FHEMBAT
Transfers ot
Dividends RE
At31 March 2017 2017538318

Notes: B EE :

(a) Special reserve represents (i) the accumulated contribution from the Macau jewellery business and (ii) the (@ A5 B () RPI BRI 2 2 Rt BN (i) 216 1R 15 5 B2 ) T 5Bt
difference between the nominal value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control, and cash BARNRGEEERE 01 FEEEAREBARZRSTHEAR
consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under common control pursuant to the group B zREREZE8E -
reorganisation in 2011.

(b) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China, the (b) REMPERINECENERDERRER » AD T M P E Rt B
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation ARAGBLIERBRRERES - BERB2IBATKARE R MHE
to such reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial statements of the AT EEFHIRR (RIS B Rt 358 A NARBDEE AR R R)
subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in FIENBRBARERNTFE - AERBRREESTANBEHBEEENS
Mainland China. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be BONE)  YAAERMEBTZHFRNBRAER o

applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #(£ 201743 A 31 HIEFE

2016
HKS million
"AEABT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRR
Profit before taxation BRAEE A R 4,378.4 3,936.1
Adjustments for: BT HSEELFE
Interest income FEUWA (140.0) (154.6)
Interest expenses FEREX 236.6 243.0
Allowances for doubtful debts ZARAEME 3.7 19.5
Allowances on inventories FEERH 39.8 74.2
Fair value change of gold loans E2BENLTEEE (107.2) 542.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMERREITE 788.8 837.0
Depreciation of investment properties REYERE 14.4 213
Amortisation of land use rights X i AR SN 14.0 14.9
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hitn B\ EE#E 51.2 414
Share of results of associates PIEBE DT 2 EE 9.6 3.6
Impairment loss of interest in an associate —XEE A RER ZREBE 32.0 -
Impairment loss of amount due from B —REE A RRIEZREBER
an associate 79.6 -
Impairment loss of amount due from Bl —xREeECEFEZRERE
ajoint venture 52.3 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BERRENER
equipment 10.3 10.9
Provision for defined benefit obligations ERRRINEFIEERE 7.4 6.7
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes in EXEBHHRTAREESRZEZE
intercompany balances 231.0 191.3
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESHPAI2KERSRE
working capital 5,701.9 5,787.4
Decrease in inventories FERD 598.5 7,499.2
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 & Bt FE U s I8 (12 0) 5 4> (753.9) 937.1
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 REMEATEE N 1,615.4 509.9
Defined benefits paid 2 ESERARER (8.4) (8.7)
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 7,153.5 14,724.9
Interest received 2IRFE 17.7 424
Income tax paid EIAMEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH (1.2) (177.9)
Enterprise Income Tax and withholding tax REI A S EE TSR R TR
in Mainland China (855.9) (608.1)
Macau complementary tax BB ER (61.8) (82.2)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Ht B Rt E 2 B8 (0.7) (1.9)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMBRSEHR 6,251.6 13,897.2




164 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FEABHREEEERA A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &&= 2017 43 A 31 H I F[E

2016
HK$ million
BEATT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received 2RFE 1223 112.2
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEEKIFRTER = 0.4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BENKE (835.1) (917.3)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE BERRBETERS
plant and equipment (26.8) (77.0)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERREBASRE
plant and equipment 6.4 19.5
Purchase of jewellery collectibles BELKELHE (378.3) -
Purchase of patents BEEFR = (51.7)
Loan advanced by the Group TEECEBNER (21.6) (4.9)
Repayment of loan to the Group BEEETFAEECZER 5.7 1.0
Capital contribution to an associate m—REEQAREE = (44.0)
Advances to associates BEH=NGIE-E (19.7) (82.8)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEZHAR S SR (1,147.1) (1,044.6)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB SEE)
Interest paid 2HAFE (250.7) (257.1)
Bank borrowings raised E—vfﬁfﬁf B 5,655.1 6,300.0
Repayment of bank borrowings HEIEITER (6,767.1) (5,107.8)
Payment for capital reduction to non-controlling iﬁﬁﬁ$é]ﬂ% —XKMBAR
shareholders of a subsidiary FEFEERR AR R (13.9) -
Deregistration of subsidiaries B AR (153.6) (117.8)
Dividends paid BRE (5,147.5) (6,581.6)
Gold loans raised CEKERREE 15,899.4 16,799.2
Repayment of gold loans EBEEEEE (18,922.2) (18,960.0)
Acquisition of additional interest from mIEERE R BB R IMER
non-controlling interest (7.6) (10.2)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders of REMB D T ERBRERABK
subsidiaries - 40.2
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders of HEFHEARFERBRR
subsidiaries (62.9) (112.6)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE TR S FE (9,771.0) (8,007.7)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HERRESEEY CRD) EINFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,666.5) 4,844.9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNRERESZEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 13,001.4 8,477.1
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFHH L (391.5) (320.6)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF FERNRERALSEEY -
THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES BRITHSMRE RS
AND CASH 7,943.4 13,001.4




For the year ended 31 March 2017 #(£ 201743 A 31 HIEFE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011. Its shares were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 December
2011. Its immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, and
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, its ultimate holding company is
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40. The address of
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of principal place of business is 33/F,
New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKS"), which is same as the functional currency of the Company.

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time in the
current year:

Disclosure initiative
Clarification of acceptable methods of

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38 depreciation and amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements

Amendments to IFRSs Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests in

joint operations

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &&= 2017 43 A 31 H I F[E

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to |AS 7
Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Financial instruments®

Revenue from contracts with customers and
the related amendments?

Leases?

Insurance contracts®

Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration?

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle?

Classification and measurement of share-based
payment transactions®

Applying IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” with
IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts”

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture®

Disclosure initiative'

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses’

Transfers of investment property?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of B EHREZAEFSIAEHEREE 2R
financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment B —REAEFENSIBERFEFEREEREE

requirements for financial assets. HR{EZER ©
Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are: BRI RS ERIE o REAEEBREZEERE ¢
. all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are REIR SR EEREoRHE A ZIEC R

required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

. with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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Application of IFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group'’s financial assets. The expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost. The change
in fair value of the Group'’s gold loan designated at fair value through profit or
loss that is attributable to changes in credit risk could be presented in other
comprehensive income. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. It
distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to limited exceptions for short-term
leases and low value assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees. However, the standard does not significantly change the accounting of
lessors.

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group's recognition of right-of-use assets
and corresponding liabilities in respect of many of the Group’s lease
arrangements. These assets and liabilities are currently not required to be
recognised but certain relevant information is disclosed as commitments to
these financial statements. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$2,974.1 million as disclosed in note 33. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of IFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The principal accounting policies are set out below:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it
has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group'’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other
parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has,

or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to
the shareholders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after
re-attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business and net of trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Sales of goods, including retail sales and wholesale to franchisees/retailers and
jewellery trading, are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income including franchise income and income from provision of
services to franchisees is recognised when the services are provided.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the Group’s
customer loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods supplied and the award credits granted. The
consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to the fair
value of the awards for which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is
not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is
deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and
expired and the Group's obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably allocated
between the land and buildings elements, the cost of land and buildings are
depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms or 20
years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress and land and buildings, less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
20%-33'/3%
Over the lease term, or 20%,

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles 25%
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit

or loss.
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Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

If there is a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property
evidenced by the commencement of owner’s occupation, the property shall be
measured at its carrying amount at the date of change in use for subsequent
accounting.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line basis over 20 years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land elements and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“land use rights” in the consolidated financial statements and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. Land use rights which are to be amortised
in the next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately
from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable.

Jewellery collectibles are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Jewellery collectibles are derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using specific identification basis for gem-set jewellery and watches;
and weighted average for other inventories. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly loans and receivables and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated the convertible bonds as financial assets at FVTPL as
the convertible bonds form part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
loan receivables, amounts due from associates and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date of the impairment loss is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Annual Report 2017 FF 3R]

EMEE (@)

EMREWTE
EXREUREREREERTEENRZFTES
BMEE  ZFEENERMS LIWERE - DRER
% ERRERHE(BEESREMERE - BW
BF > BUWEEARRIAURBITESRRAS) HEA
BRASERBEEAREMRETE (R TXE/ME
ERESFEE)

EREERE
EXRREUHEERERERRTERTARAETR
ERFHRBETEREE2MARARREREEAR
AL BRAZEMEERBEC —HRNZHBEMMEZE
FER ZEREERAERE-

o MESEYFHAMS @ AR TSEBELRE
BEzEESES — T MRE - BUFURAS HBR
BEEERBEREAEEBRERMRTCE  HE5RBE
FHEEEH VTR MNRE B B0 - Bl R i & AR
IR AR B D RURFCRAEEE -

BREZBERAARNEREE  HEBSEEIRE
EREEEZSHEERBERFIZH M RRRER
BUHBRANREMSE 2BNEHE -

FEEREEZRERESEEASREEZIREE
R - HEE S EWRRRIRRS - HREESEBRE
ARIEHHIR - BERAZIRAEZBSNBEER -
EEZEWFHCAR AT TR E S » B R E IR A
5 o RERWE B M TR T AR o

R EZBEELRESREZSHRL » MR AL
FEMEERRESRRREZ —HENHEH Bt
AMERRAZHEBRERESED  EZEERER
EBEERZREE T EBBZEERNRERRE
i 2 B RIS o

177



178 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B ABHKEEEERA A

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &&= 2017 43 A 31 H I F[E

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimate future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or financial
liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated the gold loans as financial liabilities at FVTPL as the
gold loans form part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A

reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes income or expense items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Such exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term. Contingent rentals and concessionaire fees arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined
benefit costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as

gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

. net interest expense or income; and

o remeasurement.
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The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit
or loss in “selling and distribution costs” and “general and administrative
expenses”. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value of inventories is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal. It is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable value of inventories periodically with reference to current market
situation and conditions of the items. The Group’s management reviewed
regularly the suitability of the allowance policy and then applied allowances on
those inventories by considering the net realisable value. The Group's
management reviewed the inventory age listing to identify slow-moving
inventories and then estimated the amount of allowance primarily based on the
pricing policy and strategies and the historical experience in selling goods of
similar nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemmologist to perform valuation and assess conditions of certain items based
on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with reference to international
diamond prices, its expertise and the current market situation. The Group
reassessed the estimation at the end of each reporting period. As at 31 March
2017, the carrying amount of inventories was HK$29,259.3 million (net of
allowances of HK$86.6 million) (2016: carrying amount of HK$31,376.5 million
(net of allowances of HK$49.1 million)). The management of the Group
determined that allowances on inventories were recognised in profit or loss
amounting to HK$39.8 million (2016: HK$74.2 million) during the year ended 31
March 2017.

The jewellery collectibles are those unique treasures with extremely high-value
considered by the Group and are designated not for sale. They are classified as
non-current assets at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. In estimating
the valuation of jewellery collectibles, it is the Group’s policy to review the
conditions of items by internal gemologist and assess the recoverable amount
periodically with reference to international diamond prices and market research
reports on jewellery industry. The Group’s management reviewed regularly if
there was impairment indicator and estimated the recoverable amount if
necessary. The Group also engaged an independent professional gemologist to
perform valuation and assess the conditions of items based on gemstone testing
for gem-set jewellery with reference to international diamond prices, its
expertise and the current market situation. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying
amount of jewellery collectibles was HK$967.1 million. The management of the
Group determined that the carrying amount of jewellery collectibles
approximated its recoverable amount.

FERAAETESERFEMERZREEIER - FE
ZABRFEDIREGAEEREAREESFEE
2GS AARMEE c XEBNBE RS BREN
RREEMRZAEH BN FEATRRFE ALEHE
EEETHRNBERENSBEYE  BEEZEFEN
AR FEUERE - AEEEEERMEREE
HFIRIHBHEFER  TEREEBERREUREE
BOUMEERNECHRBHERBSE M RER
NEEBIBEBBEEMAETEE LS BEK
EAER  HEENEBNERHRL  HHREEREEH
WEAAIRETHELTIZE TFENMRR - A5H
REREMREHTREELR - A2017F38318
FEMRAEMEA292593B 8B T (MEEEsccHE
B It) (20164 - BRE{E 31,3765 B B /& T (R B E
9 1HEER)) AEEEEEEHTBE2017F3A
BNALEFERBEARZANEERERSEEET
(2016 %F : 742 BB TT) °
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B ETHEUNTRKEE BRI - R2017F3 A8
310 KEYHNERRER %71 BERBT - A5EE
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Determining the recoverable amount of goodwill of Hearts On Fire is highly
subjective as it requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The Group engages an independent
professional valuer to perform such valuation. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The cash flows projections for goodwill is based on financial
budgets covering a 5-year period in which the key assumptions include the
discount rate used, points of sale opening plan, gross margins of products and
long-term average growth rate taking into account the economic outlook, the
Group'’s past sales experience of premium diamond jewelleries and jewellery
industry growth forecasts to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill for Hearts On Fire as at 31 March 2017 was
HK$257.8 million (2016: HK$257.8 million). The management of the Group
determined that there was no impairment recognised during the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: nil). Details of the impairment testing are set out in note 17.

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual value
and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and other intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual value of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and other intangible
assets of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation and amortisation charges where useful lives or residual value are
expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold. Changes in these estimations
may have a material impact on the results of the Group, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the year when such change occur. As at 31 March
2017, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and other intangible assets are HK$4,666.3 million (2016: HK$4,749.7
million), HK$250.0 million (2016: HK$272.9 million) and HK$356.3 million (2016:
HK$407.5 million), respectively.
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The Group’s management determines the dividend distribution plan of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China. Based on the dividend distribution plan, retained
profits as at 31 March 2017 amounting to HK$5,304.3 million (2016: HK$6,086.7
million) will be distributed by the subsidiaries as dividend in the foreseeable
future, while the remaining retained profits amounting to HK$7,496.0 million
(2016: HK$9,130.0 million) has been set aside for reinvestment by the
subsidiaries and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group'’s
management further reassesses the dividend withholding tax rate based on
current dividend distribution plan and determines that certain of these
subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at the rate of 5% for
dividend payments. The dividend distribution plan is determined and made
with reference to the Group’s approved expansion plans in Mainland China.
Future change in the dividend distribution plan may have a material impact on
the amount of deferred taxation being recognised.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold less
returns and net of trade discounts.

For the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), which
comprises executive directors of the Company, mainly focuses on the location
of management. Revenue derived from each location of management is further
analysed into those from retail and wholesale markets when reviewed by the
CODM. The Group's reportable and operating segments for the year ended 31
March 2016 included four segments, namely (i) jewellery business in the
Mainland China, (ii) watch business in the Mainland China, (iii) business in Hong
Kong, Macau and other markets and (iv) business of Hearts On Fire. During the
year ended 31 March 2017, for the purposes of better assessment of
performance from each location of operation by the CODM, the segments were
reorganised into business (i) in the Mainland China and (ii) in Hong Kong, Macau
and other markets. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with the
current year's presentation.
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(a)

Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment

For the year ended 31 March
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EEBEN D IBER @

AEBLEXBEREBEWNAERS RS
-
BE3A31ALEE

Revenue
External sales (note i)
— Retail
— Wholesale (note ii)

Segment/group revenue
Inter-segment sales (note iii)

Adjusted gross profit
(before elimination)
Inter-segment eliminations

Adjusted gross profit (note i)

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
and general and
administrative expenses

Core operating profit
(segment result)

Unrealised hedging gain
(loss) on gold

Others (note iv)

Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Other segment information
included in measurement
of core operating profit
(segment result):

Concessionaire fees
Operating lease payments in

respect of rented premises
Staff costs

Mainland China
I P it
2017 2016
HK$ million HKS million
HEBET BEET
=E 3]
SAREBE (BrEEi)
—ZE 26,4726
— L3 (st i) 71978
A/ EEEER

33,6704
4196
34,090.0

9,840.6
(7.4)

DEREEE (L)

EREEF (kA

7 BB

LRBER (M)

HepA

HERDHERAFH
—RRATHRAX

TEELER (D HEE)

ESRERE NS (FE)
ity (Eiv)

FIEWA

BEMA

BREL AR

HAZEERLA
(SHRE) 3t B IR
SIHER

HEAK
AR ELERENE

BTMA

Hong Kong, Macau and

other markets Total
i BMREMTSE st

2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HKS million
BRET BEET EEX: BEERT
21,8529 48,3255

1,068.2 8,266.0

22,9211 56,591.5

1,999.5 2,419.1

24,9206 59,010.6

16,074.9

2923

16,367.2

306.2
(4,900.8) (11,623.4)

5,050.0
(725.8)
(299.7)

154.6
(243.0)

3,936.1

1,949.2

2,078.4

3,880.5
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Notes:

(i) Included in the external sales and adjusted gross profit, HK$657.0 million (2016: HK$755.4 million) and
HK$290.8 million (2016: HK$350.4 million) are generated from Hearts On Fire Company, LLC,
respectively.

(ii) Wholesale revenue represents revenue from jewellery trading, sales to franchisees and retailers and
provision of services to franchisees.

(iii) Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

(iv) Amount represents other gains and losses, other expenses, and share of results of associates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Adjusted gross profit
represents the gross profit generated from each segment without
allocation of unrealised hedging gain (loss) on gold. Core operating profit
represents the profit generated from each segment without allocation of
unrealised hedging gain (loss) on gold, other gains and losses, other
expenses, share of results of associates, interest income and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Wi :

(i) 2R B Hearts On Fire Company, LLC KN RESE R ERABER S
Bl5657.0 HEB T (2016 : 755.4 HEBT) % 290.8 HE BT
(2016 : 3504 HBET) °

(ii) HBEXBRRELS HETNRBARIHHNEXER
RS T MBRFAILNA -

(iii) DA E R W E B o

(iv) ZERER MRS RER  HMBI RS EHE AR 2 EE -

A2/ NS BERENE 3 Il AEENE
STHERMER c KPBEENEERIBES RS
BH WS (BIR) S D AEENER - £
EREBNEERD BES AR WE (B
B) HtWsmREE  Htkxk - 2hBEL
B2 RE  FIBRARBERASAEDEAE
EHEF  LRREBREERKREERUEE
IR B R KRBT AT EEE -

As at 31 March ®3A31H
2016 2016 2016
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEBT BEET BEERL
Property, plant and equipment #1% + BE KR % 3,349.4 3,610.0 1,316.9 1,139.7 4,666.3 4,749.7
Investment properties REME - - 250.0 2729 250.0 2729
Jewellery collectibles KEYHE - - 967.1 - 967.1 -
Inventories #E 13,480.5 13,979.6 15,778.8 17,396.9 29,259.3 31,376.5

Segment assets and liabilities

Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are included in the
measures of the Group’s segment reporting that are reviewed by the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented.

SHEERAR

BRUAEPTIiSN  TEEBERREZHNAEE
DHEHFEWLEFARLMEEREE - FHit
WEEF D MBEERKE -
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2016
HK$ million
BEEBT
Retail sales of ZEHE
— Gem-set jewellery — LEERE 11,075.6 13,167.4
— Gold products —ETEMm 24,524.0 26,136.7
— Platinum/karat gold products — e KEER 5,098.8 6,235.9
— Watches — fEER 2,914.5 2,785.5
43,612.9 48,325.5
Wholesale to franchisees/retailers EIINEER, 4 SE i B 7,208.4 7,800.6
Jewellery trading LKEES 3524 430.8
Service income from franchisees R B INEE T HY AR AE U A 71.8 346
51,245.5 56,591.5
No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the MEFER  BEENEELAEESFHAE
Group in both years. FE10% U E o

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding loan receivables, interests in RibFUEE SN AEEERTHEE(FTEBEERE

associates and a joint venture, amounts due from associates and deferred tax MRBEARR—REELECER  EWEEA
assets, by geographical areas are as follows: AREBERELEHEEE) 2MAT :
2016
HKS$ million
EX-5:: 54
Mainland China R El A it 3,572.5 3,942.9
Hong Kong, Macau and other markets &8  BAKHEMTS 3,162.6 2,089.2

6,735.1 6,032.1




190 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited FIABHREEBEHERA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4R& Bt ® &Mz
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (£ 201743 A31 HIEFE

6. Otherncome

6. HAbUA

2017 2016
HKS$ million HKS$ million

BRET ABET

Franchise income inzzE={'ON 116.3
Government grants (note) BT R (FFRE) 77.7
Gain on scrap sales EERIEHE R 11.9
Rental income HEWA 18.0
Commission income EEON 49.5
Others HAth 328
306.2

Note:
development of the Group’s operation in Mainland China.

7. Other Gains and Losses

This mainly represents the government incentives granted by the government in Mainland China for the

et ERRHPERMLBAREABUTIE - DB A5 B B it K5
BE-

7. HttmKEE

2017 2016
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Net foreign exchange loss (& 5 BB R 5 (229.0)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEW% - BERREER (10.9)
Others Hith (5.0)
(244.9)
8. Interest Income and Finance Costs 8. FMEUWARBERKA
2017 2016
HK$ million HKS million
HEBERT BEET
Interest income from FEUA
— banks —R1T 111.8
— trade receivables —E 5 EWRIE 424
— loan receivables — ERER 0.4
154.6
Finance costs on borrowings BERNE A
— gold loans —E2EE 174.4
— bank loans —RITER 68.6

243.0
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2016
HKS million
BEAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BB ADEFI S R (GEA) ¢
charging (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) FEME (MisE10) 49.6 47.7
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions 8 TR G FIEH 214t 531.7 643.1
Staff costs BTIMA 2,968.2 3,189.7
3,549.5 3,880.5
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FERAERARX 35,327.0 39,153.6
Concessionaire fees EHIED K 1,716.4 1,949.2
Operating lease rentals in respect of AAYELLEEEHES 1,830.2 2,078.4
rented premises
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y RENRSBIE 788.8 837.0
Depreciation of investment properties REYENE 14.4 21.3
Amortisation of land use rights T b {5 PR 8F 14.0 14.9
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith B EEEH 51.2 414
Impairment loss of interest in an associate —REg AR 2 HERE 32.0 -
(included in other expenses) (note 20) (FFAEABAZA) (FEE20)
Impairment loss of amount due from an associate  fEUL— REF & N B FE 2 B EEIE 79.6 -
(included in other expenses) (note 20) (FTAHMBXR) (KFE20)
Impairment loss of amount due from a joint venture fEIf —R&E ¥ RIE 2 R EEE 52.3 -
(included in other expenses) (GTAHMRAXRA)
Allowances on inventories (included in cost FEEE GIAHEERETRA) 39.8 74.2
of goods sold)
Allowances for doubtful debts AR YE(S 3.7 19.5
Fair value (gain) loss of gold loans BELEENLTE (WE) BB (107.2) 542.1
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFAHERER)
Donations (included in other expenses) BRGTAEMREEZA) 10.8 9.8
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETEN &
— audit services — R E R 8.8 8.9
— non-audit services — IR EBR A 3.5 6.1
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10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employee’s 10. EF - EaTBRABERESHH
Emoluments &

2017 2016

HK$ million HKS million

BEBT BEAT

Directors’ fees EFEWE 4.1
Other emoluments to directors EENHMEMS

— salaries and other benefits —HEeRHEMER 25.2

— performance-based bonus — BEMALAL 16.5

— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RRERE R 1.9

47.7
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Emoluments (continued)
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Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors and the chief AEERAQAEERRSTHAEIFNWMEFE

executives of the Company are as follows: Wnr
2017 2016
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
Director's  and other Performance- scheme Director's  andother Performance- scheme
fee benefits based bonus contributions Total fee benefits based bonus ~ contributions Total
HER EHEEH $4R RINER

ESHE  HBRR  BURL aEEX @5 ESRE  HMER  BNRL EER &3t
HKS million  HKS million — HKS million  HKS million  HKS million — HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million
BEET FHEBn HEERT ERER HEET  EEBR  EEBT  BEMn  BEBR MR

(notei) (note )
(B (st
Executive directors: YirES:
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry (Chairman) HBRAEL(ER) 02 44 29 02 77
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BRELE (E50LRE)

(Managing Director) 02 43 28 04 77
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian gFEEL 02 11 07 01 21
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy FEEE 02 21 14 02 39
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong RtEEE 02 29 19 03 53
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter ERtE 02 21 14 02 39
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert RELEE 02 23 15 0.1 41
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BRREL 02 23 15 02 42
Mr. Liu Chun Wai, Bobby (note i BiRALE (i) - 05 02 - 07
Non-executive directors: FnES:

Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson gREtE 02 16 11 01 30
Mr.Koo Tong-Fat (note i) HER LA (i) 02 16 11 01 30
Independent non-executive directors: ~ BYFHTES

Mr. Cheng Ming-Fun, Paul i ElE 04 - - - 04
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BELEL 04 - - - 04
Mr.Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BEats 05 - - - 05
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey WREELE 04 - - - 04
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond fEREL 04 - - - 04
Total @3t 41 252 165 19 477

Notes: FYEE -

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s financial results and directors’ performance (0] FRAADBEAEEEEFRAEENIBEBREBSRANEREE
decided by the management of the Group.

(ii) Mr. Liu Chun Wai, Bobby was appointed as an executive director on 1 January 2016. The amount of his (ii) EiRBAER2016F1 S 1A REEEAHTES - REXD2FE
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2016 shown on the above table covered the period from the date of his ZE 20163831 AL FENMEBMREEBE2016%E3831HE
appointment to 31 March 2016. e o

(iii) Mr. Koo Tong-Fat as a non-executive director retired on 1 January 2016. The amount of his emoluments for the (iii) HEBELEN2016F1 A1 BRETHATES - RLEHRZHEE
year ended 31 March 2016 shown on the above tables covered the period from 1 April 2015 to the date of his 201643 A31 AL EENME BN 2015481 AR ERFANME -

resignation.
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The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services EXFRZHTEEM e T EEEREREEARAR
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the RAEBERREMRE  c EXFIRZEHNTESRE
Group. The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non- VIBTEEHE T EERARSREL AR ESHI -
executive directors shown above were mainly for their services as directors of

the Company.

The five highest paid individuals included four directors (2016: four) of the hEBEEMEATEBERATNEEE (20165 : [
Company, details of whose emoluments are included above. The emoluments ) BEHFMFARIER LY - FARTESMEAL

of the remaining highest paid individual during the year were as follows: HOETEN 0TS -
2016
HKS million
HEBT
Employee =]
— salaries and other benefits —HEeREMEBER 3.6 4.8
— performance-based bonus — BRMAEAL = -
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFIFT BIMEFR - -
— compensation for the loss of office in — A EEAKETARE AT
connection with the management of the Z B R A A L R e
affairs of any member of the Group 14.4 -
18.0 48
The emoluments were within the following bands: HEMINFT5ISEE :
2016
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 & JT & 5,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$18,000,001 to HK$18,500,000 18,000,001 78 Jt & 18,500,000 /& JT 1 -

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no emoluments were paid by BE2017F3H31HK20165F3A31HLEEE  KX&
the Group to the directors and the chief executives of the Company or the five EiXEEAAREERESTERAEREEESME
highest paid individuals (including directors, the chief executives and AL (BREES RaTHRAERES) ML X
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group. None of the WElHEMAREMAREBRFNIER - BZE20175F
directors have waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2017 3A31BKR2016F3831 AL FEWEFEMESKE
and 2016. 1R o
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REMBERAEHRSMEA TN SREE
AE(BEHEN ESRSREBEASHN ) HWHETS
T THEE :

Other than the emoluments of directors and five highest paid individuals
disclosed above, the emoluments of the senior management whose profiles are
included in “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section fell within the

following bands:

2016
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & JT & 1,500,000 /& 7T 2 5
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 JT Z 2,000,000 /& 7T 7 5
10 10
2016
HK$ million
AEAT
The taxation charge comprises: HIEM B
Current tax: BIHABLIR :
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) in Mainland China B R 1 PSR 720.9 377.1
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBANEH 150.5 128.9
Macau complementary tax S PY B 1548 7o B 36.3 543
Taxation in other jurisdictions HipakthE 2 HiE 0.7 1.9
908.4 562.2
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE (BERE BERR
EIT in Mainland China PRIt TSR (11.8) (22.7)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEERNEHR 0.3 (0.9)
Macau complementary tax R FESHEIEH 1.9 -
(9.6) (23.6)
Deferred tax charge (note 23) EFERIEB X (M5 23) 300.2 388.2
Withholding tax* FEIH = 28.3 304
1,227.3 957.2

Mainland China.

Withholding tax mainly represents withholding tax on intra-group licence income and interest income from

FEMBEREEEA D TP EN G RERA RS WA
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Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit MEFEER » BBFEH DIRMETHERBUEFIZ 16.5%
for both years. MEFE o

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”) of the People’s Republic of BREPEARAMBECEMSHEREERME - &
China (“PRC”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the A it B B A B BT R R 19 A 25% ©
subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% for both years.

For certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China, they are entitled to RN A E T E A b R A B A B B A ith 7 A

the tax incentives in connection with the development of the western part of ROFIBEE - MEFENEAREDE15% °
Mainland China. The applicable tax rate is 15% for both years.

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive rate of MEFEER @ RFIFEHEZ B IR ERBOERR
12% on the estimated assessable profit for both years. BERERE12%E -

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per FRARBEBIHTEGSEREEMEE W ERBRH A

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as RAE BRI
follows:
2016
HKS million
HEET
Profit before taxation BREL AR A 4,378.4 3,936.1
Tax at the applicable income tax rate — (Mainland ZERAAESHEENHE— (RERMH :
China: 25%; Hong Kong: 16.5%; Macau: 12%) 25% ; BB 1 16.5% ; BFY : 12%) 977.9 798.6
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AAIBB TR E
purposes 110.6 45.8
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes  HBERF U AT TS L (67.6) (73.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEFENBETE 92.5 113.2
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B f 5t Al R R I B IHE 18 (31.6) (1.0)
Tax effect of tax exemptions and incentives granted & T R E At [ B A SR IEEHR E K
to certain subsidiaries in Mainland China BENBBEEE (19.0) (5.6)
Withholding tax on undistributed profits of R P 3t T B 1 ) R 4 TR R FE B
subsidiaries in Mainland China 144.9 73.7
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBERE (9.6) (23.6)
Withholding tax SEE 28.3 304
Others Hith 0.9 (0.9)

Taxation charge for the year FRAFREBELEH 1,227.3 957.2




At 31 March 2017, the Group has tax losses of HK$812.6 million (2016: HK$672.8
million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of the unrecognised tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely, except for HK$318.3 million (2016: HK$335.7
million) which will be expired as follows:

Annual Report 2017 FF 3R]

R2017F3A831 0 AEERERRELEREEEN
BIBEER8126 BEBIIT(20165F 6728 HEET) ©
FIERERARIBEEETERALE  H3183FEBET
(2016 % : 3357 A& ) R T FIREER :

2016
HK$ million
HEBT

Tax losses expiring in BIEEEERUTERER
— 2018 —2018 4 4.2 3.2
— 2019 —20194 72.2 11.7
— 2020 —2020 13.1 415
— 2021 —2021%F 154.1 179.3
—2022 —2022F 74.7 -
318.3 335.7

At 31 March 2017, the Group has deductible temporary differences of HK$9.0
million (2016: HKS$5.5 million) of which deferred taxation has not been
recognised. Tax effect of such deductible temporary differences as at 31 March
2017 was HK$1.5 million (2016: HK$0.9 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax of 5% to 10% (2016: 5% to 10%) is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in
Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Based on the dividend
distribution plan of the management, retained profits as at 31 March 2017
amounting to HK$5,304.3 million (2016: HK$6,086.7 million) will be distributed
as dividend in the foreseeable future, while the remaining retained profits
amounting to HK$7,496.0 million (2016: HK$9,130.0 million) has been set aside
for reinvestment and will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

1M2017F3 8318 ANEBE AL ERELR BN
AR EREERB0EEET(20165F : 558 EE
JT) o L3iFA2017 43 A 31 B ATHUR B B 14 = BB TS
HEBISHEBT (20165 : 09FEBIT) °

RETECEMERE  FERBHHBAREMRE
20084 1 A 1 B e FrBREUEFITE SRR S BF RN F 5%
Z10% (2016 5F : 5% F 10%) 2 FEHIF - RIBEEEMN
BRE SR8 - R2017F3A31BHNREBEFEH
53043 B BB (20165 : 60867 BEB ) BEAR
BRIERBEDIK  MERTRE GG L7490 E
BT (2016%F © 9,130.0E BB ) ERBIEBRERRE -
FEETRBRDIK
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The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year
and on the number of 10,000,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000,000) shares in issue
during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares during both years.

FESRERBIZEREAQATABRRELEFRLGE &
F > LUK F A E 2 17 AR 19 10,000,000,000 % (2016 £F :
10,000,000,000 &) 5T & °

HRMEFELREELLER HAUERZFIESREE

BF o

2016
HK cents per share HK$ million
SRBA HEET
Dividends recognised as REAFEBRIHDIK
distribution during the year: ZBRE
2017 Interim (2016: 2016 Interim) 2017 £ H Hf (2016 £F :
2016 FFHHR) 6.0 600.0 8.0 800.0
2017 Special (2016: 2016 Special) 2017 & 4551 (2016 F : 2016
FHH) 15.0 1,500.0 420 4,200.0
2016 Final (2016: 2015 Final) 2016 FRHA (2016 F : 2015
FRE) 8.0 800.0 15.0 1,500.0
2016 Special (2016: nil) 2016 455l (2016 5 © #8) 22.0 2,200.0 - -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
per share and a special dividend of HK20.0 cents per share, totalling HK$3,000.0
million in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: a final dividend of
HK8.0 cents per share and a special dividend of HK22.0 cents per share, totalling
HK$3,000.0 million) have been proposed by the directors of the Company and
are subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

5,100.0 6,500.0

MN|EPRE  AARESEZREZE2017F3 A 31
BEFEERGARERESR100BUWRISHIRESR
20.07%84ll - §4£3,0000 BB T (2016 F : REIRES
B 8.0/ Bl R4S RIR B SRR 22,0781l » £3£3,00008E
B HASRRANEERRAFTAE LAERSE

=
= ,



14. Property, Plant and Equipment

14. M1% - BERRE
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Furniture,
Landand Plantand fixtures and Leasehold Motor Construction
buildings machinery equipment improvements vehicles in progress Total
1iREF BEREE &R ZERRE BENERE AE ERIE 2
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million

BERR BEER EE BEER BEER ELE BERR
cost A
At 1 April 2015 M2015F481H 2,5804 3127 1,7844 1,982.0 514 6849 73958
Currency realignment B (1129 (202) (422 (929) (22) (36.) (306.5)
Additions NE 2045 298 3653 2750 29 2673 1,1448
Transfer B 41 - - 15 - (56) -
Disposals HE - (16) (80.1) (189) (2.1) - (1027)
Transferred from investment properties B B IR E W% 2147 - - - - - 2147
At31March 2016 R20165F3A31H 28908 3207 20274 21467 500 9105 8346.1
Currency realignment EHRE (1564) (172) (548) (1176) (22 (415) (389.7)
Additions RhE 774 437 2885 2136 31 3096 9359
Transfer i 6044 397 217 26 - (6714) -
Disposals HE - (153) (1126) (162) (16) - (145.7)
Transferred from investment properties B8 B R & W% 85 - - - - - 85
At31 March 2017 R2017F3H831H 34247 3716 21732 2291 493 5072 8755.1
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4A81H 3654 763 11498 13285 333 - 29533
Currency realignment EHRE (194) (59) (264) (68.6) (13) - (1216)
Provided for the year FREE 1319 328 3449 3198 76 - 8370
Eliminated on disposals HE e - (07) (68.5) (1.0) 21) - (123)
At 31 March 2016 20163831 H 4779 1025 13998 15787 375 - 3,594
Currency realignment ErEE (316) (46) (36.8) (928) (16) - (1674)
Provided for the year FREBE 1396 303 3328 2805 56 - 78838
Eliminated on disposals HE g - (13.9) (1043) (94) (14) - (129.0)
At31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 585.9 1143 15915 17570 401 - 40888
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2017 R2017F 38318 28388 2573 5817 4721 9.2 507.2 46663
At 31 March 2016 201653 H31H 24129 2182 627.6 568.0 125 9105 47497
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4R& Bt ® &Mz
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (£ 201743 A31 HIEFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s properties (including construction in

progress) are analysed as follows:

14. 1% - BEKRZE @
AEEYE(BREEEIR)WERAEBEINOT :

2016
HKS million
BEAT
In Hong Kong B8 645.8
In Mainland China A (A 2,676.5
In South Africa [BE3 1.1
3,3234
15. Land Use Rights 15. T HbfF A
2016
HK$ million
HEBT
Carrying amount BREE
At 1 April HaB1H 253.2
Currency realignment B (12.2)
Charged to profit or loss during the year RERBBZNR (14.9)
At 31 March M3A31H 226.1
Analysed for reporting purposes as: THEERBEAENDH
Current assets (included in trade and RBEEGIAESREMMERFIER)
other receivables) 14.5
Non-current assets FRBEE 211.6

226.1
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HKS$ million
HEBT
COST 2%
At 1 April 2015 R2015F481H 525.6
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EREYE  BREREE (228.8)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3831H 296.8
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EREYE  REREE (9.4)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3831H 287.4
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2015 R2015F481H 16.7
Provided for the year FREE 21.3
Transferred to property, plant and equipment EHREYE  REREE (14.1)
At 31 March 2016 R20165F3A31H 23.9
Provided for the year FERBE 14.4
Transferred to property, plant and equipment ERZEYE R BMEKRSRE (0.9)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 374
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 250.0
At 31 March 2016 201653 A31H 272.9

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2017 was
HK$328.5 million (2016: HK$328.3 million). The fair value has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”),
an independent property valuer not connected with the Group (whose address
is 4/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong), in accordance
with the HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition) issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards issued by the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Knight Frank is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

AEBERREWHEN2017F3 831 BN AFESH 3285
BEEBT(216%F : 3283 FEBT) @ HEAREEEE
EME Y AR ER T AR A 3 (5 )
(it BEBEFBEBRHZPL4B) RIEEFE
BIRENESEM BB EMBSHEZER (2012F )
REFRSHFAUSMEBSEMRICS (HE — BEEEET
ZEEMEE - KRG ABBUEMEENE2— I
BEBERRIENEEEE BN ECYEGENE
o
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The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The market rentals
are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the
properties as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The capitalisation rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar properties in Hong Kong and adjusted
to take into account the market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

ZNFEDBBRAGEME - ZZWEZAE T HAE
BuzhmSHESRREEMLEYERD 2S5 KE
EAERGEE TSHESEZEYETHEENZ
MBS AR BT B M H b A BR E TG - BER
RNBENHEBEMUNEHER S G2 WEERM
BE  XWRYEREE 2T S RBELFREURRAE
EBREMEFEZEE -

R EZENENDFER  ZENEZRSRRE
REDBWESERAE -

FEEREREPRNRENEFBREBLIFES
REVERT -

Fair value hierarchy

DAFESER
2016
HK$ million
BEBT
At 31 March M3AB31H Level 3
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (U REBH TEWES M B=4 328.5 3283

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
20 years.

EMR BB R ER 20 FEHRITE ©
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HK$ million
BEBT

COST AND CARRYING VALUES AR ERE{E
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 M2015F 4818 ~2016F3 831 AM2017F3A31H 257.8

The goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hearts On Fire included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Hearts On Fire. The recoverable
amount of the Hearts On Fire cash-generating unit is determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors covering a 5-year (2016: 5-year) period, and a
discount rate of 10.5%-13.5% (2016: 11.0%-14.3%) per annum.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that 5-year
period have been extrapolated using the projected long-term average growth
rate for the jewellery industry. In the opinion of the directors, no impairment
loss was required for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. The
directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount of
the group of units to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

B Hearts On Fire E4£ M 2 B IEETEH HE M
WEIB R - B & ™SR K Hearts On Fire 2288 A F
K F =5 AE B BY 2 B © Hearts On Fire TEE MR SEE
BUMARESEDREFEAEEETHE (BERNES
PRt BEREE S (2016 F - 5F) 2B HEE  FABE
10.5%-13.5% (2016 FF : 11.0%-14.3%) Z By IR E LR &
MIEREEITFE) MEE o

ZEEHENESREINERZEBENANERNE
HEFE - MBBASFHNESRAEABRKRETE
REEHEREEE - EERB  HZE2017F3 831

AW E & PRI RBRRNEMNSEREEE
e E AR B RRE ERBE A U SRR -
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Trademarks and patents

E R A
HK$ million
HEET
COST [B%N
At 1 April 2015 20154818 421.2
Additions NE 51.7
At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 2016 F 3831 HK 20173 A31H 472.9
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ey
At 1 April 2015 20154818 24.0
Provided for the year FREE 41.4
At 31 March 2016 M2016F3831H 65.4
Provided for the year FREE 51.2
At 31 March 2017 20173 831H 116.6
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2017 M2017F3831H 356.3
At 31 March 2016 2016 %F 3 31 H 407.5

The trademarks and patents are amortised with useful life of 5 to 15 years.

The amounts represent the aggregate cost of gem-set jewellery collectibles held
by the Group which is designated not for sale. Included in the jewellery
collectibles, an amount of HK$588.8 million was transferred from inventories
upon the designation at carrying values, which was a major non-cash
transaction during the year. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
recoverable amounts of the jewellery collectibles are at least their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

ZEBERERNRAERAFRSE 15 F#H -

ZREDEAEEFEEAFERNRERRE &
DB o sSAKRE Y HIN 5888 BB B TE NS
ERFEMBFURAERFESL  LAFAN—E
FTEFRERG - ARAREBRS  KEDEN AW
B ERMEDSBENRE B HHIREE -



20. Interests in Associates/Amounts Due from
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N

20. REEE N A Rz FE W &

Associates NEIFRIE
2017 2016
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBT BHEBT
Cost of unlisted investment FEEHRERA 44.0 44.0
Share of losses FE(LESIE (13.2) (3.6)
Share of translation reserve LR ERE 1.2 (0.7)
Impairment loss of interest in an associate R—REE QAR 2ERBESE (32.0) -
- 39.7

Details of the associates are set out as below:

BE N R NFBRIMT

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid Proportion of Proportion of
and principal registered capital/ ownership interest voting rights
Name of companies place of operation share capital held by the Group held by the Group Principal activities
kA Lt B R BRITRAR AEBEFRIE AR AEBEE
NEEB TEERIBE EEMAR AR A R 25 L1 REHRELLH TEXRH
2017 2016 2017 2016
Shenzhen Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Mainland China RMB120,000,000 30.0% 30.0% 28.6% 286%  Operating a shopping
Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd HER A K% 120,000,000 7T complex in Mainland
(“Qianhai CTF") China
RYpERARBEERLERAR AREREEBY RO
(TEEARE]
CTF Business Management Hong Kong HK$10 30.0% - 28.6% - Operating an online
Limited (note) E 1087

BAERBERARAR (M)

shopping platform
REPLBYTE

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group contributed HK$3 for 30.0% of the issued share capital of CTF
Business Management Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in operating an online

shopping platform.

30.0% B BITRAEEIET -
BYTAER -

M : BE2017F3A31HILFE  FEEFRBEAAGEEEEFMA AN
RARREBIMARY - EELER L
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group contributed RMB36.0 million
(approximately HK$44.0 million) for 30.0% of the registered capital of Qianhai
CTF which was established in Mainland China during the year ended 31 March
2016. Qianhai CTF is engaged in operating shopping complex in Qianhai,
Shenzhen in Mainland China.

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Qianhai CTF because it
has the power to appoint two out of seven directors of Qianhai CTF under the
provisions stated in the Articles of Association of Qianhai CTF, representing
28.6% of voting rights held by the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

At 31 March 2017, the directors of the Company consider that recoverable
amount of Qianhai CTF is below the aggregate amount of interest in an
associate and amount due from an associate due to unfavourable market
conditions. As the information on the fair value less cost of disposal of interest in
Qianhai CTF is difficult to obtain unless negotiation with potential purchasers
are taking place, no reliable fair value information in the market could be found.
Therefore, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the interest in Qianhai
CTF and amount due from Qianhai CTF were fully impaired and impairment
losses of interest in an associate and amount due from an associate of HK$32.0
million and HK$79.6 million were recognised, respectively, in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors covering a 5-year period, and discount rate
of 15%. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows include budgeted rental income and
expenses, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectation for the market.

As at 31 March 2017, the amount due from an associate of CTF Business
Management Limited of HK$19.7 million is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed repayment terms.

As at 31 March 2016, the amount due from an associate of Qianhai CTF was
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms which was fully
impaired in current year.

BZ2016F3A31BLEFE  AEERQBE20165F3
A31 B FEREFEAMEMRIINAEEREEE
ARME360EET(N40BEEBT)  HEMEARH
30.0% ° AR KRB R BEIRIIATEEEBY H O

RIBANEAXRBNABERME > XEERANEAK
REH7ENEESHERZAHEP 2R hAKEEEZE
20173 H31H R2016F3A831E TEFEREEN
28.6% @ A ANEBHFIBARBEEATES -

R2017F3A31 8 AAREERE  BEmRAFAT
B ABARENTRESERN - REE QRS
MERER—REE QATRELE - RIERNEELE
EERETER  SAHUBSEREINEARERER
ZAFEREERANER - AEBEEET S LW
BUSENAFEER - At RATNESRAE KA
BRAXGHEZEEVRAINEAXREREZERE &
HZE2017F3A31 B LFENER D BIBERN — K5
EATEERER—REE AR SERERIE3208
BBTK796BEBIT

TREESHRERNEREEERE - 2t E R EEALE
ERENSF B REE H KR ERTEB K 15%
BRIRE - HEEAEEMEATRERA R EE
MEMEZRREEREHEWARMS  ZATE
REMWBERRREEBN T SEMSH o

M2017F38310 ERAAEEKEEBRAR—

M2016F3 8318 ERANBEAXRE—FREE QAR
BAEKE REREETERY BRAEERH
BAE ©
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2016
HKS million
HEBT
Cost of unlisted investment FEHRERA 14.0 14.0
Share of losses FE{HETE (14.0) (14.0)
Details of the joint venture are set out as below: EELENFERIINT
Place of Proportion of
incorporation Issued and ownership interest
and principal fully paid and voting power
Name of company place of operation ordinary shares held by the Group Principal activity
M A L3t B R 2RITR REBFTIGBEREES
NREE TEEE B HeRBRRLTER RIGERELLH FEER
2016
Fook Ming Watch Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 50% 50% Sales of watches in
BEEHERALA i 1,000,000 38 7T Mainland China
AR A 1t 1Y $E 8

Loan receivables represent loan to staff and an amount due from the issuer of
the convertible bonds (note 26). Loan receivables are classified as current or
non-current assets based on contractual terms and taking into account the
timing of recovery as expected by the management. As at 31 March 2017 and
2016, there are no past due but not impaired loan receivables.

All loan receivables from staff were secured over certain properties, the fair
value of which exceeds the carrying amount of the related loan on an individual
basis.

As at 31 March 2017, loan receivables from the issuer of the convertible bonds
has a principal amount of Australian Dollar (“AUS”) 3,000,000, bears interest at
7.0% per annum and will be repaid to the Group by instalments until 30 June
2020.

Included in loan receivables are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group entity:

EWERIEETIERR BT 5HIRES (i 26) 81T
AMRIE - EWERRESHKRRRZEEEEERAH
HERAREREMES EARDRERBEE - B
2017 201653 A31H > HIECBEERREBENE
WERK -

2HEBETERT S TYREEERER  MEAFE
HRAEARERNREE

M2017FE3 8318 BRI ZBREFBITAERHAE
£ %87453,000,00008 7T « FREEH7.0% > W55 HENS
FAREBEZE 202056 5300

THFABRBERNSEAEESEER I EE R
e :

_:}% 1|
n_l‘t
[

2016
HKS million
AEBTT

AUS BT

18.8 -
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The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the UTARTEERBAFEASECHER T EIRER

Group and movements thereon during the current and prior years: B (EE)EEUREHEEE :
Withholding
Unrealised tax on
fair value undistributed
change of profits of
gold loans subsidiaries Unrealised Amortisation
in Mainland in Mainland profiton and
China China inventories  depreciation Tax losses Others Total
hEAES  BE RS
BRZAER NRERTIR FEZ
ATEEE HRZEMBE  REREH  BHRRE BIEKE Hit st

HKS million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT BHEBT BEBT

At 1 April 2015 A2015F481H 49.3 404.2 (817.3) (21.1) (21.7) 35 (403.1)
(Credit) charge to (Bt A) MBrER
profit or loss (note 11) (FftEE1) (92.5) 73.7% 406.6 (8.7) 3.1 6.0 388.2
Utilised during the year R {F A - (148.7) - - - - (148.7)
Currency realignment B (0.4) (20.6) 24.5 - - - 3.5
At 31 March 2016 20163 H831H (43.6) 308.6 (386.2) (29.8) (18.6) 9.5 (160.1)
Charge (credit) to profit or H1f& (3t A) 8%
loss (note 11) (MF&E11) 28.6 144.9* 121.6 (3.5) 2.6 6.0 300.2
Utilised during theyear  FRfEH - (164.8) - - - - (164.8)
Currency realignment =4k 2.0 (18.5) 14.2 - - - (2.3)
At 31 March 2017 M2017F3 8318 (13.0) 270.2 (250.4) (33.3) (16.0) 15.5 (27.0)
* Under the EIT Law of PRC, a 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared to foreign investors in respect * RIBFEREFRER L B2008F1 8188 ARFENHBELR
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. BRERARF EIRIMREE SRR E @ BB 10% ZFEHH °
Pursuant to approvals from the relevant PRC government obtained by certain subsidiaries of the Group and REBAEME THEQAREPEEEBEFNEREGREDIRET
reassessment of dividend distribution plan, certain of these subsidiaries should be entitled to a withholding tax at B BETZENED REAEUEER R % MM R ZFANH
the rate of 5% for dividend payments. Therefore, the amount included reversal of excessive withholding tax of I 2016 F @ BFEBEXNENBRZBENSER 247888

HK$24.7 million in 2016 (2017: nil). (20175 : &) »
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23. Deferred Taxation (continued) 23. IRIEFRIE im)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting LT AP ERE ARMELEERIELE R DT
purposes:

2017 2016
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEAT
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE (478.2)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 318.1
(160.1)
24. Inventories 24. B8
2017 2016
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BERET HEBT
Raw materials for: EEUTERBEME
Gem-set jewellery KEZEREE 4,757.6
Gold products ESEM 415.7
Platinum/karat gold products e KEER 111.0
5,284.3
Finished goods: BRm
Gem-set jewellery REEREE 13,000.2
Gold products ELEM 7,773.8
Platinum/karat gold products e KEEM 2,496.4
Watches $EiR 2,689.7
25,960.1
Packing materials BRI 132.1

31,376.5
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2016
HKS$ million

BEAT

Trade receivables =)l E 2,377.8 2,287.6

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts VB AR (21.9) (19.5)
2,355.9 2,268.1

Prepayments to suppliers B EETE R E 647.2 600.2
Deposits & 674.5 546.9
Land use rights charged within one year —FER T T E AR 13.7 14.5
Other tax recoverables HLth 7 [B] U 57 18 1,232.7 998.0
Amount due from a joint venture W —REELERE = 33.8
Others Hith 133.3 143.7
5,057.3 4,605.2

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$63.6 million and HK$11.3 million M2017F3HA31H EFENFIEI6HE BB TR
(2016: HK$84.7 million and HK$23.9 million) are due from entities in which MN3EEBIT(20165F : 847HBEB TR 239BHEET)
certain directors of the Company, who are also shareholders of the Company, DEREARRETES (FAHRQBRR) BREERA
have beneficial interests in both the Company and those entities, and non- ARREEFREERER 2 EBURKB A AIFE
controlling shareholders of the subsidiaries, respectively. IRARER ©

The Group's sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales to certain AEBHTERENHENRSAT MAETEE
customers are on credit with credit period up to 6 months. For sales through MEHERIRBEER - FEHRZ H6EA - RBEEN
concessionaire stores, the Group usually allow 30 days credit period to these HEMS  ~EE—BRBZERKFIELT0ANE
receivables. EH -

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the UTAREZRZAMEY > RBEHRNE S EIR
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximates to the HHRRON  fAERESAZKREER AHESE
respective revenue recognition dates:

2016

HK$ million

BEAT

0 to 30 days 0Z£30H 1,836.0 1,738.2
31 to 90 days 31290 H 416.7 375.5
91 to 180 days 91£180H 64.7 118.6
Over 180 days 180 HEA £ 38.5 35.8

2,355.9 2,268.1




In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group monitors
change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since the credit was granted
and up to the reporting date. The directors of the Company considered that the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality.

As at 31 March 2017, included in the trade receivable balances are receivables of
HK$122.1 million (2016: HK$241.0 million) carrying a fixed interest rate ranging
from 7.4% to 8.6% (2016: 6.4% to 7.4%) per annum, and no receivables carry a
variable interest rate (2016: receivables of HK$87.7 million carried a variable
interest rate ranging from 6.4% to 7.4% per annum).

Also, as at 31 March 2017, included in the trade receivable balances are trade
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$103.2 million (2016:
HK$154.4 million) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a significant change
in the credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable based on
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, an allowance for doubtful debt of
HK$21.9 million (2016: HK$19.5 million) is recognised based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default experience of
the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty’s current financial
positions.
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RETEZREFENTREREER  AEEERG
RHEFEEEERENFHEZRRFREEEEN
28 ARAESZRA - EZRPGEBREH TR
HE FEEERE -

R2017F3A831 08 st AEZERRBERBEESF
R R A F7.4% = 8.6% (2016 FF : 6.4% = 7.4%) HI FE UK
MIE1221 BB BT (2016%F : 241.0HBBT) » M
EFEWNFIEOTE BRI R B (2016 FF T B E R RN
F6.4% 2 74% T EMEWRIER77TEHEBTT) ©

bEoh > R2017F3 8318 st AESENFBLEH A
RBEAMEEHNAKREEA103.28 8% T (2016
FIS44FBBT)NEZERTE - BEREEEZ
WHERHBEEASHARBBEILCRABZERELT
WE - AN RSB EE IR RS o NEEM K
REEERFEEAEAR ©

BZE2017F3A31MHLEFE 2198 BB T (20165 :
195B8ET) WREEBEDENSEHHBTENK
B R EE 5 E A B AROR B 2 AT T E B {5 R AT Uk
[B] & REFERR ©

2016

HK$ million

HEBT

91 to 180 days 91E180H 64.7 118.6
Over 180 days 180 HEL £ 38.5 35.8

103.2 154.4
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2016
HKS million

BEAT

At 1 April R4B18 19.5 -
Impairment losses recognised 2RAREER 3.7 19.5
Currency realignment Bl (1.3) -
At 31 March M3A31H8 21.9 19.5

As at 31 March 2016, the amount due from a joint venture was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand which was fully impaired in current year.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invested in an unlisted
convertible bonds with principal amount of AUS3,000,000, bearing interest at
8.0% per annum and an original maturity date of 31 December 2014, issued by a
private entity (the “Issuer”) which is principally engaged in agriculture and
wholesale of pearls in Australia. The convertible bonds were renewed during the
year ended 31 March 2015 and the coupon interest was changed to 7.0% per
annum with a maturity date of 31 December 2016 (the “Maturity Date”). The
Group is entitled at any time after the date of issue up to the Maturity Date to
redeem the convertible notes in cash or pearls or combination of both to the
value of the principal amount outstanding or convert the convertible notes into
ordinary shares of the Issuer. The convertible notes comprised debt component
and embedded derivatives being the conversion option and the Group’s early
redemption option. Such convertible bonds are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
fair value of the convertible notes was substantially the same as the carrying
amount.

R2016F3H31H » ER—REECERBARIKA
RERBFERTFEE  ARANFEZERME -

BZE2012F3831ALEE  AEERE—EF LH
A R IaES 0 A& $E43,000,0008 7T 0 FFIZES.0%
BHREHEE2014512831 0 BEBEBRMNRED
HKIZEERMBENAEEE ((RTAD BT - JLBRE
SREBZE2015F3A3MBILFEEY  ZEEFERE
FA70% FHHEBE2016F128318 - REBF#
RETARZIHAFTARBRUARESREKAME R
EHBREEHENAEERSSEN T RIREEIE
HERARITANSER A RREFEEEERD
RBARFTETR  BRRERAEEZIZEELE -
ZEULBRESFIEERRATETAEBR  MAAH
BERA > URBREFNATEEREEASER -



During the year ended 31 March 2017, the bank deposits carry interest at the
prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 8.20% (2016: 0.01% to 7.10%) per
annum.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB were HK$5,284.8 million (2016: HK$7,891.3 million). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations in Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct

business in foreign currency.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities:

Annual Report 2017 3R 213

BZ2017F3A3MHILFEE  RITFRRERMEE
) = A F £0.01%E8.20% (2016 F : / F0.01% &
7.10%) 5t 8 °

R2017F3 8318 AEBRARBIENREREA
SEENAS2848EEBT(2016F 1 78913 EE
L) c AR A EHABRARMER ; A RIE
RAERHFEMNESBRGIREE SERMSE
BERE  AEEEEEBRSTRITETINEEL
BARMERIBRBINE o

FFARTEBRERENRBATIREREE (XEE
BEEERNINEEER) FIENIR

2016

HK$ million

AEAT

RMB ARYE 879.6 536.3
uss$ ES 495.7 334.9
2016

HKS million

HEBT

Trade payables =87 ) INE e 420.7 399.7
Deposits received from franchisees and customers B INBEEREZWENIZS 3,967.9 2,503.7
Other tax payables Hth eI HiE 308.2 268.5
Accruals &R 340.3 3736
Accrued staff costs EETE T R4 338.2 360.1
Interest payables FEFRIE 5.0 31.6
Others Hith 313.1 398.9
5,693.4 4,336.1

Deposits received from franchisees and customers mainly represent deposits
made by franchisees in Mainland China for the consigned products. The
amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

BINEEE R EE WA R S E 215 B A it N BA R 1
WEEERKAXNZES - ZREREEARRE -
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B 5 N EMENRRIE @

AEE-REAHEHRSHEERR/NF7HE 180
BERZ - UTARBEZAH2IINSREARNE
2 T TR ARER DA

28. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its suppliers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of each reporting period:

2017 2016

HK$ million HKS$ million

BEET HEBT

0 to 30 days 0&F30H 381.0 305.8
31 to 90 days 31290 H 23.7 12.0
91 to 180 days 91E180H 3.6 4.5
Over 180 days 180 HL £ 12.4 774
420.7 399.7

29. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling Shareholders of

Subsidiaries

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

30. Bank Borrowings

EERREET RERRERAFEE -

/= 45 L

30. SRITER

29. AR A B FFERRRFRIA

2017 2016
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET EX-5:54
Unsecured bank loans EIRARITER 6,792.5 7,920.0
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings IEEEZREEIRTHHREER
are repayable*:

Within one year —FR® 6,192.5 7,320.0
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  —F L £ ETBBMF 600.0 -
More than two years, but not exceeding five years F&ELL L - BRBBREE - 600.0
6,792.5 7,920.0

Less: Amounts due within one year shown under 8 : RBIEEE TR~ —ERIPNFE
current liabilities (6,192.5) (7,320.0)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FEREEEET FIRIE 600.0 600.0

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. 2

FUHRFRIRTY LABE 1 78 T W BB B A R ARIE o



The bank borrowings carry variable interest rates at 0.7% over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") per annum or 90% to 91% of The Peoples’ Bank
of China Standard Loan Interest Rate (2016: ranged from 0.7% to 0.8% over
HIBOR per annum).

As at 31 March 2017, the range of interest rates on the bank borrowings were
1.1% to 3.9% (2016: 0.9% to 1.0%) per annum.

All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of relevant group
entities.

The amounts represent unsecured borrowings from banks and the amounts
payable are pegged with gold prices.

As at 31 March 2017, the gold loans carry fixed interest rates of 1.0% to 2.5%
(2016: 1.2% to 2.7%) per annum, with original maturity of 1 to 7 months (2016: 1
to 4 months) from date of inception.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in gold prices on
gold inventories. Gold loans were designated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than functional currency of the relevant group entities:
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RITERRIBHEFNRHE  EANRZBEBBRITRE
FEM0.7%RPEARBITEREEFE 0% ZE 1%
(20165 : FRIEAFBRITRAZREMN F0.7%ZE0.8
% ) e

M2017F3831 8 BRARKRTERNERNZNF1.1%
£3.9% (2016 F : 0.9% £ 1.0%) °

FERITEREZEREEERNINEEEIIE -

ZRETIERERRTER  MENHERESER
i

M2017F38318 E2EBEREFNE1.0%E2.5%
(2016 %F : ERZE12%E 2.7%) HEEXRTE 73
HEAREAEB1Z7/@A (2016F : 124{@A) °

FREEEEENERAEESFEIESER KRS
IHE  BELEEEERRATEMARENERME

SFAESEEATIRERE
WREE ) PUERIFRIR ¢

(AHFFEEEEEN

2016
HKS million
BEAT

b
il

uss$

1,573.1 3,184.0
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32. Share Capital 32. A
2017 and 2016
2017 R 2016 5
HKS$ million
HEBT
Authorised: EE

50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 50,000,000,000 R G MR EE 1 BT 2 EBR 50,000.0

Issued and fully paid: EBTRHRE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 10,000,000,000 R B R EE 1 BT 2 EBR 10,000.0

There was no change in the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid capital MEEER ZRBZEE  SBITRBERAHGE

in both years. B o
33. Operating Lease Commitments 33. KEHEAIE
The Group as lessee AEBEER/KEA

At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to make the REREHR  REFEALESREBBERTRENEE
following future minimum lease payments which represent lease payments of HER T HZIHAEREE R R R FEBE ST (RRAHE

its rented premises, under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as YIEWES) A
follows:

2017 2016
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEBT
Within one year —FR 1,243.0 1,466.4
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF (BREEREWE) 1,323.5 1,435.5
Over five years HEFELE 407.6 472.6
2,974.1 3,3745

Included in above are commitments to entities in which certain directors* of the SFAENAiRAAARETES HEZHENER

Company have benéeficial interests: IR
2017 2016
HKS$ million HKS$ million
BAEET BEBT
Within one year —FR 162.6 164.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF (BREREWE) 275.8 163.4
Over five years HEFHUE 351.7 380.3
790.1 708.3

o The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. * BENEEAATNZHE -



There are certain lease arrangements for rented premises, according to which
the Group is committed to pay minimum guaranteed amounts and additional
monthly payments determined based on monthly sales levels.

There are concessionaire arrangements for concessionaire stores according to
which the Group is committed to pay either minimum guaranteed amounts or
concessionaire fees that are based on prescribed rates of corresponding sales
depending on product categories, whichever is higher. The minimum
guaranteed amounts are not material and the concessionaire fees paid during
the year were all determined based on sales level.

Majority of leases with fixed rentals and concessionaire arrangement are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$12.5 million (2016:
HK$18.0 million). All of the Group’s investment properties are held for rental
purposes. All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next 1 to 3
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for

the following future minimum lease payments:
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RIEETEREMENEEZ S AEEEREZTHE
EREBVRREESHHEKTEENETAEMIA

FEBREERAEERS Bl NEBEERTF
EmBRRAEHEHEER LB EXNRERES
FEEDI R (ABRSERE) - RERREFALTEK -
FEEXNN2HDEED RIIRBHEEKPEE o

ABHROREMRGENERFEEE AP —F 5
=ERES TR o

RERNBRN2YWEHRESRAE125FEB T (2016 5F -
180 EEBBT) - AEEMBERENEDZEHE - AT
BEZ2HYERAR—ZE=FHACAHHEEZH
JE o

RIEHR - AEEEBAF AR HANARREEE
AT :

2016
HKS million
HEET
Within one year —FR 9.6 8.6
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZFERLF (BEEREWE) = 12.9
9.6 21.5
2016
HKS$ million
EX-5:54

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided ~ FLUXEEY% « MERRECITHEXR

for in respect of the acquisition of property, BENELRRX

plant and equipment 429.2 412.7
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold loans and
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company, comprising share capital,
reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly. The
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the raising of bank borrowings and gold
loans.

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including
the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets
and financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

FEEEREFASERFREEERUSALE 1B
BESEBERSNRETEMARRRBUZAER

FEBNEREZBBERTER BESEENEAQT
IRRIEME RAE (BER S MBBRAWE RS - &FE
RARBRA) ©

FEEEEEERRIELARE -FEEEZRES
BARSEEREBENERR  TEBIRGRE - 3BT
R SERTEFRECEEFEAEEERES
R -

HENEHEERERABERNIRAERNS R
BRI ENFE (BERIAGE  FEEEURERR
AR B EZE) A 33 ER o

2016
HKS million
BEAT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERRERRE(BERERRESEEY)
cash equivalents) 10,526.7 15,571.5
Convertible bonds at fair value through BRAFEGFABRZARIBRES
profit or loss - 17.8
10,526.7 15,589.3
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost B8R AR 7,621.2 8,911.4
Gold loans at fair value through profit or loss LAFEFAEBZNESEBE 3,215.9 6,513.3
10,837.1 15,424.7




The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
loan receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan
receivables, certain trade receivables and gold loans. The Group currently does
not have any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities, mainly certain
bank balances and bank borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the need

arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest rate risk is

considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have foreign currency sales, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. During the year ended 31 March 2017, about 0.3% (2016:
0.4%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities. During the year ended 31 March 2017,
about 4.6% (2016: 6.1%) of the Group’s purchases, are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities making the
purchase. The majority of the Group'’s foreign currency denominated monetary
items are bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), which are held by
Group entities whose functional currencies are not RMB, with carrying amounts
of HK$879.6 million (2016: HK$536.3 million). In addition, certain group entities
whose functional currency is HKS, have intra-group advances to their
subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars (“US$”) and RMB,
which are arising from relevant group entities’ foreign currency denominated

monetary assets and liabilities for the Group'’s operating activities.
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Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy to
eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management monitors the
related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arise. As at 31 March 2017, if the
exchange rate of RMB had been 2% appreciated or depreciated against HKS, the
Group's profit after taxation for the year would increase or decrease by HK$70.0
million (2016: HK$101.7 million).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the currency risk of USS$ is
considered insignificant.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The gold
market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group's financial performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses gold loans to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on
gold inventory. Gold loans are settled at maturity which is usually in 1 to 7
months (2016: 1 to 4 months) from date of inception and any fair value change
is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2017, if the market price of gold had been higher or lower by
10%, the potential effect on gold loans and the resulting impact on profit after
taxation for the year would decrease or increase approximately by HK$295.6
million (2016: HK$598.8 million).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties
failure to perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade and loan
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such amounts are placed in banks
with good reputation.

T 15 B B (48)
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Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity profiles of its
financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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MENE & R
AEBEEEEALEENERRTPHESURR
ELEERERYBEENRBDESRBEEER - X
EEEBESRITREURSEERRARERES
REREEREEZEMER  EERDESER

TRAFTEEZEMEERTENIHEZFHE - &
RERBEAEEITRERINVEHEEZHEAHRE
2 URREBMEBEZRAURRSRE - ZRBERE
MNERAESRERE °

Financial liabilities EREE
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3A31H
Trade and other payables 2 5 & EfEN 78 - 738.8 - - 738.8 738.8
Amounts due to non- FERHEDRFER

controlling shareholders R EIE

of subsidiaries - 89.9 - - 89.9 89.9
Bank borrowings RITER 1.4% 5,804.1 399.6 610.4 6,814.1 6,792.5
Gold loans HEEE 1.7% 3,158.9 63.0 - 3,221.9 3,215.9

9,791.7 462.6 610.4 10,864.7 10,837.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B i8R R Mia:
For the year ended 31 March 2017 &£ 2017 63 A 31 HIEFE

36. Financial Instruments (continued) 36. @Rt TE
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) THEREEBERBR @
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & AR (E)
Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
RERE RYRERE
IIREF G FIZ H3fEAR 3EAZVE 1&E5F TEHE HREE
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BHEER BEBRT BEBER BHEER BEER
Financial liabilities A%
At 31 March 2016 M20165F3A31H
Trade and other payables & 5 K &N 708 - 830.2 - - 830.2 830.2
Amounts due to non- FE A I 8 2 ) FE 42
controlling shareholders ~ REHIE
of subsidiaries - 161.2 - - 161.2 161.2
Bank borrowings RITEM 0.9% 7,324.8 - 614.2 7,939.0 7,920.0
Gold loans HEEEE 1.9% 6,389.7 139.0 - 6,528.7 6,513.3
14,705.9 139.0 614.2 15,459.1 15,424.7
Notes: PHEE -
[0) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are subject to change if changes in variable (i) MEREDRWTIENEZHERNECEENR RG> EITRER
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period. TERBENBERENRE -
(ii) The amounts of gold loans are determined with reference to quoted market bid price of gold traded in active (ii) ESEENSESRESRETSHEZESTHEAREREE -

liquid markets.



(0]

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

. the fair value of gold loans is determined using discounted cash
flow valuation technique reference to quoted market bid price of
gold traded in active liquid markets as a key input; and

. the fair value of convertible bonds is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The following table provides an analysis of convertible bonds and gold
loans that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

(0]

Annual Report 2017 FF 3R]

REEREEUNTEHAEEHEERERE
WL AFE

TREEREREGE A FEDUATSIRIERE
E :

ELEEZATFENARRR SR ME
BE HYZ2RESREmSEECES
TEEAREAEEHARE S K

A RBES 2 AFEDIREAREBER
RIBRMRBSREDTEE

TRERDSRAFERRETEZALBE
SREBESEBEZHN  BRBATEBEMESRE
E2B1E3#H -

observable.
At 31 March 2017 ®20174%3A31H
Financial liabilities SNV
Gold loans EEEE 3,215.9 = 3,215.9
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H
Financial assets EREE
Convertible bonds ] R ES - 17.8 17.8
Financial liabilities S =]
Gold loans E2BE 6,513.3 - 6,513.3
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(0]

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of convertible bonds

0]

GEEEENATEABSMAZREME
2 A T4 (8
TSR 3 WA T8 25

HK$ million
BEAT

At 1 April 2015

Currency realignment

At 31 March 2016

Derecognition upon maturity

Currency realignment

At 31 March 2017

R2015F 481 H

M2016F3 831 H

=

2

HABF 48 L FEER

| /Z
Bl s =4

E-1e

3
&

N
;X

3

M2017F3H831H

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of convertible bonds, the Group used market-
observable data to the extent it was available. Where Level 1 inputs were
not available, the Group performed the valuation using discounted cash
flow model with reference to comparable market data.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value on recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

(ii)

17.9
(0.1)

17.8

(16.8)
(1.0)

R FEGTEREEBE
TR ABRES D TER  AEESAAH
ASNTmEABRYE - MR 1 RBAH
B AEEE2RATLBTSHIERBRRR
TREBRAVET(EE

WIEREREUNTEAEEHMEERE
MalEzATE
HiteMEEREREBE2 A FEDREARE

BES - BRAERRSREDNEE -
AAREERR  NEEMBRMRZBH A

ARNEREEREEZREEEE QA TER
Mo



The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are registered
under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of independent trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represents contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee. The
maximum monthly amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,000 per employee,
which was revised to HK$1,250 with effect from 1 June 2012 and further revised
to HKS$ 1,500 with effect from 1 June 2014.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China and
Macau are members of pension schemes operated by local government of
Mainland China and the Macau government, respectively. The subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain percentage of the relevant
cost of the payroll of these employees to the pension schemes to fund the
benefits. The subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contribution under the schemes.
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REBZRTERAUEEN L REN TFESH MR - i
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REEEMERGRE R ARRIR

RBEETENKEMS » AREARBES AR
HRE T ERAMES% MR ZEMREAES N HREE—
B -BRAMINBES2EASNIER,000ET B
2012F 6 A1 HECIEE] 1,250t » B2014F6 8 1
B HEHE — HHEFT 531,500 8 T ©
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Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension benefits to the
employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before 1995. The amount payable
is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of services. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund such obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between 25% and
40% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an age of 65. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
the present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out in March
2017 by Roma Appraisals Limited (“Roma”), an independent qualified
professional valuer, using the projected unit credit method. The principal place
of business of Roma is 22/F, China Overseas Building, 193 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The assumptions which have the most significant effect
on the results of the valuation are discount rate, retirement age, turnover rate,
mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

AR B T M B A R @R 1995 F A1 A ZZ M & A R
HESREEHERRERER - BARBERNMEER
BNFERBBEY - AEETEEFEMEEUX
NRRAE -

BiEZTE  BEERFRESRFREFRETERAK
EHRBENTFHREHFE25%Z 0% ZFRMKE o &
S E I IR R A AR AR RAER o BT K E B4R AR
RERHEMAEDNN2017F3IAHBLEERGEEME
FEREBMEARQIB(ES D RAEAEMLEREE
T BENIELEXBUDETBEFHEFE 1935
HESINRE 2218 - HEEERKELENRERIIE
BERAFE  BEXR . RETERFSHNFAE -

FERMEERERRNT :

2016
Discount rate ARIE = 1.6% 1.2%
Expected rate of salary increase SR h | 2.5% 2.5%
Turnover rate B =R 0% 0%

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit MEZEEANGTENEENSERNRIBNOT

scheme are as follows:

2016
HKS$ million
BEAT
Current service cost 5 B AR A% AR AR 3.5 3.9
Interest on obligation EERFE 3.9 2.8
Components of defined benefits recognised RIBRERNEERR B0
in profit or loss 7.4 6.7
Remeasurement on defined benefit scheme REMEEREEZNELEBANETE
recognised in other comprehensive income: BHEE
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from changes IR ETELENBE (RS BB
in financial assumptions (15.8) 2.1

Total HEE

(8.4) 8.8




The current service costs and interest on obligation for the year ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 are included in “selling and distribution costs” and “general and
administrative expenses” depending on the respective employee’s function.

The remeasurement of the defined benefit scheme for the year ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 is included in other comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as
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HZE2017F3831HK 201653 831 BIEFENRE
RIER AR AENFEZS ENEEREETATHEE
RAOERA IR —RETHRES]E

HZE2017F3H318K%2016F3831ALEFENTE
B BIEF B AL EIE -

EREEANAREREZSNOT :

follows:

2016

HKS million

HEET

At 1 April MW4A1H 2434 2433
Service costs AR A% A A 3.5 3.9
Interest costs T B R 3.9 2.8
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (k&) BB (15.8) 2.1
Benefits paid 2XAEF (8.4) (8.7)
At 31 March M3HB31H 226.6 243.4




228 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited B XEHAEEE SR A 7

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &&= 2017 43 A 31 H I F[E

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of attracting skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to
remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), the directors of the subsidiaries and the employees of the Group and
any other persons (including consultants or advisers) who the directors of the
Company consider, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute
to the Group (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant of an option shall be
made to a Participant by a notice of grant requiring the Participant to undertake
to hold the option on the terms on which it is to be granted (which may include
a minimum period for which the option must be held before it can be exercised
and a performance target that must be reached before the option can be
exercised in whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be accepted by the
Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company receives from the Grantee the
duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee. An offer may be accepted
or deemed to have been accepted in respect of less than the number of shares
in respect of which it is offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a board
lot or an integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain open for acceptance
for such time to be determined by the directors of the Company, provided that
no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the expiry of the Share Option
Scheme or after the termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
its terms or after the Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased to be a
Participant. To the extent that the offer is not accepted within the time period
and in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the Company, and
shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company'’s share on the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no such share options were
granted nor exercised by the Company.

The Company issued to the directors and certain employees share appreciation
rights (the “SARs”) that the Company would pay the intrinsic value of the SARs
to the directors and certain employees as part of the discretionary bonus. The
Group recorded a total expense of HK$3.6 million during the year ended 31
March 2017 (2016: nil).

RIEA 2011 F 11 B 17 BBBIRER - A0 GERME
REESTEI([BREE])  EREBEBIRHEEREAAF
RENKERSIERENEHRNAS  BBESEE
AEE BEREBAEENARERRERME N
REBRESS  AAFAESSURE2ERNERA
HAEEFHSBFEHERNES (BFEHTES  F
PITEERBIFHTES)  MBARMNES &%
EHNEEURTMEMA L (BEZHAARERD) (2
BE |) % HEBARAE -

BRETENEMREE10FE B201EFENB178E
B REBRENENEURHBANERmSHEE
B ERSHEEFRERR BRI EERE (T8
BIEBREMNRESEERE > REPABHITEE
BRIERBZINKRBERZ)  EZERETERRY
R o AR T BELARALABENREBIRA -
BIRHERENENSERACESEE (ARAD
B ABATRENSEAEANEY IS RN
BRAOBEARMEENENFMERERD  EMER
MNERA—FEESVREBHEZE - RBAZHBER
RENEHEAMNEASE FREARAATNES
SEEMNHBA—E R HER  ERBRESEIHR
[EmSER R EREERRAR LA EEEEAN
SHETBASEER BB HEER HEIR
BRAREENFMIEAARNER  $RAESTTHE
hiEBEREEL °

TEEARADRAESTEE LA EERUTES
E:()VREBHPARRROOETHE S () BERER
HATRERS BROFHRHE & i) RHB#HAL
ATV E{E

HZE2017FK20165F3 831 ALEFE » KA TNER
H BT S BB AR AE -

AAREESRE T EERITROEERE(RDIEE
B RAGBRNESERE T REXNRPIGEEN
REEE  FARBRAN M - E20175348
3JNALEE  AEERSEARIRA36EEE (2016
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(i)  Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the () KBEEVBRRAEMBIEENRS K&
o AEBERFRT L TFIEBLRS

consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered into the
following related party transactions during the year:

Relationship Nature of transactions 2016
[E2RES ZHMHE HK$ million
BEET
Entities in which certain directors* Advertising expenses 7.7 10.7
of the Company have beneficial interests BHEmEX
AARBETES " HEZHENER Concessionaire fees in department stores 69.0 74.0
BEAREED K
Rental expenses 195.0 198.4
HEMX
Purchase of goods and coupons and 0.3 0.7
commission expenses
BEERRESURBEHRX
Sales of goods and coupons 4.5 41.0
Rental income 0.1 10.9
HEWA
Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries Concessionaire fees in department stores 8.0 10.5
BB A R FEEIR AR R BEARSEES K
Franchise sales 229 293.7
InEESHE
Entities in which a close family member Engineering services fee 7.4 28.6
of certain directors* of the Company TERBEE
has control Rental expenses 23.8 21.6
RRBETES NIRIBHE HeMX
BEETIENERE Purchase of equipment 12.3 11.4
BERE
Licence fee 125 53
REEH
Acquisition of patents = 51.7
KB EF
* The directors also have beneficial interests in the Company. o BEENREEAQARNZ0ME -

BrEMAZ 5 0 AR DRI E AR R R
WEFTHUAARAESEHEPEERBES
BERNBZEERS ZHREN -

Apart from the aforementioned transactions, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had, directly or indirectly, a

material interest at any time during the year.
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XN TEREERASHHEOEME10KEN
KAREERESTHAS

(i)  Remuneration paid for key management personnel includes the directors (ii)
and the chief executives of the Company as disclosed in note 10.

RRBEERHRETRASNM S 2 4B
ZEEREBEMERNATHREARTSBEMETE -

The remuneration of the directors and the chief executives of the
Company is determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

THRRBREPRA QXD EEWBE QB 25515 :

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting
period are set out below:

Issued and
Place and fully paid
date of share capital/ Proportion of

incorporation/

registered capital/

ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRITRHYERE
Wi B 2 7 2 78 MBS, BRI B R B HMERTEER zliﬁﬁlﬁﬂéiﬁm&t&ﬁtthms FEEY
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% 100% Investment holding
ERERAT 20 June 2011 uss$1 REZER
REBEARNS BRA
2011 F6H20R 1£7%
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Trading of diamond
HHESHERAT 10 January 2008 HK$10,000 BREE
D ERERA
20081 A 10H 10,000 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 products
BARBHRELTERAHF o EERA KEEMBEE
196153 H6H 350,000,000 7 7T
CTF Diamond Trading Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Company Limited 19 September 2003 HK$100 diamond
REEAESERAF B8 ZERA EAEREE
2003 9H 19H 100 7% 7T
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Sales of watches
BAARIEER (FR)ARDT 7 February 2011 HK$1 EEREE
a8 EERA
2011F2H7H 18T



Place and
date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest
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Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERAE
HEAR B REM AL SLRR ALt BE R B R HMEAR EEE A Kﬂﬂﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁt&tgﬁtwﬂzom FTEXH
Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Procurement of
Investment Limited 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 gemstones, sales of
ENBREREBRAA 35 PR AN jewellery products
20055826 H 5,000,000 & 7T and investment
holding
RBER -HKEEM
HEURREZER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
and Watch Company 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 products
(Macau) Limited HP FaEEAR HEERHKE
BRI ORFY) 20093 H17H 5,000,000 29 7T
BRAE
Hearts On Fire The United States Capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
of America US$74,468,737 products
14 May 2001 B REEMEE
ESEi 74,468,737 =TT
200158 14H
Beijing Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company 13 November 2006 capital products and
Limited R US$30,000,000 provision of services
A ERBHREEA 2006 %11 A13 0 SE A to franchisees
RRAA 30,000,000 7% HEERHER
RARE T INERE
Chongging Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered 80% 80% Sales of watches
Watch Marketing Company 25 December 2008 capital EERINE
Limited I RMB10,000,000
E’Eﬁj‘iﬁifﬁ’é% 2008 12 A 25 H AfEAR
ARAA A% 10,000,000 7T
Chongging Flamingo Watches ~ PRC* Registered 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 25 December 2008 capital EERHE
EEERSEKAERAT e RMB1,000,000
2008 12 A25H EMEAR

AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T
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Place and
date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERE
HEAR B REM AL SLRR AL B R B R HMER EEE A AABEAEBE AR L5 FEER
2016
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Chongging) Company 23 December 2008 capital products and
Limited =alE K US$30,000,000 provision of services
ES =1 = 4=
BRBEHREET (EE) 20085 12 A 23 A SE A to franchisees
BRAF o gr=x o b g
30,000,000 % 7T KREEMEER
RAERE T INEER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Shenyang) Company Limited 3 January 2014 capital products and
BARBRE ST (ES) FRE - RMB20,000,000 provision of services
/N T N N
BREAT 201451828 G A to franchisees
A K # 20,000,000 7T KEEMBEER
RMERE T INERS
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing and
(Shenzhen) Company 2 April 2002 capital sales of jewellery
Limited A US$100,000,000 products
E3 =3 =3 4= (2
AARAKE 24T (RII) 2002428 HEMEA KEEREERME
BRAF -
100,000,000 3= 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Suzhou) Company Limited 11 January 2006 capital products and
RARBHRE T (BRM) hE" US$30,000,000 provision of services
BRAF sy ;
2006 F 1 A11H EMER to franchisees
30,000,000 7T KEEMBEER
RMRE T INERS
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Wuhan) Company Limited 29 January 2008 capital products and
BRBEHREST (RE) e US$30,000,000 provision of services
BRAF sy ;
20084 1 A 29 H HEMmEAR to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KREEMBEER
RERE T INEER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Culture Industrial Park 16 August 2012 capital jewellery products
(Wuhan) Company Limited g+ US$140,000,000 KEEMEE
N =
BABEAREXEXR 2012688168 FMEA
(RB)BRATF

140,000,000 3 7T



Place and
date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest

Annual Report 2017 FF 3R]

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERAE
HEAR B REM AL SLRR ALt BE R B R HEMEAEEEAR Zk’AﬁlﬁﬂM}iﬁtgtgﬁttﬁﬂzms FEER
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC~ Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 capital products
Company Limited hE- RMB65,723,500 BEEREE
BARBHREEITRIEBR 201044 821 A srmaz
RERRAR AR ¥ 65,723,500 7T
Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery  PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Manufacturing 14 March 2007 capital jewellery products
Company Limited HE" US$10,639,400 BBERLEE
ﬁuﬁﬂ“ﬁ%@%@‘%ffkg 200743 148 SmEA
HORERRAT 10,639,400 3 7T
Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Diamond Company 9 November 1988 capital jewellery products
Limited HE" US$18,000,000 BEEREE
I FRIBIE B B R A 1988 £ 11 A9 B SHEA
BRAT 18,000,000 3 7T
Guangdong Chow Tai Fook PRC Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 10 December 2007 capital products and
ERAXBHREST hE. US$30,000,000 provision of services
BRAF 2007412810 EMEAR to franchisees
30,000,000 % 7T KEEMEER
RERE T MED
Guangdong Shunde PRC" Registered 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery 30 July 2014 capital jewellery products
Manufacturing Company e RMB60,000,000 KEEMEE
r'—‘m“/ed - ‘ 201478308 EMER
ERIBEEAREHRERE AR 60,000,000 7
BRAE
Shanghai Fulong PRC* Registered 60% 60%  Sales of jewellery
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery 5 January 2000 capital products
Company Limited " RMB10,000,000 GEEMMEE
LBRRARERE 200041 85 SMEA
BRAF]

AR # 10,000,000 7T
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Place and
date of
incorporation/

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital/

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERE
HEAR B REM AL SLRR AL B R B R HMER EEE A AABEAEBE AR L5 FTEXH
2016
Shenzhen Chow Tai Fook PRC~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Jewellery Manufacturing 5 March 2012 RMB20,000,000 jewellery products
Company Limited - EfRE AR KEEMEE
FYH AR BHRERE 20123 A5H AR #5 20,000,000 7T
BRAF
Shenzhen CTF Watch PRC* Registered 80% 80%  Sales of watches
Company Limited 27 June 2011 capital fEEREEE
/?ﬁﬂ”% kgﬁfiﬁ FE ’I_A\ ﬁ EF‘ @I + HK$300,000,000
2011 6H27H AMER
300,000,000 & 7T
Shenzhen Shenfu Jewellery PRC* Registered 50%" 50%*  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 19 April 2007 capital products
RN RBIRE 21T R RMBS,000,000 GHERNE
/N T N N
BRAE 2007 F4 A 198 FAfEA
A B 8,000,000 7T
Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered 70% 70%  Sales of jewellery
Company Limited 26 November 2003 capital products
REEERESTARAA ] RMB50,000,000 KEEMMEE
2003511 A26H &
A% 50,000,000 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade PRC* Registered 50%" 50%"  Sales of jewellery
Xinfu Jewellery Company 3 December 2010 capital products
Limited - RMB3,000,000 KEERHE
==l = /E =3
S’E%,iﬁﬁ@jw—:%ﬂm 2010F 12 A3 8 EMEAR
b5 1T N —
ARETRRAR A R# 3,000,000 70
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dehui PRC~ Registered 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 24 September 2012 capital products
REBRFEEEKEST A~ RMB94,567,500 KREEREE
BRAT 20125 9F 248 AfEAR

AR ¥ 94,567,500 7T
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Issued and
Place and fully paid
date of share capital/ Proportion of
incorporation/ registered capital/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Company Principal activities
CRITREERAE
HEAR B REM AL SLRR ALt BE R B R HMEAR EEE A AABEIEHE AR LG FEER
2016
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Qifu PRC* Registered 51% 51%  Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Trading Company 11 june 2007 capital products
Limited - RMB 150,000,000 KEEMEE
=3 & = ‘H Ei =3 .
gﬁi«,ﬁﬁmgmm AH 200756 A 11 B SE A
= AN =1 —_
HATRLH A R# 150,000,000 7T
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Zhaofu ~ PRC* Registered 51% 51% Sales of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 17 November 2011 capital products
== = ke T BE A w
REBREEBEZERHKEST e+ RMB70,000,000 LEERNE
=1 N N
BRAE 2011411 A 17 B HEMEAR
A B 70,000,000 7T
o Directly held by the Company. * AATEERE ©
# Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of these entities, the Group has power to # RIEZSERNBRR BT LNEEGES  A5EELSERETAR
direct the relevant activities of these entities since their respective date of establishment/acquisition, and hence WA GRS ERNEREE Rt EERRE
these entities are classified as subsidiaries of the Company. RARFHMBAT °
+ Being a co-operative joint venture establishment in the PRC. + RPERINEERFERE -
A Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise. A RIBBEDLE -
~ Being a wholly owned enterprise in the PRC. ~ BRERIHBELE -
Note:  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the Mt : LERIHESRAFEVELIKENXBEREENETDDMBEAF o
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in HIEMHE DR 2FHE EFARASEFFHBBRALE °

particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4R& Bt ® &Mz
For the year ended 31 March 2017 = 2017 F3 A31 BIEFE

41. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve 41, ARARFBERRRRFEEESH
Movement of the Company

2017 2016
HK$ million HKS million
BRET BEET

Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHBATZRE 15,387.3
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR R B A B 7R 600.0
15,987.3

Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUR — RS F B A B 5018 10,657.3
Bank balances RITHERR 0.5
10,657.8
Current liabilities KBRS

Other liabilities HithaE 1.8
Bank borrowings IRITER 7,320.0
Gold loans =EEE 3,184.0
10,505.8
Net current assets FENEEFHE 152.0
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBARG 16,139.3

Non-current liability FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEX 600.0
15,539.3

Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital R 10,000.0
Reserves HE 5,539.3

15,539.3
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Share capital Share premium Retained profits Total

i B iiE R F Hat

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

HEET BEBT BHEBT HEBT

At 1 April 2015 201548 1H 10,000.0 5,498.7 38.1 15,536.8
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFE 2 EU A EZE

income for the year - - 6,502.5 6,502.5

Dividends BE - - (6,500.0) (6,500.0)

At 31 March 2016 M2016F3H31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.6 15,539.3
Profit and total comprehensive & X% R 2 E N A ZZE

income for the year - - 5,100.3 5,100.3

Dividends BRE - - (5,100.0) (5,100.0)

At 31 March 2017 7201763 A31H 10,000.0 5,498.7 40.9 15,539.6
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Financial Summary Bf##i=

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of UTAXREEBELEAMBRFEFEC HBEEEUREE
the Group for the last five financial years. The financial information are extracted BB EHE - B E R B FMMNARE ISR
from the consolidated financial statements in the annual reports.

For the year ended 31 March
HZE3A3ALEE

2013 2014 2015 2016

HKS million HKS million HKS$ million HKS$ million

BB BEBT BEBT HEBT
Revenue S| 57,433.9 77,407.1 64,277.0 56,591.5 51,245.5
Gross profit E 16,283.1 21,152.3 19,0724 15,641.4 14,962.7
Profit for the year FEHR 5,678.4 7,449.2 5,535.8 2,978.9 3,151.1

As at 31 March

MW3A31H
2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS million
BEBR BEBR BEBT BEBT
Total assets BEBEE 43,2186 61,817.1 61,121.0 55,675.4 49,401.9
Total liabilities BEHEE 9,357.9 23,364.7 20,580.2 19,925.5 16,900.4

Net assets EEFR 33,860.7 38,452.4 40,540.8 35,749.9 32,501.5




Glossary %

THFY
BIBEFE L F

2HFY
MR TR

Articles
#H 8

ASP
FIEE

Board
HEE

China UnionPay
Fh B 5 Bk

cis
EAEE

Company/Chow Tai Fook
AAR BARE

FY
B

Gem-set jewellery

TRE SR E

Group
%8,/ 4%

Hearts On Fire

High-end luxury jewellery
ZEHE

Karat gold
K&

Listing Rules
EmAl

Mainland China
B A i
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the first half of the financial year, six months ending 30 September

BIHEE L¥E > BEIA30HIEAEA

the second half of the financial year, six months ending 31 March

BHEETHXE  HE3A31HIEAEAR

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
RAEEBERMA (BRREET)

average selling price

FIIHEER

the board of directors of the Company

RARESS

a bankcard organisation based in Mainland China

Hh Bl A e Y — SRR 1T R A

Counter-in-shop in POS
REEHRNENEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
BABHKRESEBHRA R (RHNRI : 1929)

financial year, 1 April of a year to 31 March of the following year
BBEE  EF4A1BEZRF3H31H

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEHARBEANENER

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRE R EME L E
Hearts On Fire Company, LLC.

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEE10BEBTU LLNHKREER

jewellery products made from gold alloy

e SRENEMER

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEBAERZMERARES LHRA

the mainland of the People’s Republic of China
hEARAFERL
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Mass luxury jewellery

ERHKE

020
BMERT

POS
ZER

Retail Sales Value/RSV
ZEHE

Same Store

EE

Same Store Sales/SSS
BIEHE

Same Store Sales Growth/SSSG
E/EHEER

SFO
&5 KRR

SIS
JERRIE

Stock Exchange
B4 3% F

Tier |, I, Ill and other cities

—B 8 ZHEREMET
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jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEENF2TETZ10EB TN HKEER

online-to-offline
BEFRT

points of sale
EmEEH

the sales at the ending price (VAT inclusive, if any), in respective functional currencies, of
products sold to customers in the POS network and other channels
REEHRAKNEMRENZEFHEEMUBERNYEEEHENGRTEE (BFEIEBENR W
B)FE

self-operated POS existing as at the end of the relevant financial period and which have been
operating since the beginning of the prior financial year

BA—EXBRFEAERETREFAVNBPEARNABEFNELTER

for FY2017, the revenue from self-operated POS existing as at 31 March 2017 and which have
been opened prior to 1 April 2015, measured at constant exchange rates. Revenue from
wholesale and other channels are excluded

2017 M BFEEMS » 7R 2015F4 51 BAIBELR 201753 831 BNABENELEZEHN
EXEF(RERERE)  BETEEMBERAMRENEERE

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular period and sales from comparable POS
in the previous period, measured at constant exchange rates

LARE 5] BE 2 tb 4% e i B 1Y ) U SH R B AT — AR Y AT L B2 E RS &

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BBEGIE 571 EE S5 RAAE A

Shop-in-shop in POS
REEHANEFRE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEHERZMERDH

for the list of cities, please refer to the glossary of our FY2014/15 interim report

BRI T FE1E 52 50 2014/2015 BT BUF B P BR SR &5 HY A5



T: YELLOW CREATIVE (HK) LIMITED  www.yellowcreative.com

x
a

o
X

Concept & Design 12 K%

This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper

RERLUIRRATENR



www.chowtaifook.com



	Cover
	Corporate Profile
	Contents
	Annual Results in Five Minutes
	Revenue Illustration and Vertically Integrated Business Model
	Chairman’s Statement
	Managing Director’s Strategic Report
	Financial and Operational Highlights
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Business Review
	Operations and Management
	Financials
	Risk Management Report
	Major Awards and Recognitions
	Corporate Governance
	Our Corporate Governance Framework
	Investor Relations
	Information for Investors
	Board Governance
	Corporate Management
	Profile of Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Glossary
	Inside Back
	Back Cover

